FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Cabinet IQ Franchising, LL.C

A Texas limited liability company
I = CABINET Cadar Par, TX 76613

Tel. 512-994-7113
Email: Fanchising@CabinetIQ.com

Cabinet IQ Franchising, LLC offers franchises for the operation of a professional kitchen
remodeling services business (both residential and commercial) under the name and
mark “Cabinet IQ” and other related marks. Franchisees will also operate a retail
showroom for its products and services.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Cabinet IQ franchise with a base
territory ranges from $298,350 to $454,750 of which $61,050 to $67,000 must be paid
to the franchisor or its affiliate. The total investment necessary to begin operations of a
Cabinet IQ franchise with one additional territory ranges from $349,950 to $506,350,
which includes $108,650 to $114,600 that must be paid to the franchisor or its affiliate.

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and
other information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying
agreements carefully. You must receive the disclosure document at least 14 calendar days
before you sign a binding agreement with or make any payment to the franchisor or an
affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. Note, however, that no
government agency has verified the information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more
convenient for you. To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact
the sales team at the address and phone number above.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Do not rely on the
disclosure document alone to understand your contract. Read your entire contract
carefully. Show your contract and this disclosure document to advisors, such as a lawyer
or accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document
can help you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A
Consumer’s Guide to Buying a Franchise”, which can help you understand how to use this
disclosure document, is available from the Federal Trade Commission. You can contact
the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW,
Washington, DC 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at www.ftc.gov for
additional information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources
of information on franchising. There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask
your state agencies about them.
Issuance Date: April 1, 2025
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HOW TO USE THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and
tips on how to find more information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can I earn?

Item 19 may give you information about outlet
sales, costs, profits, or losses. You should also try
to obtain this information from others, like
current and former franchisees. You can find
their names and contact information in Item 20
or Exhibit H.

How much will I need to
invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
franchisor or at the franchisor's direction. Item
7 lists the initial investment to open. Item 8
describes the suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the
financial ability to provide
support to my business?

Item 21 or Exhibit C includes financial
statements. Review these statements
carefully.

Is the franchise system
stable, growing, or
shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the
number of company-owned and franchised
outlets.

Will my business be the only
Cabinet IQ business in my
area?

Item 12 and the "territory" provisions in the
franchise agreement describe whether the
franchisor and other franchisees can compete
with you.

Does the franchisor have a
troubled legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or
its management have been involved in material
litigation or bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a Cabinet
IQ franchisee?

Item 20 or Exhibit H lists current and former
franchisees. You can contact them to ask
about their experiences.

What else should I know?

These questions are only a few things you
should look for. Review all 23 Items and all
Exhibits in this disclosure document to better
understand this franchise opportunity. See the
table of contents.
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What You Need to Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and
other fees even if you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the
franchisor to change its manuals and business model without your consent. These
changes may require you to make additional investments in your franchise
business or may harm your franchise business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor
or a limited group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more
expensive than similar items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from
operating a similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually
other restrictions. Some examples may include controlling your location, your
access to customers, what you sell, how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a
territory, the franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does,
you may have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order
to continue to operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from
operating a similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have
obligations to your landlord or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors
to register before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not
mean that the state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in
this document. To find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to
contact your state, use the agency information in Exhibit A.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or
amendments be made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the
State Specific Addenda. See the Table of Contents for the location of the State
Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise
Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

L. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you
to resolve disputes with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration and/or litigation
only in Texas. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force you to
accept a less favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to mediate,
arbitrate, or litigate with the franchisor in Texas than in your own state.

2, Short Operating History. The franchisor is at an early stage of
development and has a limited operating history. This franchise is likely to be a
riskier investment than a franchise in a system with a longer operating history.

- 3. Mandatory Minimum Payments. You must make minimum royalty or
advertising fund payments, regardless of your sales levels. Your inability to make
the payments may result in termination of your franchise and loss of your
investment.

4. Spousal Liability. Your spouse must sign a document that makes your
spouse liable for all financial obligations under the Franchise Agreement even
though your spouse has no ownership interest in the franchise. This guarantee will
place both your and your spouse’s marital and personal assets, perhaps including
your house, at risk if your franchise fails.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the "State Specific
Addenda" (Exhibit G) to see whether your state requires other risks to be
highlighted.
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ITEM 1
THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS,
PREDECESSORS, AND AFFILIATES

General

To simplify the language in this Disclosure Document, “Cabinet IQ Franchising” or
“we”, “our” or “us” means Cabinet IQ Franchising, LLC, the franchisor of the Cabinet
IQ concept. This Disclosure Document refers to the person or entity that buys the
franchise from us as “you” or “your”, and the term includes your partners if you are a
partnership, your members if you are a limited liability company or your shareholders if
you are a corporation. If you are an entity, your owners will have to guarantee your
obligations and be obligated to comply with the terms of the Franchise Agreement and

ancillary documents described in this Disclosure Document.

Franchisor, Parent, Predecessors, and Affiliates

We were formed as a Texas limited liability company on June 17, 2021. We have been
offering franchises for Businesses (as defined below) since January 3, 2022. We do
business under the names “Cabinet IQ” and our corporate name. Our principal business
address is 2419 S. Bell Blvd., Cedar Park, Texas 78613.

Our parent company is Cabinet IQ Holdings, LLC, a Texas limited liability company
formed on July 9, 2021 (“Cabinet IQ Holdings”). Its principal business address is 2419
S. Bell Blvd., Cedar Park, Texas 78613.

We have no predecessors.
As of the date of this Disclosure Document, we do not own or operate any Businesses.

Our affiliate, Cabinet Plus, LLC (our “Affiliate”) has operated a Business in Cedar Park,
Texas since its inception in July 2018. Its principal business address is 2419 S. Bell Blvd.,
Cedar Park, Texas 78613. Our Affiliate originally operated under the names “Cabinets
Plus USA” and “Cabinets Plus”. In August 2021, our Affiliate rebranded and began using
the current trademark (these and any future trademarks applicable to the business
referred to as “Marks”). Our Affiliate opened a second Business in Austin, Texas in
February 2022.

Before the formation of our Affiliate, our founder operated a sole proprietorship that
operated a business similar to the Business under the names Cabinets Plus USA and
Cabinets Plus.

We have not offered franchises in any other line of business, nor do we engage in any
other business activities. We have no affiliates that offer franchises in any line of business
or that offer products or services to our franchisees. Our parent company, Cabinet 1Q
Holdings, does not offer franchises in any line of business or offer products or services to
our franchisees.

Our agents for service of process are listed in Exhibit A.
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The Franchise Rights Offered

Franchise Agreement

We enter into franchise agreements (“Franchise Agreements”) with qualified
entities that wish to establish and operate a franchised business (a “Franchise” or a
“Business”) under the System using the Marks. The form of Franchise Agreement is
attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit B.

Under a Franchise Agreement, we grant you the right (and you accept the
obligation) to operate one Franchise that specializes in providing cabinets evaluation,
removal, installation and related services we specify (the “Services”) within the initial
geographic area as described on the Summary Page of your Franchise Agreement (the
“Territory” or “Territories”).

You will operate the Business at a location selected by you that has been accepted
by us and which will generally consist of a retail showroom (a “Showroom”) and office
space. Your clients will visit the Showroom to view samples and work with a designer to
design their dream kitchen, and certified installers will handle the installation; however,
because of the time to build out and complete your Showroom, you will be opening your
Franchise by offering and providing services prior to the opening of your Showroom.

Each franchisee must appoint an individual owner as its “Operating Principal”
who must own at least a 20% interest in the entity-franchisee, must have authority over
all business decisions related to the Franchise, and must have the power to bind the
franchisee in all dealings with us. Each franchisee must also appoint a manager (the
“Manager”) and salesperson (the “Salesperson”) to manage the day-to-day business
of the Franchise. The Operating Principal is required to oversee all business matters
related to the Franchise, but is not required to have day-to-day operational involvement.
Optionally, your Operating Principal may serve as your Salesperson or Manager (but not
both) unless we believe that he or she does not have sufficient experience. You must
provide us with written notice of your Operating Principal and Manager at least 30 days’
prior to beginning the initial training program. You may hire employees or subcontractors
to perform the Services, but you are ultimately responsible for their actions and must
ensure that you have an adequate number of employees or subcontractors to meet
demand in your Territory and that they follow brand standards specified by Franchisor.

General Market and Competition

The general market for Franchises consists of any residential or commercial facility
in need of cabinets, kitchen remodeling, and related services. The principal customers of
a Franchise will be homeowners and commercial building owners though other users of
facilities and industrial clients may also use the services. Franchises compete with other
national, regional, and local businesses offering cabinets, kitchen remodeling and related
services, at times, in well-developed markets. You will initially be granted a protected
Territory. You will be the only provider of the services offered under the System in your
Territory while it remains a protected territory. We will not offer or sell a Cabinet IQ
Franchise to anyone within your Territory while it is protected. You may only lose the

protected status of your Territory if you fail to uphold your obligations to us under the
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Franchise Agreement or otherwise as discussed in Item 12. If this occurs, we are free to
offer others the opportunity to service customers under the System in your Territory and
under that circumstance you may encounter competition from company-owned locations
operated by us, our affiliates, or other franchisees offering the products and services
directly to consumers, online or at traditional retail locations. Some of these competitors
may be in close proximity to your Franchise, and may have greater financial resources,
larger advertising budgets, and more national (or local) recognition than the Cabinet IQ
brand.

Various factors can affect the success of your Franchise including inflation,
competing businesses, your abilities as an operator, availability of an adequate number of
qualified employees or subcontractors, the availability and cost of constructing your
Franchise, interest rates, insurance rates and increases in labor and energy costs.

Some outlets may experience minor seasonal fluctuations in sales.

Industry Specific Regulations

You must comply with all local, state, and federal laws and regulations that apply
to the operation of your Business, including without limitation, health, safety, insurance,
discrimination, employment and sexual harassment laws. Health regulations, as well as
other state and local specific safety and workplace regulations may impact the types of
training, devices, and equipment you must make available to or be required to offer to
your employees. The health and safety requirements can vary from jurisdiction to
jurisdiction and specific inquiry should be made with your state and local authorities.

The Franchise will be subject to various federal, state, and local laws, and
regulations affecting the business, including, among others, federal, state and local laws,
rules and regulations governing franchising, licensing, permits, zoning, the EPA, and
other federal and state environmental protection statutes, OSHA, and other federal, state
and local laws regarding hazardous substances and waste, land use, construction
regulations and various health, sanitation, safety and fire standards. Certain jurisdictions
may require a specialized license to perform cabinets services. You are also subject to
employment laws such as the EEOC, Fair Labor Standards Act, Americans with
Disabilities Act and various state laws governing such matters as minimum wages,
overtime and working conditions. If you plan to use independent contractors instead of
employees, you will need to consult with legal counsel on independent contractor
classification issues. Your advertising of the Franchise is regulated by the Federal Trade
Commission. There may be federal, state, and local laws which affect your Franchise in
addition to those listed here.

Cabinet styles vary widely based on geography, building code requirements and
other factors. These differences can dramatically affect the cost of cabinet products and
installation. Be sure to check your local building codes and examine commonly used
products in your market to determine average pricing in your area.

UNDERSTAND PERMIT AND LICENSE REQUIREMENTS IN YOUR AREA: You
should carefully investigate whether there are any state or local regulations or
requirements that may apply in the geographic area in which you intend to conduct
business. We do not offer guidance with regard to which permits or licenses may be
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required in your area. You should consider both their effect on your business and the cost
of compliance. You are responsible for obtaining all licenses and permits which may be
required for your business.

Time and effort required to operate this business: Operating a business
requires substantial time and effort. How much time you must personally devote will
depend on the number and quality of people you hire, business experience and other
factors which vary with each business operation. It is not practical to expect to operate
this business with minimal personal effort and time, even if you hire an excellent team.
You must still devote substantial time to leading and managing that team as well as
analyzing and growing your business. A business is not a passive investment and service
businesses such as this one require meaningful time and effort. Consult with business
advisors and come to your own conclusions about how much time you must personally
devote. Multiple people must devote their full time and best efforts to make a Cabinet IQ
franchise location successful. This is not intended to be an absentee or semi-absentee
model business; you must plan to devote substantial time and attention in order to be
successful.

ITEM 2
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Chief Executive Officer & Founder Michael Hartel

Michael Hartel is our Chief Executive Officer and Founder, positions he has held
since June 2021. He has also been the Chief Executive Officer and Founder of our Affiliate
from July 2018 to present, and prior to that, he operated our Affiliate’s predecessor, a sole
proprietorship, from June 2016 to July 2018. He is also the Owner and Founder of Hartel
Homes, a position he has held since July 2016. All positions are in the Austin, Texas metro
area.

Chief Operating Officer Jacob Collums

Jacob Collums has served as our Chief Operating Officer since May 2021 in Austin,
Texas. Prior to that, Mr. Collums was a Performance Excellence System Practitioner —
Corrugated and Performance Excellence Black Belt for WestRock from December 2017 to
May 2021, in Houston, Texas. From June 2012 to August 2017, he was Title Procurement
Specialist, Operations Integrity Development Specialist, Enterprise Excellence Business
Leader — Black Belt III, and Global Rotational Development Trainee - Operations for
Cameron, a Schlumberger Company. These positions were held in Houston, Texas;
Calgary, Alberta, Canada; and Berwick, Louisiana.

ITEM 3
LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this item.

ITEM 4
BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this item.
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ITEM 5
INITIAL FEES

Initial Franchise Fee

When you sign your franchise agreement, you must pay us an initial franchise fee
of $59,500 for a territory that includes up to 100,000 owner-occupied households (a
“Base Territory”). If at the time of signing your franchise agreement, and subject to the
market type, availability, and at our discretion, you wish to increase the size of your Base
Territory, the initial franchise fee will be increased by an amount equal to (i) $0.65,
multiplied by (ii) the number of owner-occupied households in your territory that exceed
100,000 owner-occupied households at the time of the signing of the franchise
agreement. We generally do not grant more than an additional 20,000 owner-occupied
households to a territory.

In addition, subject to market type, availability, and our discretion, at the time of
signing your franchise agreement, you may request the right to purchase an additional
territory. Each territory of up to 100,000 owner-occupied households added to your Base
Territory is referred to as an “Additional Territory.” Your Base Territory and any
Additional Territory are each a Territory. If you purchase one Additional Territory at the
same time your initial franchise fee for the Territory after your Base Territory will be an
additional $47,600.

You must pay all Initial Franchise Fees in full at the time you sign the Franchise
Agreement. If we conclude that the Operating Principal or Manager is unable to complete
any phase of our initial training program to our satisfaction, we may terminate the
Franchise Agreement, in which case we will refund the Initial Franchise Fee (subject to
your execution of a release), less $5,000 and any brokers’ fees or other out of pocket
expenses we have incurred. Otherwise, the Initial Franchise Fee is deemed fully earned
upon payment and is not refundable under any circumstances.

We offer a veteran’s discount to honorably discharged veterans of the United States
armed forces and their spouses. We will discount the Initial Franchise Fee for the Base
Territory by 10% for those veterans and/or their spouses who have been honorably
discharged by the military. A copy of your DD-214 is required to receive this discount.

Except as provided herein, initial franchise fees are uniform. During the past fiscal
year, the range of initial franchise fees we charged was $59,500 (which was for a single
territory franchise) up to $154,700 (for a three-territory franchise).

Custom Marketing & Services Activation

Prior to opening your Franchise and within 10 days of our invoice, you must pay
us a Custom Marketing and Services Activation Fee of $2,000 for the activation of certain
items that are required to be used in your business. This Fee is deemed fully earned upon
payment and is not refundable under any circumstances.
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Showroom Design and Order Preparation

Prior to opening your Franchise and within 10 days of our invoice, you must pay
us a Showroom Design and Order Preparation Fee of $3,000 for certain services related
to assistance with the design of your Showroom and order preparation. This Fee is
deemed fully earned upon payment and is not refundable under any circumstances.

Software Implementation Assistance Fee

Prior to opening your Franchise and within 10 days of our invoice, you must pay
us a Software Implementation Assistance Fee of $2,500 to cover Franchisor staff who will
assist you with the implementation of certain software systems required for your
business. This fee is in addition to any fees charged by the applicable software service
providers. This Fee is deemed fully earned upon payment and is not refundable under
any circumstances.

ITEM 6
OTHER FEES
(All fees are per Territory unless specified otherwise)
Type of Fee Amount Due Date | Remarks
See Notes 1 and 2.
Monthly, | pE ount for the
6% of Gross Sales, dt%e on the fees due.
subject to Minimum 2%;11&3;182 th
Royalty Fee Royalties following the for Gross We will debit your
th (o)
s monibomibe | e e | Ko o 507 o
. during the y 1St payImer
franchise agreement ror you fail to submit your
?nonth sales report on time.

) This amount will be
adjusted upon receipt
of the required report.
See Note 3.

The Local Marketing
requirement begins 30

The greater of: (i) 4% of dacylfs prior to yo%lr :

Gross Sales per month; attendance of the in-

. and (ii) the Minimum person portion of the
%gflaloli\illagketmg Monthly Local Asincurred. | initial training
soIng Marketing Spend. program.

Payable to third-party
suppliers All
advertising must be
approved by us prior to
publications or use.
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Paid to us,

Brand Fund Maximum of 2% of same as Payable to us. See Note
Contribution Gross Sales. Royalty Fee. 4.
Payable to us.

$499 per month per

Showroom. The total The Technology Fee

Technology Fee for up to currently covers costs

2 contiguous Territories | Paid to us, associated with our
Technology Fee operating through a same as Cabinet IQ Smart

singular Showroom shall | Royalty Fee. | CRM, Cabinet 1Q

be equal to the then- Learning Center,

current Technology Fee
for one Territory.

Qvinci financial
reporting software, and

Software Expenses

design portal upkeep.
As required (currently
approximately $2,295
per year for Design
20/20 Software; $90 per Payable to third party

month for Quickbooks
online and $75 per
month for Quickbooks
online payroll)

As incurred.

suppliers. See Note 6

Computers

Actual costs and
expenses

Monthly

You must use our
designated vendor to
lease laptops at a cost
of $150 per month,
which includes laptop
lease, security
software, online
backup, MS Exchange
Email, Office 365, and
unlimited remote
support. You must
purchase or lease other
equipment associated
with your Technology
System. See Item 11
for more information.
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Bookkeeping/Accounting
Service Fee

Actual costs and
expenses

As arranged

You must use our
designated vendor for
all bookkeeping
services, the prices of
which may increase
from time to time.
These services are
currently $445 to $615
per month depending
on your Gross Sales
level.

Costs and expenses
associated with

If you request that we
test or consider for
approval an
unapproved product or
service or evaluate an
unapproved supplier
you must pay to us any
out-of-pocket costs we

Supplier Approval / . When incur in researching,
3 approving an . . .
Testing Costs incurred. acquiring, testing and
unapproved product or derine £
supplier considering for
approval the product,
service or supplier.
You will owe these
amounts regardless of
whether or not we
approve the supplier or
product.
If you fail to pay us any
1.5% per month from . amount when due, we
If paid to us,
due date, or the may charge you
Interest Charge . same as . .
maximum allowed by Rovalty Fee interest on the unpaid
law. yalty Hee. amount until the
amount is received.
$50 per day or portion If paid to us,
thereof for each payment
Late Fee . same as Payable to us.
or report not received Royalty Fee
when due. Y )
Half at the
time of the
request for
Greater of 20% of then- | transfer, Pavable to us. See
Transfer Fee current Franchise Fee or | with the No}’;e ’
$10,000 (per Territory). | balance due 7
by the
closing of
the transfer.
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Before

Greater of 25% of the mgmr&gl the
Renewal Fee Franchise Fee or $5,000 gjg,enten_ Payable to us.
per Territory Franchise
Agreement.

You must reimburse us
for the cost plus 10%
plus interest for any
amounts we pay on

Amount paid by us to your behalf due to your

Insurance Procurement

secure insurance to fulfil
your insurance
obligations.

As incurred.

failure to meet the
insurance obligations
as defined in your
Franchise Agreement.
This remedy is
cumulative to all other
remedies.

Costs and Attorneys’
Fees

Will vary under
circumstances

As incurred.

Only if you are in
default under the
Franchise Agreement,
in which case, we will
require you to
reimburse us for the
expenses we incur
(including reasonable
attorneys’ fees) as a
result of your default
and to enforce and
terminate the
agreement.

Indemnity

Will vary under
circumstances

As incurred.

You must indemnify
us, and reimburse us
for our costs (including
our attorneys’ fees and
costs) and advance
these expenses to us
upon demand if we are
sued or held liable in
any action having
anything to do with
your Franchise.
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Audit Costs

Cost of the audit plus
related expenses,
provided that the costs
of the audit are only due
if an irregularity of
greater than 5% is
discovered in any
reported amount, or if
reports are not
submitted as required.

As incurred.

We have the right
under the Agreement
to examine certain
records including
without limitation your
financials, bank
statements and tax
returns. If an
examination of these
records reveals a
discrepancy of more
than 5% the full
amount of the audit’s
actual costs will be
charged in addition to
any unpaid amounts
discovered and other
remedies as permitted
under the Agreement.

Failure to Comply with
Operational Standards

A reasonable charge
(currently, a $100 per
diem charge per
violation)

Upon
demand.

Payable to us, only due
if you fail to comply
with certain
operational standards
and specifications as
specified in the
Manuals and after a
cure period of 10 days.

Inspection Fee

Our reasonable
expenses.

Upon
demand.

We require you to
reimburse our
reasonable expenses
for any inspection
including re-
inspections that we
may undertake to
ensure that
deficiencies are
corrected.
Additionally, if you fail
to correct the
deficiencies within a
reasonable time, we
may (but need not)
correct the deficiencies
and will charge you for
our actual expenses in
taking such actions.
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You will incur certain
costs necessary to
cancel fictitious name

Immediately | registrations, remove
Post-Termination and Will vary under the upon the branding from the
Post-Expiration Expense | circumstances end of the Franchise and any
Term. vehicles, and to
deidentify and
disassociate with the
System and Marks.
Attendance by at least
Operating Principal or
Manager and
Salesperson is
mandatory.
This fee, payable to us,
Upon is to cover the costs of
A reasonable fee, . . 1. .
registration | providing meeting
(currently $200 per
. for space and food for
person) which may not .
be increased to more conference, | attendance during the
Annual Conference Fee or 60 days annual conference. It
than our actual cost at
. . before does not cover your
any time during the
e conference, | cost of travel to and
initial term of the . ;
whichever is | from the conference,
agreement. .
earlier. room and board, and
other out of pocket
expenses you may
incur. Only one
conference fee may be
charged a year. If we
hold a conference, you
are required to attend.
All expenses incurred by We require that your
your representatives in Operating Principal,
attending refresher Manager and other
training are your employees attend and
Refresher Training / On- | responsibility; for Upon successfully complete
site training additional on-site demand. refresher training
training, you must pay programs or seminars
us our then-current per to be conducted at
diem charges and out-of- such location as we
pocket expenses designate.
Initial Training No fee is charged for N/A N/A

initial training.
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Additional trainees or
replacement trainees
may attend any future
training courses based
on available space and
scheduling at no
additional cost.

If no courses are
scheduled, or no space is
available, the current

We provide initial
training for up to three
individuals (typically
the Operating
Principal, Manager and
Salesperson) at no
charge. We require any
new Operating
Principal or
replacement Manager
or Salesperson to

Additional Initial Training Fee may be Upon complete our training
Training assessed. This fee is demand. program, and we may
currently $5,000 per charge a fee for such
trainee. For training at training. If no courses
your location, our then- are schedule or space
current daily fees per in such courses is
trainer will be charged. unavailable, we may
Currently our fee is $250 also charge a fee for
per trainer per day plus training for any
travel, per diem and individuals that we
lodging expenses as train beyond the two
required. individuals that we
train at no charge.
If you request
0 . assistance or training,
ur service fee as : oo
o s in addition to the pre-
Additional Openin speqlfleFl in the Manuals Time of opening and openin
. p & hich is currently $500 . pening p &
Assistance (whic . Y assistance. training that we
per day); plus our .
expenses and costs prov1de, we.c.h arge you
for this additional
assistance.
If we provide you with
advertising and
Additional Advertising promotional materials
and Promotional $250 - $500 As billed. to use in your
Materials Franchise, we charge a
reasonable amount for
these materials.
Payable to us; applies
only if you do not
Customer Review Non- . maintain brand .
$90 - $250 Asincurred. | standards and high

Compliance Fee

customer service
reviews scores. See
Note 8.
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Termination Fee

Payable to us, only if
the Franchise
Agreement is

Greater of: Average of
monthly Royalties and

Brand Fund terminated by us due
Contributions for the y

to your default
past 12 months Upon

(including failure to

multiplied by 24 months | demand. open), or if you

(or remaining months in

. terminate the
term), discounted to .

Franchise Agreement
present value; or in violation of its
$150,000 per Territory.

terms.

Notes
1.

Minimum Royalties per Territory per month:

Months After the Minimum Royalty per
Effective Date of Territory for the Month
Your Franchise

Agreement
13-24 $2,500
25-36 $3,750
37+ $5,000

As used in this chart, the term “Gross Sales” means amounts derived from all
products or services sold from or through your Franchise (across all Territories),
including any sale of products or services made for cash or credit, or partly for cash
and partly for credit, less refunds. “Gross Sales” also includes the fair market value
of any services or products received by you in barter or in exchange for services
and products. There is no rollover credit for months in which the royalty amount
exceeds the minimum.

Ongoing Marketing obligations begin 30 days prior to your attendance of the in-
person portion of the initial training program and must be spent in accordance
with our allocation on approved advertising and vendors. The Minimum Monthly
Local Marketing Spend is $4,500 for each of your Showrooms, plus an additional
$1,000 per Additional Territory; however, in no event will the Minimum Local
Marketing Spend be less than $4,500 per month for one territory and $5,500 for
two territories. These amounts are the minimum you may spend. We do not
impose a maximum limit on how much you may spend.

Brand Fund contributions are currently 1% of Gross Sales and may be increased in
the future to a maximum of 2%. These funds are spent by the Franchisor on
programs and expenses for the benefit of the System as defined in section 10 of the
Franchise Agreement.

Computer and Software expenses will vary based on the then-current standards
for the Technology System. These amounts will be paid primarily to designated
vendors.

If you sell or otherwise transfer your franchise and engage with a broker or
franchise sales organization, or if you request that we assist with the sale or transfer
of your franchise and we engage a broker or franchise sales organization, you will
be responsible for any commission or fees that the broker or franchise sales

1 8 Cabinet IQ FDD 2025




organization charges in connection with locating a buyer for your franchise before
we will grant an approval of the transfer.

7 You must subscribe to and participate in the customer review tracking and
reputation management services and providers that we designate. If your customer
review or customer satisfaction ratings, as measured across the review platforms
that we designate, go below 4 stars out of 5 stars and/or a 80% positive satisfaction
rating then you must pay to us a customer review non-compliance fee of $90 for
each and every week of non-compliance. If, a condition of non-compliance occurs
for more than twelve weeks, then we may increase this non-compliance fee to a
weekly fee of not more than $250 per week.

8. All fees and payments are uniformly-imposed and non-refundable, unless
otherwise stated or permitted by payee.

ITEM 7
ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

Base Territory Only

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

T o Brpamdtirme Amount Method of When Payment
Low High Payment Due Payable to
At time of
signing Us
Initial Franchise Fee! $53,550 $59,500 Lump sum franchise
agreement
Before
launch,
Custom Marketing & $2.000 $2.000 Lump sum and Us
Services Activation Fee2 ’ ’ p within 10
days of
Billing
Before
launch,
Showroom Design and $ $ L and U
Order Preparation Fee2 3,000 3,000 ump sum within 10 s
days of
Billing
Before
Software laun(clh,
Implementation $2,500 $2,500 Lump sum . ?ln Us
Assistance Fees within 10
days of
Billing
Rent4 $10,000 $18,000 lump sum monthly Lessor
Lease, Utility, and As required by As Lessor and
Security Depositss $6,300 $10,500 providers invoiced suppliers
C s As required by As Contractors
Exterior Signage $5,000 $8,000 providers invoiced and vendors
Improvements® $176,000 $255,000 as a8 Contractors
’ ’ arranged invoiced and vendors
Construction $0 36,000 as as Contractors
Management ’ arranged invoiced and vendors
Travel Expense to Transportation, As Third party
Training? $500 $3,000 Lodging, etc. incurred suppliers
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As required by Before
8
Insurance $1,500 $3,500 SUTers launch Insurers
. As
Grand Opening . .
Advertising/Marketing $18,000 $18,000 As rfg\l,liggiby reqll)l ired Providers
(Lead Generation)? p Y
provider
Professional Fees® $1,000 $5,000 Asrequiredby | As Providers
providers incurred
Office Supplies and As required by Before .
Promotional Items™ $500 $1,250 suppliers launch Suppliers
Technology, Computer, As required by Before .
and Software'? $3,500 $3,500 suppliers launch Suppliers
As required by li‘eSerala
Business Licenses and $0 $1000 federal, state Before S ? © aln
permits*3 and local launch oca ¢
governments governmen
agencies
Weekly
payroll,
Additional Funds — other Employees,
3 Months 4 $15,000 $25,000 As Incurred expenses | suppliers, etc.
and
purchases
TOTAL
ESTIMATED
INITIAL $298,350 | $454,750
INVESTMENT?*

We do not offer financing directly to Franchisees. All fees and payments are
uniformly-imposed and non-refundable, unless otherwise stated or permitted by payee.
Unless otherwise noted, each amount is per Territory.

Notes:

1 Initial Franchise Fee. The Initial Franchise Fee is for a standard territory with up to
100,000 owner-occupied households. You may purchase additional owner occupied
households for a cost of $0.65 per household. See Item 5 for more information.

2 Custom Marketing & Services Activation Fee and Showroom Design and
Order Preparation Fee. We require you to pay us a Custom Marketing & Services
Activation Fee of $2,000 and a Showroom Design and Order Preparation Fee of $3,000,
prior to opening your Franchise and within 10 days of being billed. See Item 5 for
additional information regarding these fees.

3 Software Implementation Assistance Fee. We require you to pay us a Software
Implementation Assistance Fee, in the amount of $2,500, prior to opening your Franchise
and within 10 days of being billed. See Item 5 for additional information regarding the
Software Implementation Assistance Fee.

4 Rent. We require that you have a Showroom with offices (up to 2 contiguous Territories
may share a Showroom). A typical Showroom will occupy 1,800 to 2,000 square feet
total and will be located in a light industrial or a strip shopping center. Rent depends on
geographic location, size, local rental rates, businesses in the area, site profile, and other
factors. Rents vary from market to market and likely will be higher in large metropolitan
areas than in suburban markets and smaller metropolitan areas. The low estimate
assumes that you will be able to negotiate a rent abatement for your initial months of
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operation. The high estimate assumes that you lease a site in a high-demand area and do
not receive any rent abatement. The initial investment table does not reflect the potential
purchase cost of real estate or the costs of constructing a building suitable for the
Business. Because of the wide variation in lease rates for retail space, you should
thoroughly investigate the costs of obtaining a location.

5 Lease, Utility, and Security Deposits. Your landlord likely will require you to pay
a security deposit equal to one month’s rent or more. If you are a new customer of your
local utilities, you generally must pay deposits to obtain services, including electric,
telephone, gas, and water. The deposit’s amount and refundability depend on the local
utilities

6 Improvements. The cost of building improvements will vary widely depending upon
the size and condition of the premises and the extent and quality of improvements desired
by you over and above our minimum requirements. Our estimate assumes that the premise
of your approved location will be approximately 2000 square feet with an appropriate
design and layout that allows the space to accommodate the showroom without substantial
construction or demolition to the existing space. Also includes security cameras, speakers
and a smart TV for use at the Showroom premises.

7 Travel Expense to Training. The cost of the Initial Training Program for the
Operating Principal and Manager is included in the Initial Franchise Fee. The chart
estimates the costs for transportation, lodging, and meals for two trainees. These
incidental costs are not included in the Initial Franchise Fee.

8 Insurance. Before you open for business, you must purchase and maintain at your
sole cost and expense the insurance coverage that we specify. You must comply with all
state minimums when obtaining insurance. See Item 8 for more information regarding
ourinsurance requirements.

9 Grand Opening Advertising / Marketing. Beginning at least 30 days prior to your
attendance of the in-person portion of the initial training program and continuing for the
remainder of the Term, we require you to spend each month on local advertising the
greater of: (i) 4% of Gross Sales or; (ii) the Minimum Monthly Local Marketing Spend
(which is $4,500 per Showroom, plus an additional $1,000 per Additional Territory;
provided that in no event will the Minimum Local Marketing Spend be less than $4,500
per month for one territory and $5,500 for two territories). We included a total of 4
months at the minimum required amount.

10 Professional Fees. Estimated cost for professionals such as bookkeepers,
accountants and attorneys. You are required to use a third-party bookkeeping service for
the full term of your franchise agreement, and both the low-end and high-end estimates
includes both an initial set up fee of $1,000 for the bookkeeping service. You may incur
professional fees depending on the scope of work performed, which may include legal and
accounting fees to review franchise documents and costs of forming a separate legal entity.
This list is not exhaustive. This amount will vary greatly depending on your specific needs
and location.

11 Office Supplies and Promotional Items. The figures on this chart reflect the
estimated range to purchase various office supplies and promotional items based upon
your needs and preference to maintain an efficient and organized office.

12 Technology, Computer, and Software. We require you to purchase computer
systems and software meeting our minimum specifications for use in your Business. This
estimate includes the cost of the software packages, your office laptop, monitors, a
printer/scanner machine, and a Smartphone. You must also have Internet and other
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telecommunications equipment and services in accordance with our standards to permit
electronic transmission of sales information. We reserve the right to change your
requirements for computer hardware and software at any time in the future.

13 Business Licenses and Permits. Business license costs vary widely depending on
local laws and regulations. Additional permits may be required depending on your local
laws and regulations. Consult the appropriate authorities to determine the amount
applicable to a Franchise in your Territory.

14 Additional Funds. The estimate of additional funds for the initial phase of your
business includes staff salaries and operating expenses for the first three months. These
estimates are for a single territory operation. If you have fewer employees initially, these
monthly expenses may be reduced. The estimate does not include an owner’s salary or
draw. You may also wish to have a vehicle in connection with your Business; however, this
is optional, and you may use any vehicle which meets our standards. We relied upon the
experience of our company-owned/affiliate owned locations to compile these estimates.
Each installation requires qualified personnel with applicable experience and knowledge.
You will incur labor costs in employing your employees, but those costs are dependent on
numerous factors that we cannot predict or estimate, such as the labor rates, labor tax
rates, and worker’s compensation rates within your Territory, as well as the availability of
workers, number of employees you decide to use, number of crews you run, skill and
experience levels of your employees, number of hours worked per employee, volume of
business, availability and cost of subcontractors, etc. You should investigate the costs of
labor and subcontractors in your Territory before making any decision to operate a
Franchise, as this will be a significant portion of your ongoing expenses. This estimate
assumes you are able to obtain favorable terms and credit lines with key suppliers for
cabinets and other services and materials.

15 Total Estimated Initial Investment. You should review these figures carefully
with a business advisor before making any decision to invest in the Franchise. This
estimate is based on the experience of our corporate/affiliate-owned locations and any
information we received from those franchisees listed in Exhibit H.

Base Territory Plus One Additional Territory

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT
. Amount Method of When Payment
e @ B na e Low High Payment Due Payable to
At time of
Additional Initial signing
Franchise Fees for 847,600 $47,600 Lump sum franchise Us
Territory 2 agreement
Additional Grand As
.O.pening . Asrequired by | required .
Advertising/Marketing $4,000 $4,000 . Providers
. providers by
(Lead Generation) for rovider
Territory 2 P
Weekly
Estimated Initial pgi’ﬁgil’ Employees
Investmept to Open $298,350 $454,750 As Incurred expenses | suppliers, etc.
Base Territory (from and
above table)
purchases
TOTAL
$349,950 | $506,350
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Notes:

16 Additional Initial Franchise Fees. If you elect to supplement your Base Territory
by adding one Additional Territory, the total initial franchise fees (assuming that you do
not purchase additional households and that you do not qualify for the veterans’ discount)
would be $107,100 for a total of two Territories (your initial Base Territory plus one
Additional Territory).

ITEM 8
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES
OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

To ensure that the highest degree of quality and service is maintained, you must
operate the Franchise in strict conformity with the methods, standards, and specifications
we periodically prescribe in the Manual or otherwise in writing. You must also ensure
that you comply with all federal, state, and local laws and regulations and must obtain our
written consent before changing any of our standards or specifications to comply with
applicable laws and regulations.

At all times during the term of the Franchise Agreement, you must offer for sale
only those products and services for which we have given our written approval; sell or
offer for sale all of the products and services that we require; offer and sell products and
services in accordance with any minimum, maximum, and/or specific prices that we may
determine from time to time (except to the extent that the determination of prices is
limited or prohibited by applicable law); not deviate from our standards and
specifications, unless you have received our prior written consent; and stop selling and
offering for sale any products or services that we have later disapproved.

The following are our current specific obligations for purchases and leases:

Site Selection and Location

Your site must meet our then-current site criteria. You may not enter into a lease
or binding purchase agreement for the premises for your Business until we have approved
the location of the premises in writing. If you lease the site for your Business, you are
required to have the landlord include certain provisions in such lease, including, among
others, the right to permit us to take possession of the premises of your Business if your
Franchise Agreement is terminated.

You must improve and develop the Business according to our plans and
specifications including exterior and interior design and layout, fixtures, equipment,
décor and signs. Upon our request, you must submit the specific construction plans and
specifications to us for review and approval before you begin construction of the Business.

You must engage a qualified licensed general contractor (whom we may disapprove
if we have a reasonable objection) to construct or renovate the Business and to complete
all improvements.

All signage, both interior and exterior, related to the Business, must conform to
such standards and specifications as we may prescribe as to type, color, size, design, and
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location. You must obtain our prior written approval before you install or display any
such signage.

Technology System, Computer Hardware, and Software

You must purchase the technology system, computer hardware, and software
designated by us for use in connection with your Franchise. See items 6, 7 and 11 for
further information regarding these required purchases.

Insurance

You are required to purchase and maintain insurance in the amounts we prescribe.
Currently, our insurance requirements include: (i) comprehensive general liability
insurance with minimums of $1,000,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 general and
products/completed operations aggregate, $1,000,000 personal/advertising injury,
$50,000 rented premises damage, and $5,000 medical expenses; (ii) Commercial Auto
Insurance with a $1,000,000 combined single limit, covering uninsured/underinsured
motorists, owned, hired, and non-owned autos; (iii) Workers' Compensation Insurance
with coverage limits of $1,000,000 for bodily injury by disease per accident, $1,000,000
policy limit, and $1,000,000 per employee; (iv) Property insurance with coverage for
business personal property (= $10,000 full replacement cost value), tenant
improvements (= $70,000 full replacement cost value), business interruption (6 Months
ALS), including franchisor royalties; (v) Employment Practices Liability Insurance with
minimum coverage limits of $250,000 per occurrence and $250,000 aggregate. The
policy should include 3rd party liability and wage & hour coverage of at least $25,000;
(vi) Cyber Liability Insurance with minimum coverage limits of $250,000 per occurrence
and $250,000 aggregate; (vii) Crime insurance with a minimum coverage limit of
$50,000 each claim, including third-party coverage on a loss discovered form; (viii)
umbrella coverage with limits of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence and $1,000,000
aggregate, providing excess coverage over General Liability, Auto Liability, and
Employers Liability; and (ix) Any other insurance coverage that is required by applicable
law. Each policy must be written by a responsible carrier acceptable to us and must name
us, our respective officers, directors, partners, agents, and employees as additional
insured parties except with regards to workers’ compensation insurance. You are
required to list us as an additional insured and insurance certificate holder, and contain
appropriate provisions such as waiver of subrogation and primary and noncontributory
provisions. You agree to provide proof of same to us. These policies should be issued by
carriers rated A — VII or higher by AM Best. We reserve the right to require higher limits
and/or additional types of insurance coverage.

Trucks, Vehicles, Equipment

Currently, vehicles are optional; however, any vehicle used in the operation of your
franchise, including any attached equipment, trailer, or accessories (each, collectively, a
“Cabinet IQ Vehicle”), must be approved by us and meet our standards. Other proprietary
products, including vehicle wraps and graphics, certain services, equipment, or tools
required or developed in the future may be supplied solely by us. You must maintain all
Cabinet IQ Vehicles and other vehicles and equipment used in your Franchise in a high
degree of repair and condition and make such repairs or replacement of same that we in
our sole discretion require.
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Cabinetry and Countertops

You must purchase the cabinetry and countertops from specified manufacturers
and distributors.

Bookkeeping Services

You must use our designated vendor for all bookkeeping services.

Advertising

You may only use advertising that has been approved in advance by us. You must
participate in all promotional or warranty programs and comply with all requirements
that we or our designated third-party service providers necessary to carry out such
programs including without limitation the payment of any applicable fees. We are the
only supplier for graphic wraps, decals, signage, brochures, and other items which must
be maintained or replaced as required by us or when damaged, faded or otherwise fail to
maintain the required appearance. See Item 11 for more information about advertising.

Alternative Suppliers

We approve suppliers and manufacturers after a careful review of the quality of the
products they provide to us and our franchisees. We may take into account, among other
factors, whether the supplier can demonstrate to our reasonable satisfaction the ability to
meet our then current standards and specifications, whether the supplier has adequate
quality controls and capacity to supply and deliver the System’s needs promptly and
reliably, proximity to Franchises to ensure timely deliveries, and whether the supplier’s
approval would enable the System in our sole opinion to take advantage of marketplace
efficiencies. You may not purchase any unapproved item or make purchases from any
proposed alternate supplier until we have reviewed and approved in writing the proposed
item and/or new supplier. If you would like us to consider another supplier or
manufacturer, you must request this review in writing to us and have the supplier or
manufacturer give us samples of its product and such other information that we may
require. If the supplier or manufacturer meets our specifications and will benefit the
System, as determined in our sole discretion, we may approve it as an additional supplier
or manufacturer. We will notify you of approval or disapproval within 60 days after we
receive all required samples and documentation required for our evaluation. If you do
not receive an approval within that time period, your request is deemed disapproved. You
pay no fee but must reimburse us for all expenses we incur. We may revoke any approval
upon 15 days written notice to you. Upon revocation, you must stop using the supplier or
manufacturer. We estimate that approximately 90% to 100% of your expenditures for
leases and purchases in establishing your Franchise and approximately 90% to 100% for
leases and purchases on an ongoing basis will be for products and services which are
subject to sourcing restrictions (that is, for which suppliers must be approved by us, or
which meet our standards or specifications).

We may negotiate purchase arrangements, including price and payment terms with
designated suppliers on behalf of all franchisees. We may establish strategic alliances or
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preferred vendor programs with suppliers that are willing to supply some products or
services to some or all the Franchises in our System. If we do establish those types of
alliances or programs, we may limit the number of approved suppliers with whom you
may deal, we may designate sources that you must use for some or all products and
services, and we may refuse to approve proposals from franchisees to add new suppliers
if we believe that refusal would be in the best interests of the System or the network of
Franchisees. We may mark up or receive Allowances (rebates, credits of other forms of
income as further defined in section 5.11.2 of the Franchise Agreement) from any
providers or vendors doing business with you, us or the Brand Fund including without
limitation, equipment, supplies, advertising, and marketing vendors. If we do receive
Allowances or other payments from approved suppliers there is no restriction on our use
of this revenue.

We do not provide or withhold material benefits to you (such as renewal rights or the
right to open additional businesses) based on whether or not you purchase through the
sources we designate or approve. However, we do have suppliers with whom we have
negotiated lower pricing terms for franchisees. Furthermore, purchases of unapproved
products or from unapproved vendors in violation of the Franchise Agreement will entitle
us, among other things, to terminate your Franchise Agreement.

Revenue Based on Franchise Purchases

We and/or our affiliates will derive revenue from the required purchases and leases
by you and other franchisees. During the last fiscal year, our revenue from the required
purchases and leases by franchisee—received as rebates from vendors—was $4,551, which
is less than 0.1% of our total revenue of $1,442,051 that is reflected in our financial
statements.

However, neither we nor our affiliates derived revenue from required purchases in the
last fiscal year.

Suppliers in Which an Officer Owns an Interest

None of our officers owns an interest in any supplier from which our franchisees
are required to make purchases.

ITEM 9o
FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and
other agreements. It will help you find more detailed information about your
obligations in these agreements and in other items of the Disclosure
Document.

Obligation Section in Franchise Disclosure item
Agreement
a. Site Selection and Acquisition/Lease | § 5.1 Items 6, 8, and 11
b. Pre-Opening Purchase/Leases 88 5.1, 5.2, 5.4, Items 7 and 8
c. Site Development & other Pre- 88§ 3.8,5,5.4-5.7 Items 6, 7, 8, and

Opening Requirements

11
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d. Initial and Ongoing Training 88 5.5.4, 5.6, 5.7 Items 6 and 11

e. Opening §5.5 Item 11

f. Fees §§ 2.2.6, 3.1, 3.2, 3.8, 4.1-4.7, Items 5, 6, 7, 11

5.6.1,5.6.2, 5.11.1 5.13, 5.16, 10.3, | and 17
12.4.9, 12.4.12, 13.6

g. Compliance with Standards and §§1.2,1.5,2.2,5,7,9 Items 1, 8, 15, 16
Policies/Operating Manual

h. Trademarks and Proprietary §81.1and 6 Items 13 and 14
Information

1. Restrictions on Products/Services 88 1.3, 1.5, 5.15, 5.2, 5.3, 5.9, 5.10 | Items 8 and 16
Offered and 5.11

j. Warranty and Customer Service 88 1.5, 5.15 Not Applicable
Requirements

k. Territorial Development and Sales 81 Item 12
Quotas

L. Ongoing Product/Service Purchases | §5 Items 8 and 11

m. | Maintenance and Appearance 88 2,5,12.4.5 Items 6 and 17
Requirements

n. | Insurance § 11 Items 6 and 11

0. Advertising 8§ 5.15, 10 Items 6 and 11

p. Indemnification §§ 5.18 and 17.4 Item 6

q. Owner’s Participation, Management, | §§ 5.6, 5.7, 5.20, and 15.1 Item 15
Staffing

r. Records /Reports 884,5.3,9 Item 11

S. Inspections /Audits 8§ 5.12and 9 Items 6, 11 and 13

t. Transfer §12 Items 6 and 17

u. | Renewal §2.2 Item 17

V. Post-Termination Obligations § 14 Item 17

w. | Non-Competition Covenants § 15 Item 17

X. Dispute Resolution § 23 Item 17

y. Other: Guarantee of franchisee §5.18 Item 15
obligations (Note 1)

Notes:

(1) Each present and future equity owner of a franchisee entity must jointly and severally

guarantee your performance of each and every provision of the Franchise Agreement by
executing the Guarantee, Indemnification and Acknowledgement in the form attached to the

Franchise Agreement as Exhibit C.

ITEM 10

FINANCING

We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee your note, lease,

or obligation.

We do not know whether you will be able to obtain financing from third parties for

all or part of your investment, and if so, the terms of the financing.
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Other than as described in this disclosure document, neither we nor our affiliates
offer direct or indirect financing to you or guarantees any of your notes, leases, or
obligations.

ITEM 11
FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING,
COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any
assistance.

Pre-Opening Obligations

We are required by the Franchise Agreement to provide certain assistance and
services to you.

Before you open your Franchise:

1. We will provide initial training for up to three individuals (including your
Operating Principal, Manager, and your Salesperson) at our headquarters or at a location
we designate. (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.1)

2. If you request additional assistance to facilitate the opening of the
Franchise, and we deem it necessary, feasible and appropriate, we will provide such
additional opening assistance. You must reimburse us for the expenses we incur in
providing such assistance, and we have the right to charge a service fee. (Franchise
Agreement, Section 3.2)

3. We will review your proposed site and the lease for your proposed site
(Section 3.8). Except as described above, we do not assist you in (i) locating your site and
negotiating the purchase or lease of the site, (ii) conforming the premises to local
ordinances and building codes and obtaining any required permits, or (iii) constructing,
remodeling, or decorating the premises. We will not own your site or lease your site to
you. You have the sole responsibility in tentatively selecting a site. We will review and
approve or disapprove your proposed site selection and lease agreement, if applicable,
based on an analysis of local competing facilities, demographics, visibility and
accessibility, suitability of the premises to be leased and other factors more fully described
in the Manuals.

Your site must be identified and agreed upon within 120 days after the date of the
Franchise Agreement. The failure to have agreed upon a site for the Business within that
timeframe is a default under the Franchise Agreement that would entitle us to terminate
the Franchise Agreement.

4. We will lend you, for the term of the Franchise Agreement, one copy of the
Manuals. (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.3) The Table of Contents of the Manuals as of
the date of this Disclosure Document is attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit
D, and is 261 pages total.
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5. We will provide you with names of suppliers for fixtures, equipment,
opening inventory, or supplies. For specific obligations please refer to Item 8 of the
Disclosure Document.

We are not required by the Franchise Agreement to furnish any other service or
assistance to you before the opening of your Franchise.

Continuing Obligations

We are required by the Franchise Agreement to provide certain assistance and
service to you. During the operation of your Franchise:

1. We will make available additional training programs, as we deem
appropriate. (Franchise Agreement, Sections 3.2 and 5.6)

2, We will review and approve or disapprove all promotional materials and
advertising that you propose to use. (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.4)

3. We will administer the Brand Fund as stated in the Franchise Agreement
and as described below in this Item 11. (Franchise Agreement, Sections 3.5 and 10.3)

4. We will provide periodic assistance in the marketing, management, and
operation of the Franchise, at the times and in the manner that we determine. (Franchise
Agreement, Section 3.7)

Neither the Franchise Agreement, nor any other agreement, requires us to provide
any other assistance or services for you during the operation of the Franchise

Typical Length of Time Before Operation

We estimate that the typical length of time between the signing of the Franchise
Agreement, or the first payment of any consideration for the Franchise, and the opening
of a Franchise is 75 to 105 days, and we estimate that the typical length of time between
the signing of the Franchise Agreement and the opening of a Showroom to be between
three to seven months. Factors affecting this length of time include making financing
arrangements, site selection and Showroom build out, obtaining permits and licenses,
scheduling initial training, the delivery and installation of Showroom materials, and
hiring staff.

You must open your Franchise not later than five months after the signing the
Franchise Agreement and you must open your Showroom within nine months after the
signing of the Franchise Agreement. (Franchise Agreement, Section 5.5) Failure to open
in a timely manner may result in the termination of your Franchise Agreement.

Training

We will provide the initial training (instruction and required materials, only) for

up to three individuals. (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.2) We have the right to charge a

fee for additional individuals who attend training. Travel, room and board and salaries
and other benefits for your attendees are exclusively at your expense.
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Before your Franchise opens, the Manager, Salesperson, and the Operating
Principal must attend and successfully complete, to our satisfaction, the initial training
program. We reserve the exclusive right to determine whether the Manager, Salesperson,
and Operating Principal have satisfactorily completed the initial training. (Franchise
Agreement, Section 5.5.4)

TRAINING PROGRAM

Hours of Hours of On-

Subject Classroom the-Job- Location of Training
Training Training
The Foundations: Core 10 2 Virtual Classroom and Austin, TX

Values and Company
History, Marketing and
QuickBooks

Operations: CRM- 15 10 Virtual Classroom and Austin, TX
Operations, Operations
Process

Employees and
Administration

Virtual Classroom and Austin, TX.

Sales and Estimating: Virtual Classroom and Austin, TX.
CRM - Sales, Lead 10 10
Generation, Estimating

Kitchen and Bath 50 5 Virtual Classroom and Austin, TX.
Design

Jobsite Conduct & Virtual Classroom and Austin, TX.
) 15 8
Installation Procedures

We conduct the initial training program on an as-needed basis at our headquarters
and such other places as we may designate.

As of the date of this Disclosure Document, the initial training program will be
administered by Jacob Collums, our Chief Operating Officer. He has been with us since
May 2021 and has over 13 years of experience in operations and the
remodeling/construction industry. We may use additional instructors to conduct our
training programs, who may be on our training staff or may be designated suppliers or
approved suppliers of ours. Our additional instructors generally have at least 10 years of
experience in the remodeling/construction industry.

The training materials consist of the Manual and related written materials,
computer-based materials, and audio-visual presentations.
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If the Manager or Salesperson ceases active management of the Franchise or if the
Operating Principal is changed or is no longer an equity owner, you must hire a new
Manager or Salesperson or appoint a new Operating Principal (as the case may be), who
must be approved in writing by us. The new Manager, Salesperson, or Operating Principal
must undergo a certification training program that is prescribed by us which may include
training at your Franchise, another Franchise or such other place as we designate. All
expenses incurred by us and the new Manager, Salesperson or Operating Principal in
attending such program including, without limitation, travel costs, room and board
expenses and salaries and other benefits, are your responsibility. In addition, you must
pay our then-current certification fees and out of pocket expenses, including without
limitation, reasonable travel and room and board expenses. (Franchise Agreement,
Section 5.6.1)

We also provide and require that your Operating Principal, Manager, Salesperson
and other employees or subcontractors attend and successfully complete refresher
training programs or seminars to be conducted at such location as we may designate. All
expenses incurred by your representatives in attending such program including, without
limitation, travel costs, room and board expenses and salaries and benefits, are your
responsibility. (Franchise Agreement, Section 5.6.2)

If you ask that we provide additional on-site training, and we are able to do so, then
you will pay us our then-current per diem charges and out-of-pocket expenses. (Franchise
Agreement, Section 5.6.3)

Advertising and Marketing

During the term of the Franchise Agreement, you will be required to contribute
monies to the Brand Fund. We may periodically change the amounts that you are required
to contribute but Brand Fund contributions will not exceed 2% of your Gross Sales.
(Franchise Agreement, Section 10.2)

We currently require that you contribute 1% of your Gross Sales to the Brand Fund.
We also require that you spend each month on local advertising (beginning 30 days prior
to your attendance of the in-person portion of the initial training program), the greater
of: (i) 4% of Gross Sales or; (ii) the Minimum Monthly Local Marketing Spend (which is
$4,500 for each of your Showrooms, plus an additional $1,000 per Additional Territory;
however, in no event will the Minimum Local Marketing Spend be less than $4,500 per
month for one territory and $5,500 per month for two territories).

We currently do not have any local or regional advertising cooperatives; however,
we reserve the right to create one or more in the future. If we do create an advertising
cooperative you may be required to participate.

We are not required to spend any amount on advertising in your area.

Brand Fund

We have established a fund for System-wide advertising (the “Brand Fund”).
The Brand Fund is maintained and administered by us or by our designee as follows:
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We or a designee have the right to direct all advertising programs, as well
as all aspects of the advertising program, including the concept, materials, and
media used in the programs and the placement and allocation of the programs. The
Brand Fund is intended to maximize general public recognition, acceptance, and
use of the System; and we and our designee are not obligated, in administering the
Brand Fund, to make expenditures for you that are equivalent or proportionate to
your contribution, or to ensure that any particular franchisee benefits directly or
pro rata from expenditures within their trade area, by the Brand Fund.

The Brand Fund, and all contributions to and earnings from, the Brand
Fund, will be used only (except as otherwise provided below) to meet any and all
costs of maintaining, administering, directing, conducting, creating, and/or
otherwise preparing advertising, marketing, public relations and promotional
programs and materials, and any other activities that we believe will enhance the
image of the System. This includes, among other things, the costs of preparing
and/or conducting: media advertising campaigns; direct mail advertising;
marketing surveys and other public relations activities; employing advertising
and/or public relations agencies; purchasing promotional items; developing new
or modified trade dress and marks; point-of-purchase (POP) materials; design and
photographs; conducting and administering visual merchandising, and other
merchandising programs; purchasing media space or time (including all
associated fees and expenses); administering regional and multi-regional
marketing and advertising programs; market research and customer satisfaction
surveys; developing and implementing customer loyalty and gift card programs;
the creative development of, and actual production associated with, premium
items, giveaways, promotions, contests, public relation events, and charitable or
non-profit events; developing and maintaining our website; developing,
implementing and maintaining an electronic commerce website and/or related
strategies; maintaining and developing one or more websites devoted to the
System, the Marks and/or the brand; providing promotional and other marketing
materials and services to the Franchises operated under the System; and the
salaries of our employees to the extent such employees provide services in
conjunction with System marketing activities. The Brand Fund may also be used
to provide rebates or reimbursements to franchisees for local expenditures on
products, services, or improvements, approved in advance by us, which products,
services, or improvements we will have the right to determine, that we believe will
promote general public awareness and favorably support for the System. We will
have the sole right to decide how the Brand Fund creates, places, and pays for
marketing. As noted above, we may allocate a reasonable amount of the Brand
Fund toward the cost of our website’s maintenance and further development. The
website may have a section relating to our franchise opportunity, and all
advertising and promotional materials may reflect the availability of Franchises.
Otherwise, we do not use Brand Fund monies for advertising that is principally a
solicitation for the sale of franchises. As used in the Franchise Agreement, the term
“website” means an interactive electronic document contained in a network of
computers linked by communications software. The term website includes the
Internet and World Wide Web home pages. (Franchise Agreement, Section 10.3.2)

You must contribute to the Brand Fund in the manner we specify, which is
uninform amongst franchisees. All sums you pay to the Brand Fund will be
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maintained in an account separate from our other monies. (Franchise Agreement,
Section 10.3.3) We do not contribute to the brand fund.

4. The Brand Fund will not be used to defray our general operating expenses,
provided, however, that we will have the right to charge the Brand Fund for the
reasonable administrative costs and overhead that we incur in activities reasonably
related to the direction and implementation of the Brand Fund and marketing
programs for you and the System (for example, costs of personnel for creating and
implementing, associated overhead, advertising, merchandising, promotional and
marketing programs, and accounting services reasonably related to the operation
and functions of the Brand Fund). The Brand Fund and its earnings will not
otherwise inure to our direct benefit. We or our designee will maintain separate
bookkeeping accounts for the Brand Fund. (Franchise Agreement, Section 10.3.3)

5. The Brand Fund is not a trust. We do not assume any fiduciary obligation
to you or any other franchisee for maintaining, directing, or administering the
Brand Fund or for any other reason. An unaudited statement of the operations of
the Brand Fund as shown on the books of the Brand Fund is prepared annually by
us and will be made available to you on an annual basis, upon request. The Brand
Fund is not audited. (Franchise Agreement, Section 10.3.4)

6. Although the Brand Fund is intended to be of perpetual duration, we
maintain the right to terminate the Brand Fund. The Brand Fund will not be
terminated, however, until all monies in the Brand Fund have been spent for
marketing or promotional purposes. (Franchise Agreement, Section 10.3.5). As of
the publication date hereof, we have not collected any Brand Fund contributions,
there is no cash on hand and no expenses have been charged to the Brand Fund.
We anticipate beginning operations, and accounting, of the brand fund following
the publication of this document.

Franchisee Advisory Council

We have the right, in our sole discretion, to require you to become a member of
and participate actively in a franchise advisory council (“Advisory Council”) in your area.
You must participate actively in the Advisory Council as we designate and participate in
all Advisory Council meetings approved by us. We have the right to amend the governing
documents for the Advisory Council in our sole discretion at any time. We will determine
the topic areas to be considered by the Advisory Council. The purposes of the Advisory
Council will include exchanging ideas and problem-solving methods, advising us on
expenditures for system-wide advertising, and coordinating franchisee efforts. Amounts
and expenditures may vary from time to time due to variations in Advisory Council
participation and costs, as determined by the Advisory Council, and as approved by us.
We will have the right to change or dissolve the Advisory Council at any time in our sole
discretion. (Franchise Agreement, Section 5.16.)

Independent Access to Information. We have a right and you are required to
provide us with independent access to the information that will be generated or stored in
your computer systems, which includes, but is not limited to, customer, transaction, and
operational information. We have the right to review your business operations, in person,
by mail, or electronically, and to inspect your operations and obtain your paper and
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electronic business records related to the Franchised Business and any other operations
taking place through your Franchised Business.

Websites and other E-Commerce

You may not offer or promote or sell any products or services or make any use of
the Marks, through the Internet, including the use of websites, domain names, uniform
resource locators, keywords, linking, search engines (and search engine optimization
techniques), banner ads, meta-tags, marketing, auction sites, e-commerce (as defined
below) and co-branding arrangements without our prior written approval. (Franchise
Agreement, Section 10.8)

We currently require that any franchisee Internet presence be through our website
for the System. Each franchisee will have its location listed on our website. You must
follow our intranet and Internet usage rules, policies, and requirements. We retain the
sole right to use the Marks on the Internet, including on websites, as domain names,
directory addresses, search terms and meta-tags, and in connection with linking,
marketing, co-branding, and other arrangements.

Technology Systems

We have the right to require that you purchase and maintain a Technology System,
including: (a) back office systems, data, audio, video, and phone, voice storage, retrieval,
and transmission systems for use at the Franchise, between or among other franchisees,
the corporate units and us; (b) physical, electronic, and other security systems; (c)printers
and other peripheral devices; (d)archival back-up systems; (e)communication systems
(including without limitation email and phone systems); and (f) Internet access mode and
speed. (Franchise Agreement, Sections 3.6 and 5.13)

We may also develop, have developed, or license computer programs and other
services and systems related to the technology matters. You must comply with our
standards and specifications regarding the Technology System, which may require that
you enter into licenses or agreements and pay fees to us or approved suppliers. These fees
may include expenses and fees for development of programs and services, licensing fees
to obtain the rights to use the Technology System, and maintenance and/or support fees.
You will be required to license QuickBooks® software and set it up in accordance with
our instructions to ensure that we have access to your data for accounting and reporting
purposes. You will be required to license and use a customer database software system
as we designate and ensure that we have full and unrestricted access to all such data.

We estimate that these systems will cost between $3,000 and $6,000 to purchase.

ITEM 12
TERRITORY

Franchise Agreement

Your Franchise is for a specific location approved by us and without your
designated Territory. You may not conduct the business of your Franchise at any site other
than the approved location without our prior written consent. will be operated from an
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approved site which includes a Showroom and office within a specified Territory. Your
Franchise must comply with certain design and appearance standards specified in the
Operations Manual.

Your Territory will be negotiated by you and us before you sign the Franchise
Agreement and specifically described in the Franchise Agreement. In negotiating the
Territory, we may examine population, median household income, traffic flow, presence
of businesses, location of competitors, demographic, and other market conditions. A
Territory will generally consist of up to 100,000 owner occupied households.

Under the Franchise Agreement, you are granted a non-exclusive, protected
Territory. Provided that you remain in compliance with the Franchise Agreements,
Manual, and all other agreements with us, the Territory will remain Protected. We will
not sell other Franchises under the System to any other franchisee within your Protected
Territory. You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from
other franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or
competitive brands that we control.

In addition, we have the right to engage in any of the following activities (directly
or through an affiliate), and to grant to others the right to engage in any of the following
activities, within a Protected Territory:

1. to operate and permit franchisees or others to establish and operate
Franchises at any location within or outside the Territory
notwithstanding their actual or threatened impact on sales of the
Franchise;

2. to operate or permit franchisees or others to establish and operate
businesses at any location under other systems or other marks,
including businesses that may offer or sell products or services that are
the same or similar to the products or services offered from the
Franchise, within or outside the Territory;

3. to sell and distribute, directly or indirectly, or license others to sell and
distribute, directly or indirectly, within or outside of the Territory,
products and services bearing the Marks or similar marks through other
channels of distribution including, without limitation, the internet,
catalogs, or commercial channels other than the on-site installation or
removal of cabinets; and

4. toacquire, be acquired by, or merge with other businesses and to convert
them to the Marks or any other name at any location and such acquiring
or acquired businesses shall not be bound by any Protections applicable
to the Territory

Your Protected Territory status may be revoked only with cause. If you fail to
maintain compliance with all agreements with us (or our Affiliates) or fail to maintain
sufficient equipment and staff to serve all customers in your Territory who desire to
purchase the services and products we offer, then we may revoke the protected status of
your Territory. If we do this, we may allow others to service customers within the
Territory, sell additional franchises within the Territory and/or open a company owned
location within your Territory. If your Protected Territory status is revoked, you could
face competition from other franchisees, and company-owned locations we or our parent
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or affiliates own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we or
our parent or affiliates control. (see Section 1 of the Franchise Agreement).

Unless you receive our prior approval, you may not solicit from persons who reside
outside of your Territory. However, upon our prior approval, you may advertise using
methods that are generally circulated or broadcast throughout your Territory, but that
extend beyond your Territory, such as, but not limited to magazine or newspaper
advertisements, use of mail zones, or radio or television broadcasts, so long as such
generally circulated advertisements or broadcasts are not specifically targeted to reach
areas or clients outside of your Territory.

You will have no guaranteed option or rights of first refusal to purchase any
additional Territories.

You may not relocate your Franchise from its approved location unless you receive
our prior written approval. Your relocation will be at your expense, and we has the right
to charge you for all reasonable costs and expenses we incur to approve and implement
the relocation.

Franchisee may at its option enter into a revenue sharing program (“Revenue
Sharing Program”) with any other franchisee which may permit the out-of-territory
franchisee to operate within Franchisee’s Territory for the purposes of servicing existing
clients who have previously received services within the out of territory franchisee’s own
territory. Franchisee may also enter into a revenue sharing agreement with any other
franchisee as Franchisee deems appropriate to complete extraordinarily large jobs or for
other purposes subject to Franchisor approval which must be received in writing in
advance of any Revenue Sharing Program between franchisees. Franchisor shall not be a
party to any Revenue Sharing Program which shall be conducted solely between
franchisees.

We do not operate or franchise businesses under a different trademark that will
sell goods or services that are the same as or similar to those the franchisee will sell though
we have reserved the right to do so in the future.

ITEM 13
TRADEMARKS

The following is the principal trademark that we license to you. This trademark is
owned by our parent company, Cabinet IQ Holdings, LLC. It is registered on the Principal
Register of the United States Patent and Trademark Office (“USPTO”):

Mark Registration Registration Date
Number
CABINET IQ 6902850 November 15, 2022

Because the federal trademark registration is less than six years old, no affidavits
are required at this time, and no required affidavits have been filed. The registration has
not yet been renewed.
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We and Cabinet IQ Holdings, LLC entered into a license agreement effective
December 28, 2021, under which we obtained the exclusive right to sublicense and
franchise the Marks and the System (the “License Agreement”) throughout the United
States. The term of the License Agreement is perpetual, and it is terminable only if we
materially breach the License Agreement or we and Cabinet IQ Holdings, LLC are no
longer affiliates. Upon termination, Cabinet IQ Holdings, LLC or its designee
automatically assumes agreements with franchisees and developers provided that the
applicable franchisee and/or developer is in good standing under the agreements.

With the exception of the License Agreement, there are no other agreements
currently in effect which significantly limit our rights to use or license the use of the
trademarks, service marks, trade names, logotypes or other commercial symbols in any
manner material to the Business.

There are no currently effective determinations of the United States Patent and
Trademark Office, Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, trademark administrator of any
state, or any court nor any pending interference, opposition or cancellation proceeding,
nor any pending material litigation involving the Marks that is relevant to their use by
you.

We do not actually know of either superior prior rights or infringing uses that could
materially affect your use of the Marks.

Your usage of the Marks and any goodwill established from their use will benefit
us. You will not receive any interest in the Marks. You may not at any time contest the
validity or ownership of the Marks, including any Marks we authorize or license to you
after you sign the Franchise Agreement.

You must not use any Mark or part of any Mark as part of any corporate or trade
name in any modified form, in connection with the sale of any unauthorized product or
service or in any other manner we do not authorize in writing. You must give notices of
trademark and service mark registrations as we specify and obtain fictitious or assumed
name registrations as may be required under applicable law.

You must not use any merchandising, advertising or promotional practice which is
unethical or may be injurious to our business, other franchises or the goodwill associated
with the Marks.

We and our agents will have the right to enter and inspect your Franchise or
observe your operation in the field to make sure you are complying with our standards.
You must provide us and our agents with reasonable accommodation to provide for this
right to inspect.

You must use the designation ®, ™ trademark registration notice as applicable or
otherwise indicate in your advertising that “Cabinet IQ” and all other Marks are our trade
names, trademarks, and Service marks.

You must promptly notify us of any unauthorized use of the Marks, any challenge
to the validity of the Marks, or any challenge to our ownership of, and our right to use and
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to license others to use, or your right to use, the Marks. We have the right to direct and
control any administrative proceeding or litigation involving the Marks, including any
settlement. We have the right, but not the obligation, to take action against uses by others
that may constitute infringement of the Marks.

The Franchise Agreement does not contain any provisions under which we are
required to defend or indemnify you against any claims of infringement or unfair
competition arising out of your use of the Marks. You must promptly notify us of any
claim asserted or litigation instituted by any person, entity, or governmental agency
involving the Marks.

If we undertake the defense or prosecution of any litigation concerning the Marks,
you must sign any documents and agree to do the things as may, in our counsel’s opinion
be necessary to carry out that defense or prosecution, such as becoming a nominal party
to any legal action. Unless the litigation is the result of your use of the Marks in a manner
inconsistent with the terms of your Franchise Agreement, we will reimburse you for your
out-of-pocket costs in doing these things (although you will still be responsible for the
salary costs of your employees) and we will bear the costs of any judgment or settlement.
However, if the litigation results from your use of the Marks in a manner inconsistent
with the terms of the Franchise Agreement, then you will have to reimburse us for the cost
of the litigation, including attorneys’ fees, as well as the cost of any judgment or
settlement.

If it becomes advisable at any time in our sole judgment for you to modify or
discontinue using any Mark or for you and the Franchise to use one or more additional or
substitute trade or service marks, you will have to immediately comply with our
directions. We have no obligation to reimburse you for any expenditures you make
because of any discontinuance or modification.

ITEM 14
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND

PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

Patents

No patents are material to the operation of your Franchise.

Copyrights

We claim copyright protection covering various materials used in our business and
the development and operation of Franchise, including the trade dress, the Manuals,
advertising and promotional materials, and similar materials (discussed below). We have
not registered these materials with the United States Registrar of Copyrights, but we are
not required to do so. We may register one or more of these items or copyrightable
materials in the future.

There are no currently effective determinations of the United States Copyright
Office or any court, nor any pending litigation or other proceedings, regarding any
copyrighted materials. No agreement limits our rights to use or allow franchisees to use
the copyrighted materials. We do not know of any superior prior rights or infringing uses
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that could materially affect your use of the copyrighted materials. No agreement requires
us to protect or defend our copyrights or to indemnify you for any expenses or damages
you incur in any judicial or administrative proceedings involving the copyrighted
materials. No provision in the Franchise Agreement requires you to notify us of claims by
others of rights to, or infringements of, the copyrighted materials. If we require, you must
immediately modify or discontinue using the copyrighted materials. We have no
obligation to reimburse you for any expenditures you make because of any discontinuance
or modification.

Confidential Information

Except for the purpose of operating the Franchise under the Franchise Agreement,
you may never (during Franchise Agreement’s term or later) communicate, disclose, or
use for any person’s benefit any of the confidential information, knowledge, or know how
concerning the operation of the Franchise that may be communicated to you or that you
may learn by virtue of your operation of the Franchise or your operations under the
Franchise Agreement. You may divulge confidential information only to those of your
employees who must have access to it in order to operate the Franchise. Any and all
information, knowledge, know how, and techniques that we designate as confidential will
be deemed confidential for purposes of the Franchise Agreement, including any
information gathered through the Technology System. However, this will not include
information that you can show came to your attention before we disclosed it to you; or
that at any time became a part of the public domain, through publication or
communication by others having the right to do so.

In addition, we may require you, your Manager, and any employee who may have
access to any confidential information to sign non-disclosure and non-competition
covenants. Every one of these covenants must provide that the person signing will
maintain the confidentiality of information that they receive in their employment or
affiliation with you or the Franchise. These agreements must be in a form that we find
satisfactory, and must include, among other things, specific identification of us as a third-
party beneficiary with the independent right to enforce the covenants.

Confidential Manuals

In order to protect our reputation and goodwill and to maintain high standards of
operation under our Marks, you must conduct your business according to the Manuals.
We will lend you one set of our Manuals for the term of the Franchise Agreement. The
Manuals may be multiple volumes with printed text, video, and/or audiotapes and files,
computer disks, and other electronically stored data. We may provide a portion or all the
Manuals (including updates and amendments) and other instructional information and
materials in, or via, electronic media, including through the Internet.

You must always treat in a confidential manner the Manuals, any other Manual we
create (or that we approve) for use with the Franchise, and the information contained in
the Manuals. You must use best efforts to maintain this information as secret and
confidential, protect it from being viewed by others, and treat the Manuals with the same
degree of care as you would treat your most highly confidential documents. You may not
copy, duplicate, record, or otherwise reproduce the Manuals and the related materials, or
any portion of the Manuals (except for the parts of the Manuals that are meant for you to
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copy, which we will clearly mark as such), nor may you otherwise let any unauthorized
person have access to these materials. The Manuals are our sole property. You must
always keep the Manuals in a secure place at the Franchise.

We may periodically revise the contents of the Manuals, and you must make
corresponding revisions to your copy of the Manuals and comply with each new or
changed standard immediately upon receipt of the revision. If there is ever a dispute as to
the contents of the Manuals, our master copy of the Manuals (maintained at our home
office) will be controlling.

You must disclose to us all ideas, concepts, methods, techniques, and products that
you conceive or develop during the term of the Franchise Agreement relating to the
development and/or operation of Franchises. You will grant to us and procure from your
affiliates, owners, agents, or employees a perpetual, non-exclusive, and worldwide right
for us (and our affiliates, franchisees, and other licensees) to use any such ideas, concepts,
methods, techniques and products. You will do so in consideration of the grant of the
Franchise, and without the payment by us of additional consideration.

ITEM 15
OBLIGATIONS OF THE FRANCHISEE TO PARTICIPATE IN

THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

You must either directly participate or delegate as defined below. You, or if the
franchisee is an entity, the majority shareholder or owner of the franchisee must devote
your personal full-time attention and best efforts to the management and operation of the
Franchise, or you may delegate the day-to-day operation of the Franchise to a Manager
who has completed, and passed to our satisfaction, the required training course at our
facility.

You must hire a full-time Salesperson, or if you act as the full-time salesperson,
you must hire a full-time Manager. Your Manager and Salesperson must be approved by
us but need not have an equity interest in the franchising entity. Your Manager and
Salesperson must attend and successfully complete the required training and certification
at our facility. Any replacement Manager or Salesperson must attend and successfully
complete the required training and certification at our facility.

We require your management staff and any other highly trained personnel and
each equity owner of the franchise entity to sign a non-disclosure and non-competition
agreement, the current form of which is attached to the Franchise Agreement.

Each present and future equity owner of a franchisee entity must jointly and
severally guarantee your performance of each and every provision of the Franchise
Agreement by executing the Guarantee, Indemnification and Acknowledgement in the
form attached to the Franchise Agreement. We may also require a guarantee from the
family of an entity owner, including spouse or domestic partner, and any entities
controlled in the aggregate by any of these individuals. Our current policy is that we
generally will not require a guarantee from a spouse or domestic partner at the time of
signing the Franchise Agreement if the individual franchisee, or the individual owner of
the franchisee that is signing the Guarantee, Indemnification and Acknowledgement has
a net worth (excluding residences) of at least one million dollars. Currently the spousal

40 Cabinet IQ FDD 2025



guarantee only becomes effective upon a material transfer of assets from the spouse or
franchisee entity which own the franchise to the spouse which previously did not have an
ownership interest in the franchise. We may revise our policy from time to time.

You must maintain a competent, conscientious, trained staff in numbers sufficient
to promptly service customers. You must also take any steps as are necessary to ensure
that all Franchise employees and subcontractors preserve good customer relations,
adhere to our performance guidelines in the Manuals and comply with all applicable laws,
regulations, and guidelines.

You must prominently display, by posting a sign within public view on or in the
premises or Cabinet IQ Vehicle, that clearly indicates that the Franchise is independently
owned and operated as a Cabinet IQ franchisee and not as our agent.

ITEM 16
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You must offer and sell all products and services which are part of the System and
all services and products which we incorporate into the System in the future. You may
only offer those products and services which we have previously approved. You may not
use our Marks for any other business, and you may not conduct any other business from
your location. You cannot engage in any business that competes with your Franchise,
with us or our affiliates, or with Franchises owned by other franchisees whether such
business is inside or outside of your Territory.

We may change, supplement, improve or modify the System at any time as we
deem appropriate. These changes may include, among others, the adoption or use of new
or different products, services, equipment and furnishings for Franchise, development of
new techniques and methods and the use of new or different marks or copyrights. You
must, upon reasonable notice, accept, adopt, implement, use, and display any change to
the System that we make, at your expense.

ITEM 17
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

This table lists important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You should
read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document.

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

Section in
Provision Franchise Summary
Agreement

a. Length of the Franchise

2.1 10 years
Term 8 Y

If you have complied with all the
provisions in the Franchise Agreement,
b. Renewal or extension of § 2.0 you may renew the Franchise for two

the Term ' additional terms of 5 years each, subject
to certain contractual requirements
described in “c” below.

4 1 Cabinet IQ FDD 2025



Requirements for you to
renew or extend

§2.2

Notice, update to our standards,
satisfaction of monetary obligations,
compliance with Franchise Agreement,
release us, sign new Franchise
Agreement on then current form, pay
renewal fee, and others; see §§ 2.2.1 —
2.2.9 in Franchise Agreement. The new
agreement that you must sigh at renewal
may contain terms and conditions that
are materially different than the original
contract.

. Termination by you

Not
applicable

Not applicable

. Termination by us without
cause

Not
applicable

Not applicable

Termination by us with
cause

§13

Default under Franchise Agreement,
bankruptcy, abandonment, and other
grounds; see § 13 of the Franchise
Agreement. Under the U.S. Bankruptcy
Code, we may be unable to terminate the
agreement merely because you make a
bankruptcy filing.

. “Cause” defined — Curable

defaults

§13.3

All other defaults not specified in §§ 13.1
and 13.2 of the Franchise Agreement

. “Cause” defined — non-

curable defaults

§§ 13.1 and
13.2

Bankruptcy, abandonment, conviction of
felony, failure to locate site or lose of
site, failure to complete training,
violation of covenants, maintaining false
books or records, three or more defaults
in 12 months, default under other
agreements, transfer in violation of
Franchise Agreement and others; see §
13.2 of the Franchise Agreement. Under
the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, we may be
unable to terminate the agreement
merely because you make a bankruptcy
filing.

Your obligations on
termination / nonrenewal

8§14

Cease operating Franchise, cease use of
Marks, assign lease/modify premises,
cancel assumed names, payment of
amounts due, return Manual and others;
see §8 14.1 — 14.3 of the Franchise
Agreement.

Assignment of contract by
us

§12.1

There are no limits on our right to assign
the Franchise Agreement.

. “Transfer” by you —
defined

8§ 12.3.1 -
12.3.4

Includes transfer of any interest.

Certain transfers to a spouse, adult child
or adult sibling are exempt from some
Transfer requirements under § 12.9.
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Our approval of transfer
by you

8124

We have the right to approve transfers.

. Conditions for our
approval of transfer

§12.4

Release us, sign new Franchise
Agreement, payment of transfer fee,
upgrade the Franchise to our standards,
transferee complete training and others;
see §§ 12.4.1 — 12.4.11 of the Franchise
Agreement.

. Our right of first refusal to
acquire your business

§12.5

We have a right of first refusal. If you or
any of your owners wants to accept an
offer to purchase you, any material asset
or any direct or indirect interest in you,
you and/or the owner must first offer the
assets or interest to us under the same
terms and conditions. If we do not wish
to acquire the assets or interest, you
and/or the owner may then transfer
them to the third party pending our
approval as listed above.

. Our option to purchase
your business

§§814.10

Upon the expiration or Termination of
your Franchise Agreement Term, we
have the option to purchase your
furnishings, equipment, material, or
inventory at the lesser of fair market
value or your book value, free of all liens
and encumbrances. To exercise this
option, we must notify you of our
election within 30 days of expiration or
termination, and must complete the
purchase within 60 days after our notice
to you.

. Your death or disability

88 12.6 —
12.8

Your estate must transfer your interest
in the Franchise to a third party we have
approved within a year after death or six
months after the onset of a disability.

. Non-competition
covenants during the term
of the franchise

§15.2

Includes prohibition on engaging in any
“Competitive Business,” which shall
mean a business which offers cabinets or
other construction related services. (see
§ 15.2 of the Franchise Agreement).

Non-competition
covenants after the
franchise is terminated or
expires

§15.3

Includes a two-year prohibition similar
to “q” above, (a) at the Approved
Location, (b) within a 100 mile radius of
the Territory, or (c) within a 100 mile
radius of the territory of any other
Franchisees then-operating under the

System.

Modification of the
agreement

§ 21

Must be in writing signed by both
parties.
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t. Integration / merger

21
clause 3

Only the terms of the Franchise
Agreement are binding (subject to state
law). Any representations or promises
made outside the Disclosure Document
and Franchise Agreement may not be
enforceable.

u. Dispute resolution by

arbitration or mediation §23.2

All disputes will be resolved by
arbitration at the American Arbitration
Association office located nearest our
principal place of business (currently,
Austin, Texas), subject to applicable
state law (except for injunctive relief).
(see note below).

§§ 23.2 and

. Choice of f
v oice of forum 23.9

The parties consent to venue in the
federal or state courts in the county in
which our principal place of business is
located (currently Brevard County,
Texas), subject to applicable state law
(see note below).

w. Choice of law §23.1

The laws of Texas shall govern, subject
to applicable state law. (see Note below).

Please refer to the disclosure addenda and contractual amendments appended to this
Disclosure Document for any additional terms that may be required under applicable
state law. These additional disclosures, if any appear in an addendum or rider in

Exhibit G.

ITEM 18

PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not currently use any public figures to promote our franchise.

ITEM 19

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the
actual or potential financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned
outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for the information, and if the information is included
in the Disclosure Document. Financial performance information that differs from that
included in this Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the actual records
of an existing outlet a franchisee is considering buying, or (2) a franchisor supplements
the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about
possible performance at a particular location or under particular circumstances.

The following tables and accompanying footnotes are a historical financial

performance representation.
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Table 1 — Affiliate Gross Revenues, Gross Profit, Disclosed Expenses, and
Adjusted Profit for the period from January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024

Table 1 provides Gross Revenues, Gross Profit, Disclosed Expenses, and Adjusted
Profit for our Affiliate’s two Businesses located in Cedar Park, Texas and Austin, Texas
from January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024. See Item 1 for more information regarding
our Affiliate and these Businesses.

2024
Location - Cabinet 1Q of Cedar Park Location - Cabinet 1Q of Austin
Year 7 Store Year 3 Store

Gross Revenue (1) ) 2,145,793 Gross Revenue (1) S 1,720,215
Materials (2) S 909,816 42.4%| |Materials (2) S 660,563 38.4%
Installation Labor (3) S 246,766 11.5%| |Installation Labor (3) S 166,861 9.7%
Gross Profit (4) S 989,211 46.1%| |Gross Profit (4) S 892,792 51.9%
Disclosed Expenses 8 ofGroms Disclosed Expenses %6 of Grass
Revenue Revenue

Payroll and Commissions Payroll and Commissions
Sales Payroll and Commissions (5) S 124,739 5.8% Sales Payroll and Commissions (5) S 112,114 6.5%
General Manager (6) S 58,880 2.7% General Manager (6) S 63,2278 3.7%
Installation Manager (7) S 21,395 1.0% Installation Manager (7) S 22,993 1.3%
Advertising & Marketing (8) S 88,427 4.1%)| |Advertising & Marketing (8) S 75401 4.4%
Royalty (9) $ 128,748 6.0%| |Royalty (9) $ 103,213 6.0%
National Brand Fund (10) S 21,458 1.0%| |National Brand Fund (10) S 17,202 1.0%
Bank Services (11) S 677 0.0%| |Bank Services (11) S - 0.0%
Insurance (12) S 8,759 0.4%| |Insurance (12) S 10,238 0.6%
Office Supplies and Software (13) S 23,605 1.1%| |Office Supplies and Software (13) S 15,550 0.9%
Legal & Professional Services (14) S 9,614 0.4%)| |Legal & Professional Services (14) S 10,333 0.6%
Merchant Account Fees (15) S 6,334 0.3%]| |Merchant Account Fees (15) S 5,374 0.3%
Rent (16) $ 93,750 4.4%| |Rent (16) $ 37,620 2.2%
Utilities (17) $ 12,015 0.6%| |Utilities (17) $ 7,493 0.4%
Repairs and Maintenance (18) S 14,373 0.7%| |Repairs and Maintenance (18) S 2,716 0.2%
Showroom Materials (19) ) 1,842 0.1%| |Showroom Materials (19) S 1,528 0.1%
Tools Supplies and Consumables (20) S 5,408 0.3%| |Tools Supplies and Consumables (20) S 1,350 0.1%
Total Disclosed Expenses (21) S 620,024 28.9%| |Total Disclosed Expenses (21) S 486,403 28.3%
Adjusted Profit $ (22) $ 369,187 17.2%| |Adjusted Profit $ (22) $ 406,389 23.6%

Table 1 Notes:

(1) “Gross Revenues” are the total amount received by or in connection with
our Affiliate’s Businesses from, connected with or related to the sale of any services,
products, goods or merchandise and all business transacted related to these Businesses;
including jobs completed and jobs sold excluding only the following (a) the amount of any
refunds to clients for bona fide returns of goods sold or cancellations; and (b) the amount
of any excise or sales tax levied upon retail sales and paid over to the appropriate
governmental authority.

(2) '"Materials" are the cost of materials used in the services, including
cabinets, countertops, and other materials.
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(3) '"Installation Labor" includes installation labor costs.

(4) "Gross Profit" is Gross Revenues less COGS (Installation Labor and
Materials).

(5) "Sales Payroll and Commissions" includes sales base pay plus
commissions.

(6) '"General Manager" includes salary. Note: These costs could be higher
for your Business on a per location basis as the General Manager was shared between the
two locations.

(7) “Installation Manager” includes salary. Note: These costs could be
higher for your Business on a per location basis as Installation Manager was shared
between the two locations.

(8) '"Advertising & Marketing' includes all costs incurred for advertising.
(9) “Royalty" is the sum of the Royalty Fee during the measurement period.

(10) "Brand Fund" is the amount that was contributed by our Affiliate to the
Brand Fund. See Items 6 and 11 for more information. The current required Brand Fund
contribution for your Business is 1%, although it can be increased to up to 2% of Gross
Revenues.

(11) "Bank Services" includes all banking charges.
(12) '"Insurance" includes auto insurance and business liability.

(13) "Office Supplies and Software'" includes the cost of general office
supplies, Design 20/20 software, QuickBooks, CRM software, DocuSign software,
computers, monitors, office furniture and appliances.

(14) "Legal and Professional Services" includes legal advice, accounting
services, and other professional services.

(15) "Merchant Account Fees" includes ACH processing fees and credit card
processing fees.

(16) "Rent" includes showroom space rental.
(17) "Utilities" includes internet, electric, water, and bulk trash service.

(18) "Repairs and Maintenance" includes cleaning service, consumer trash
service, showroom lighting, warehouse and showroom maintenance.

(19) "Showroom Materials" includes cabinet displays for showroom.

(20) "Tools Supplies and Consumables" is defined as warehouse and
installer tools, installation consumables, and warehouse supplies.
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(21) "Total Disclosed Expenses" is the sum of the Disclosed Expenses in this
table covered by Notes 5 through 19.

(22) "Adjusted Profit" is defined as Gross Profit less the Total Disclosed
Expenses. Adjusted Profit is not equal to net profit or income and, except as to Cost of
Goods Sold and the Total Disclosed Expenses, does not include the deduction of all other
expenses incurred by a Franchised Business including, but not limited to, other operating
expenses, management wages, interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization.

(23) You will incur other additional costs and expenses in operating a Business
including but not limited to amounts due to us under the Franchise Agreement. See Items
6 and 7 for further information.

| Table 2 — Ticket Amounts |

The following table reflects the high ticket, average ticket, median ticket, and low
ticket received by our Affiliate’s Businesses in Cedar Park, Texas and Austin, Texas for the
period from January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024. For purposes of this Table, each
“Ticket” is the Gross Revenues received on for an individual project involving the
installation of cabinets or countertops

High Ticket $282,500
Average Ticket $34,212
Median Ticket $26,296
Low Ticket $990

| Table 3 — Franchise Location Statistics |

The following table reflects the Gross Revenues, Gross Profit Margin, high ticket,
average ticket, median ticket, and low ticket received by the one franchisee that had a
Showroom open throughout the period July 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024 (the
“Measurement Period”).

Gross Revenues (July 1st-December 31st, 2024) $519,265

Gross Profit Margin 47.2%

High Ticket $54,460

Average Ticket $30,531

Median Ticket $29,956

Low Ticket $5,726
Table 3 Notes:

(6)) This data represents the 1 franchised location (the “Reporting Franchisee”)
that had a Showroom in operation throughout the Measurement Period. This franchisee

had 1 territory. It does not include the 1 franchisee which had a Showroom open, but for
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only a portion of the Measurement Period, and it does not include the 13 franchisees that
were open during some portion of the Measurement Period but did not have a Showroom
open during the Measurement Period

(2) Gross Profit Margin by Reporting Franchisee during Measurement Period.
Gross Profit Margin is defined as Gross Revenue minus Material and Labor costs related
to the job.

You should develop your own business plan for your Business, including capital
budgets, financial statements, projections and other appropriate factors. You are
encouraged to consult with your own accounting, business and legal advisors in doing so.
The business plan should make necessary allowances for economic downturns, periods of
inflation and unemployment, and other negative economic influences.

K XKIHXKXXXXXXXX XX

The financial information provided above has not been audited.

Written substantiation for the financial performance representation will be
made available to prospective franchisees upon reasonable request.

Some outlets have earned this amount. Your individual results may
differ. There is no assurance that you’ll earn as much.

We recommend that you make your own independent investigation to determine
whether or not the Franchise may be profitable and that you consult with an attorney and
other advisors prior to executing the Franchise Agreement.

Other than the preceding financial performance representation, we do not make
any representations about a franchisee’s future financial performance or the past financial
performance of company-owned or franchised outlets. We also do not authorize our
employees or representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing.
If you are purchasing an existing unit; however, we may provide you with the actual
records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial performance information or
projections of your future income you should report it to our CEO by contacting Michael
Hartel at 2419 S. Bell Blvd., Cedar Park, Texas 78613, 512-729-3982, the Federal Trade
Commission and the appropriate state agencies.

ITEM 20
OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

Table No. 1
Systemwide Outlet Summary
for years 2022 to 2024

Outlets at Start Outlets at the
Omitleie Ty e of the Year End of the Year Iisi Ul ze
2022 0 0 0
Franchised 2023 0 0 0
2024 0 15 +15
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2022 2 2 0
Company Owned Outlets 2023 2 2 0
2024 2 2 0
2022 2 2 o
Total Outlets 2023 2 2 0
2024 2 17 +15
Table No. 2

Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners (other than the Franchisor)

for years 2022 to 2024

State Year Number of Transfers
2022 0
None 2023 (6]
2024 0
2022 0
Total 2023 0o
2024 0
Table No. 3
Status of Franchised Outlets
for years 2022 to 2024
Outlets Reacqui Ceased
. . Outlets at
at Start | Outlets | Termin Non- red by | Operations
State Year . . End of
ofthe | Opened | ations | Renewals | Franchis | — Other
the Year
Year or Reasons
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Alabama | 2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2024 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Arizona 2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2024 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Florida 2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2024 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Georgia 2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2024 0 2 0 0 0 0 2
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Kansas 2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2024 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
North
X 2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Carolina
2024 0 3 0 0 0 0 3
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Nebraska | 2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2024 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
South
X 2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Carolina
2024 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Texas 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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2023 o) o) o) o) o) o) 0
2024 o) 2 o) o) o) o) 2
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Utah 2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2024 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
. . | 2022 o) 0 o) o) o) o) 0
Wisconsi
n 2023 o) o) o) o) o) o) 0
2024 o) 1 o) o) o) o) 1
2022 0o 0o 0o 0o 0o 0o 0o
Total 2023 0o 0o 0o 0o 0o 0o 0
2024 o 15 0 0 0 0 15
Table No. 4 — Status of Company Owned Outlets!
for years 2022 to 2024
Outlets Outlets
3 at Start | Outlets Reacquired Outlets Outlets Sold Outlets at
tate Year to End of the
ofthe | Opened from Closed F hi
. ranchisee Year
Year Franchisee
2022 2 0 0 0 0 2
Texas 2023 2 0 0 0 0 2
2024 2 o) o) o) 0 2
2022 2 0 0 0 0 2
Total 2023 2 0o 0o 0o 0o 2
2024 2 o 0o 0o 0 2
Table No. 5 — Projected Openings as of December 31, 2024
Alg?ezfrllléiis Projected New Projected New Company-
State . Franchised Outlet in Owned Outlet In the Next
Signed But Outlet The N . .
e Next Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Not Opened
Alabama 0 1 0
Arizona 1 2 0
Colorado 2 2 0
Florida 3 3 0
Georgia 0 2 0
Kansas o o (]
Kentucky 1 1 0
New Jersey 2 1 0
North Carolina 0 1 0
South Carolina 1 1 0
Tennessee 1 2 (o]
Texas 3 4 0
Total 14 20 0o

Notes: If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other
buyers when you leave the franchise system

1 These are owned by an affiliate of Franchisor.
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Exhibit H contains the names of all current franchisees (as of the end of our last fiscal
year) and the address and telephone number of each of their outlets.

Exhibit H also contains the name, city and state, and current business telephone number,
or if unknown, the last known home telephone number of every franchisee who had an
outlet terminated, canceled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased
to do business under the franchise agreement during the most recently completed fiscal
year or who have not communicated with us within 10 weeks of the disclosure document
issuance date.

During the last three fiscal years, no franchisees have signed any contract, order, or
settlement provision that directly or indirectly restricts a current or former franchisee
from discussing his or her personal experience as a franchisee in our system with any
prospective franchisee.

As of the date of the issuance of this FDD, there are no trademark specific franchisee
organizations associated with the franchise system being offered in this FDD.

ITEM 21
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our fiscal year ends on December 31st. Exhibit C to this Franchise Disclosure Document
includes our audited financial statements, as of December 31, 2024; December 31, 2023;
and December 31, 2022.

ITEM 22
CONTRACTS

Copies of the following contracts are attached to this Disclosure Document
1. Franchise Agreement and Exhibits — Exhibit B
2. General Release — Exhibit F
3. State Specific Addenda and Riders — Exhibit G
4. Small Business Administration Addendum — Exhibit I

There are no other contracts or agreements that we provide to be signed by you.

ITEM 23
RECEIPTS

The Receipt pages are attached as the last two pages of this disclosure document.
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EXHIBIT A

LIST OF STATE FRANCHISE ADMINISTRATORS AND AGENTS FOR

SERVICE OF PROCESS.

We may register this Disclosure Document in some or all of the following states in accordance
with the applicable state law. If and when we pursue franchise registration, or otherwise comply
with the franchise investment laws, in these states, the following are the state administrators
responsible or the review, registration, and oversight of franchises in each state and the state
offices or officials that we will designate as our agents for service of process in those states:

State

State Administrator

Agent for Service of Process (if
different from State Administrator)

California

Commissioner of Financial Protection and Innovation
Department of Financial Protection and Innovation
2101 Arena Blvd.

Sacramento, CA 95834

866-275-2677

www.dfpi.ca.gov

Ask.DFPI@difpi.ca.gov

Hawaii

Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division

Commissioner of Securities

P.O. Box 40

Honolulu, HI 96810

(808) 586-2722

Commissioner of Securities

Department of Commerce and Consumer
Affairs

Business Registration Division

Securities Compliance Branch

335 Merchant Street, Room 203

Honolulu, HI 96813

Illinois

Franchise Burecau

Office of Attorney General
500 South Second Street
Springfield, IL 62706
(217) 782-4465

Indiana

Franchise Section

Indiana Securities Division
Secretary of State

Room E-111

302 W. Washington Street
Indianapolis, IN 46204
(317) 232-6681

Maryland

Office of the Attorney General
Division of Securities

200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, MD 21202-2020
(410) 576-6360

Maryland Commissioner of Securities
200 St. Paul Place
Baltimore, MD 21202-2020

Michigan

Michigan Attorney General's Office
Consumer Protection Division
Attn: Franchise Section

525 W. Ottawa Street

Williams Building, 1st Floor
Lansing, MI 48933

(517)373-7117
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Agent for Service of Process (if

. el L et different from State Administrator)
Minnesota Department of Commerce Commissioner of Commerce
Securities-Franchise Registration Minnesota Department of Commerce

Minnesota 85 7" Place East, Suite 280 85 7" Place East, Suite 280
St. Paul, MN 55101-2198 St. Paul, MN 55101-2198
(651) 539-1500 (651) 539-1500
NYS Department of Law
Investor Protection Bureau Secretary of State
New York 28 Liberty St. 21st Floor 99 Washington Avenue
New York, NY 10005 Albany, NY 12231
212-416-8222
North Dakota Securities Department
600 East Boulevard Ave., State Capital Fifth Floor,
North Dakota Dept. 414
Bismarck, ND 58505-0510
(701) 328-4712
Department of Consumer & Business Services
Division of Finance and Corporate Securities
Oregon Labor and Industries Building
Salem, Oregon 97310
(503) 378-4140
Department of Business Regulation
Securities Division
1511 Pontiac Avenue
Rhode Island Building 68-2
Cranston, RI 02920-4407
(401) 462-9527
Division of Insurance
Securities Regulation
South Dakota 124 South Euclid Suite 104
Pierre, SD 57501-3185
(605) 773-3563
?;?;8 ggg{’ﬁz?g t?;;nmmswn Clerk of the 'State Corporation
Virginia 9th Floor Commlsswp
. 1300 East Main Street, 1st Floor
Richmond, VA 23219 Richmond, VA 23219
(804) 371-9051 ’
Department of Financial Institutions Department of Financial Institutions
Securities Division Securities Division
Washington P.O. Box 41200 150 Israel Rd SW
Olympia, WA 98504-1200 Tumwater, WA 98501
(360) 902-8760 (360) 902-8760
Division of Securities Division of Securities
Department of Financial Institutions Department of Financial Institutions
Wisconsin 4822 Madison Yards Way 4822 Madison Yards Way

Madison, WI 53705
(608) 266-0448

Madison, WI 53705
(608) 261-7577
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EXHIBIT B
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND EXHIBITS

MULTISTATE FORM

CABINET IQ

CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

Franchisee Name

Date of Agreement
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SUMMARY PAGE

. Effective Date:

[y

2. Franchisee’s Name:

3. Franchisee’s State of Organization (if applicable):

4. Ownership of Franchisee: If the Franchisee is an entity, the following persons
constitute all of the owners of a legal and/or beneficial interest in the franchisee:

Name Percentage Ownership

%

%

%

5. Number of Territories:
6. Territory or Territories (Section 1.1): See Schedule 1 for each Territory.

7. Initial Franchise Fee (Section 4.1): $

8. Accepted Location (Section 5.1):

9. Operating Principal (Section 5.6):

10. Franchisee’s Address for Notices (Section 20):

Franchisee Email Address for Notices:

11. Additional Terms (if any) (Section 24.9):

Initials: (CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC) (Franchisee)
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Schedule 1
(Territory or Territories)
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FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the date (the
“Effective Date”) set forth on the Summary Page, which appears after the cover page of
this Agreement (the “Summary Page”) (the Summary Page and all appendices and
schedules attached to this Agreement are hereby incorporated by this reference), by and
between CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC, a Texas limited liability company with its
principal place of business at 2419 S. Bell Blvd, Austin, Texas 78613 (“Franchisor” or “we”
or “us”), and the entity identified on the Summary Page as the franchisee (“Franchisee”
or “you”) with its principal place of business as set forth on the Summary Page.

BACKGROUND:

A. Franchisor owns a format and system (the “System”) relating to the
establishment, development and operation of franchises under the Marks, as defined
below, (each a “Franchise”) that offer and provide cabinets evaluation, removal,
installation and related services that operate under the Marks (as defined below) and that
operate a retail showroom (each a “Showroom”) to offer and sell the Franchise’s products
and services.

B. The distinguishing characteristics of the System include, without limitation,
distinctive business formats; procedures; the Manuals (as defined in Section 3.3);
procedures for operations, accounting, collections, management and inventory control;
training and assistance; and advertising and promotional programs; all of which may be
changed, improved, and further developed by Franchisor from time to time;

C. Franchisor identifies the System by mark Cabinet IQ and associated logos,
commercial symbols and such other trade names, mascots, service marks and trademarks
as are now, or in the future, designated by Franchisor as an integral part of the System
("Marks") including but not limited to the currently registered Marks identified on
Exhibit A some of which may be incorporated into other brands or other systems
developed by Franchisor or its affiliates in the future;

D. Franchisor continues to develop, use, and control the use of such Marks to
identify for the public the source of services and products marketed thereunder and under
the System, and to represent the System’s high standards of quality, appearance, and
service; and

E. Franchisee desires to operate a Franchise under the System and using the
Marks, and wishes to obtain a license from Franchisor for that purpose, as well as to
receive the training and other assistance provided by Franchisor in connection therewith;

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. GRANT
1.1. Grant of Rights; Protected Territory. Upon the terms and conditions set
forth in this Agreement, Franchisor hereby grants to Franchisee a non-exclusive
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license (the “License”) to operate a Franchise that specializes in cabinets
evaluation, removal, installation and related services (the “Services”) within
the initial geographic area described on the Summary Page (the “Territory” (if
there are more than one Territory listed on the Summary Page, each Territory may
be referred to as the Territory). Franchisee hereby accepts such License and
undertakes the obligation to operate a Franchise in accordance with this
Agreement during the entire initial term of the License (as specified in Section
2.1). Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that this Territory is non-exclusive but
subject to certain limited protections as defined below.

1.2. Protected Territory. The Territory, as listed on the Summary Page, shall be
designated as “Protected” from the Effective Date of this agreement and shall
remain Protected for the duration of the entire initial term plus any extensions
thereof provided that the Territory may lose its Protected status through any
default of this Agreement or any other agreement with Franchisor or its Affiliates,
or by Franchisee’s failure to maintain sufficient equipment and staff as required in
Franchisor’s discretion to provide, without substantial delay, all Services offered
under the System to customers within the Territory. Any of these events, without
limitation, constitute cause for revocation of Protected status of the Territory
without regard to whether written notice of such default was issued or whether
such default was cured. Protected status may be revoked only with cause and upon
notice. Once the Territory loses its Protected status it may not be regained.

1.2.1 While the Territory is Protected Franchisor shall not provide the Services or
grant other franchisees or others the right to provide the Services using the
Cabinet 1Q System and Cabinet IQ Marks to customers at any location
within the Territory other than through the Revenue Sharing Program as
hereafter defined.

1.2.2 Franchisor and other franchisees may advertise (subject to Franchisor
approval) online or through any other medium without geographical
limitations, including within the Protected Territory, but only Franchisee
shall be permitted to provide the Services under the Cabinet IQ System
within the Protected Territory.

1.3. Reservation of Rights. Franchisor and its affiliates have the right to
conduct any business activities, under any name, in any geographic area, and at
any location, without any liability to Franchisee regardless of the proximity to
or effect on the Franchise. By way of illustration, and without limiting the
foregoing, Franchisor and its affiliates have the right:

1.3.1. to operate and permit franchisees or others to establish and operate
Franchises at any location within or outside the Territory (except as limited by the
Protections defined in section 1.2.1 above) notwithstanding their actual or
threatened impact on sales of the Franchise;

1.3.2. to operate or permit franchisees or others to establish and operate
businesses at any location under other systems or other marks, including
Cabinet IQ FDD 2025
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businesses that may offer or sell products or services that are the same or similar
to the products or services offered from the Franchise, within or outside the
Territory and notwithstanding their proximity to the Territory, Protected status of
Territory, or their threatened or actual impact on sales of the Franchise;

1.3.3. to sell and distribute, directly or indirectly, or license others to sell
and distribute, directly or indirectly, within or outside of the Territory, products
and services bearing the Marks or similar marks through other channels of
distribution including, without limitation, the internet, catalogs, or commercial
channels other than the on-site installation or removal of cabinets; and

1.3.4. to acquire, be acquired by, or merge with other businesses and to
convert them to the Marks or any other name at any location and such acquiring
or acquired businesses shall not be bound by any Protections applicable to the
Territory.

1.3.5. If the Territory is not Protected, the geographic area of the Territory
may be revised by Franchisor from time to time, after the expiration of the initial
term, to include only the Population listed as the actual population in the initial
geographic area increases. If Franchisor reduces the Territory’s geographic area
due to a population increase after the expiration of the initial term, Franchisor
shall first offer the right to purchase such additional population to Franchisee at
the then-current rates, provided that Franchisee is and has been at all times in
compliance with the terms hereunder.

Franchisee acknowledges that the activities described in Section 1.3.1 through 1.3.5 are
only examples, and do not limit the business activities that Franchisor and its
affiliates may undertake. Franchisee also acknowledges that, other than those rights
expressly conveyed through this agreement and narrowly limited to same, Franchisor
has made no other representations concerning Franchisee’s rights in any geographic
territory.

1.4. Advertising and Promotional Materials. Franchisor and Franchisee
acknowledge that advertising and promotional materials created, placed, and/or
distributed by Franchisor, other franchisees operating under the System, or other
entities authorized by Franchisor, may appear in media distributed in, or may be
directed to prospective customers located within, trade areas or market areas
nearby or encompassing the Territory, including on Franchisor’s website or any
related website. Neither Franchisee, nor any other franchisee, is restricted from
advertising or promoting products or services to any customers regardless of where
they reside; provided, however, Franchisee may not perform Services outside of
the Territory, except as expressly provided herein.

1.5. Sale of Products and Services. Unless otherwise permitted by Franchisor,
Franchisee shall offer and sell only then-current products and services previously
authorized by Franchisor, only within the Territory, only in accordance with the
requirements of this Agreement and the then-current procedures set forth in the
Manuals as they may be developed and/or modified from time to time. Franchisee
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may not perform Services using equipment, locations, or vehicles that do not meet
Franchisor’s then-current specifications and standards; any vehicle used in the
operation of the Franchise, including any attached equipment, trailer, or
accessories (each a “Cabinet IQ Vehicle”) must meet Franchisor’s then-current
specifications and standards. Franchisee understands and acknowledges that
certain other Cabinet IQ Franchisees were granted protected territories, and shall
not perform Services in the protected territory of another Cabinet IQ Franchisee.

1.5.1. Franchisee may perform Services for customers that are located
outside of the Territory provided (a) Franchisee has submitted to Franchisor a
written request to provide Services for such customer giving the name of the
customer and its location; and (b) Franchisor has approved such request in
writing. Franchisor may at any time revoke its approval effective upon giving
written notice of the same to Franchisee. Franchisor may require Franchisee to
purchase any territory, at then-current rates, in which Franchisee requests
permission to provide Services if (a) Franchisee requests permission to service
customers in the area more than twice per 9o-day period, or (b) if Franchisee has
operated for at least 12 months and Gross Sales for Services performed outside the
Territory constitute more than 10% of the prior 12 months’ Gross Sales. Any
permission granted to operate outside of the Territory shall not constitute an
ongoing grant of rights to the area and Franchisor retains all rights thereto.

1.5.2. Revenue Sharing Program. Franchisee may at its option enter into a
revenue sharing program (“Revenue Sharing Program”) with any other franchisee
which may permit the out of territory franchisee to operate within Franchisee’s
Territory for the purposes of servicing existing clients who have previously
received services within the out of territory franchisee’s own territory. Franchisee
may also enter into a revenue sharing agreement with any other franchisee as
Franchisee deems appropriate to complete extraordinarily large jobs or for other
purposes subject to Franchisor approval which must be received in writing in
advance of any Revenue Sharing Program between franchisees. Franchisor shall
not be a party to any Revenue Sharing Program which shall be conducted solely
between franchisees.

TERM AND RENEWAL

2.1. Term. Except as otherwise provided herein and unless sooner terminated
in accordance with the provisions hereof, the initial term of the License
commences on the Effective Date and continues until that date which is 10 years
after the Effective Date.

2.2. Renewal. Franchisee may, at its option, request to renew Franchisee’s right
to operate the Franchise for two additional terms of five years each. Franchisee’s
option of renewal is subject to the following conditions, each of which must be met
prior to the renewal:
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2.2.1. Franchisee shall give Franchisor written notice of Franchisee’s
election to renew no fewer than six months, nor more than 12 months, prior to the
end of the initial term;

2.2.2, Franchisee shall update, refurbish, or replace any aspect of the
Franchise and any Cabinet IQ Vehicle to comply, as determined solely by
Franchisor, with Franchisor’s then-current standards;

2.2.3.From the time of Franchisee’s election to renew through the
expiration of the original term, Franchisee and its affiliates shall not have been in
default of any provision of this Agreement, any amendment to this Agreement, any
successor to this Agreement, or any other agreement between Franchisee (and its
affiliates) and Franchisor (and its affiliates); and, as determined in the sole
discretion of Franchisor, Franchisee and its affiliates shall have complied with all
the terms and conditions of this Agreement, such other agreements, as well as the
Operating Standards (as defined in Section 5.9) prescribed by Franchisor during
the term of this Agreement;

2.2.4.Franchisee shall have satisfied all monetary, reporting and other
obligations owed by Franchisee to Franchisor and its affiliates, and shall have
timely met those obligations throughout the term of this Agreement;

2.2.5. Franchisee shall execute Franchisor’s then current form of franchise
agreement; which agreement shall supersede this Agreement in all respects (except
the renewal franchise agreement shall not require payment of an initial franchise
fee or include the ability to renew for any years beyond the aggregate of those
contained in the original term and extensions herein). Franchisee acknowledges
that the terms, conditions, and provisions of the renewal franchise agreement, and
the obligations of the parties thereto, may differ substantially from the terms,
conditions, provisions and obligations in this Agreement, including, without
limitation, a higher percentage royalty fee and advertising contribution;

2.2.6.Franchisee shall pay, in lieu of an initial franchise fee, a renewal fee
equal to 25% of the Initial Franchise Fee or $5,000, whichever is greater;

2.2.7. Franchisee shall execute a general release, in a form prescribed by
Franchisor, of any and all claims against Franchisor and its affiliates, and their
respective officers, directors, agents, and employees; and

2.2.8.Franchisee and its personnel shall comply with Franchisor’s then
current qualification and training requirements, prior to commencement of
operations under the renewal form of franchise agreement.

FRANCHISOR’S DUTIES

3.1. Initial and On-Going Training. Franchisor shall provide for Franchisee’s
Operating Principal (as defined in Section 5.6) Salesperson, and Manager (as
defined in Section 5.6), such initial training programs as Franchisor may

designate, to be conducted at such time(s) and location(s) designated by
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Franchisor. Franchisor may charge a reasonable fee for additional individuals who
attend training. Franchisor shall also provide such ongoing training as it may,
from time to time, deem appropriate. Franchisor shall be responsible for the cost
of instruction and materials, subject to Section 5.6 for the training of the initial
Operating Principal, Manager, and Salesperson. Franchisee shall be responsible
for the cost of training any subsequently hired or replacement staff including
without limitation Operating Principal, Manager and Salesperson.

3.2. Opening Assistance and Training. In addition to the initial training
described in Section 3.1, should Franchisee request additional assistance from
Franchisor to facilitate the opening of the Franchise and should Franchisor, in its
discretion, deem it necessary, feasible and appropriate to comply with the request,
Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor for the expenses of Franchisor providing
such additional assistance, which may include Franchisor's then-current service
fee, as set forth in the Manuals or otherwise communicated to Franchisee in
writing from time to time. Franchisor will provide such additional on-site
assistance as Franchisor deems advisable.

3.3. Manuals. Franchisor shall provide Franchisee access to the confidential
operations manuals (which may include technical bulletins, and other written,
video or audio materials (collectively the “Manuals”), as more fully described in
Section 7.

3.4. Advertising and Promotion. Franchisor shall review, and shall have the
right to approve or disapprove, all advertising and promotional materials that
Franchisee proposes to use pursuant to Section 10.6. In addition, during the
term of this Agreement, Franchisor shall provide Franchisee with such other
advertising assistance, sales advice, or related materials as Franchisor deems
advisable.

3.4.1 Electronic Advertising and Support Services. Franchisor shall
establish and maintain, during the Term of this agreement, a website
and/or other such listings as Franchisor deems appropriate for the Cabinet
IQ brand which shall contain content deemed appropriate in its sole and
unlimited discretion. Franchisor may also maintain certain location
specific or franchise specific sites (“Micro-Sites”) in its sole discretion.
Franchisor may establish and assign a phone number to the Franchise and
if it does so, Franchisee must use this number as its only published and/or
advertised phone number for the Franchise. Franchisor shall retain full
rights to control, suspend, redirect and transfer any web domains and
phone numbers and other listings. Franchisor shall have the right to
suspend or revoke any or all of these services immediately and without
further notice upon Franchisee’s Default of any term of this Agreement,
specifically but not limited to financial or reporting obligations.

3.5. Brand Fund. Franchisor may establish and administer a System-wide
advertising, marketing, promotional, and creative fund, which is referred to as the
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“Brand Fund”, or such other name as Franchisor may designate, in the manner
set forth in Section 10.3.

3.6. Technology System. Franchisor shall specify or require that certain brands,
types, makes, and/or models of communications, computer systems, software and
hardware be used by, between, or among the Franchises, including without
limitation: (a) back office and point of sale systems, data, audio, video, and phone,
voice storage, retrieval, and transmission systems for use at the Franchise, between
or among Cabinet IQ Franchisees, the corporate units and Franchisor; (b) physical,
electronic, and other security systems including without limitation vehicle and/or
Cabinet 1Q Vehicle tracking devices; (c) printers and other peripheral devices;
(d) archival back-up systems; (e) communication systems (including without
limitation email and phone systems); and (f) Internet access mode and speed
(collectively, the “Technology System”). Franchisor may also designate: (i)
software programs that Franchisee must use in connection with the Technology
System (“Required Software”), which Franchisee shall install; (ii) updates,
supplements, modifications, or enhancements to the Required Software, which
Franchisee shall install; (iii) the tangible media upon which such Franchisee shall
record data; (iv) the database file structure of the Technology System; and (v)
additional Technology Systems that must be used.

3.7. On-Going Assistance. Franchisor shall provide periodic assistance to
Franchisee in the marketing, management, and operation of the Franchise as
Franchisor determines at the time(s) and in the manner determined by Franchisor.

3.8. Site and Development Assistance. Franchisor shall review Franchisee’s
proposed site for the Approved Location and the Lease for your proposed
site (as those terms are defined below), and Franchisor shall provide
Franchisee with Franchisor’s criteria for Showrooms.

3.9. Additional Services. Franchisor, at its option, may provide Additional
Services including a call center, recruiting assistance and other services at the
then-current fees. Franchisor shall have no ongoing obligation to offer these
services and may discontinue them for any or all franchisees at any time.

FEES; SALES REPORTING

4.1. Initial Franchise Fee. Franchisee shall pay Franchisor an initial franchise
fee that is specified on the Summary Page (the “Initial Franchise Fee”), which
must be paid in full prior to or upon execution of this Agreement. The Initial
Franchise Fee is not refundable under any circumstances and shall be deemed
earned in full upon receipt, except if Franchisee’s Operating Principal or Manager
fails to successfully complete initial training in accordance with the requirements
of Section 5.6. If Franchisor terminates this Agreement due to any failure to
successfully complete initial training pursuant to Section 5.6, Franchisor will
refund the Initial Franchise Fee, less an amount equal to $5,000 plus any brokers’
fees or other out of pocket expenses Franchisor has incurred, subject to Franchisee’
and its owners’ execution of a General Release.
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4.2. Royalty Fees. Franchisee shall pay Franchisor continuing monthly royalty
fees (“Royalty Fees”) at such time, for such periods, and in such manner as
specified herein, or as otherwise specified in writing by Franchisor. The term
“Gross Sales” means amounts, less refunds, sales tax and chargebacks, derived
from all products or services sold from or through the Franchise, including any sale
of products or services made for cash or credit, or partly for cash and partly for
credit. “Gross Sales” also includes the fair market value of any services or
products received by the Franchisee in barter or in exchange for Franchisee’s
services and products.

For each Territory, the Royalty Fees for a given month shall be the greater of (i) 6%
of Gross Sales, or (ii) the Minimum Royalty Fee per Territory (the “Minimum
Royalty”). The Royalty Fee for any given month is due by the 5t day of the
following month.

There shall be no Minimum Royalty during the first 12 calendar months as
measured from the Effective Date (which for clarity shall begin and include any
portion of any month which includes the Effective Date). However, the Minimum
Royalty shall begin thereafter and shall be

The Minimum Royalty Fee shall be:

Months After the Minimum Royalty per
Signing Date of Your  Territory for the Month

Franchise

Agreement
13-24 $2,500
25-36 $3,750
37+ $5,000

Franchisee expressly acknowledges and agrees that Franchisee’s obligations for
the full and timely payment of Royalty Fees, Brand Fund Contributions (as defined
in Section 10.2), if any, and all other amounts provided for in this Agreement, shall
be absolute and unconditional. Franchisee shall not for any reason delay or
withhold the payment of all or any part of those or any other payments due
hereunder, put the same in escrow or setoff the same against any claims or alleged
claims Franchisee may allege against Franchisor, the Brand Fund or others.
Franchisee shall not, on grounds of any alleged nonperformance by Franchisor or
others, withhold payment of any fee, including without limitation Royalty Fees,
Brand Fund Contributions, nor withhold or delay submission of any reports due
hereunder. Royalty Fees shall be deemed earned in full upon receipt. Franchisee
and Franchisor expressly acknowledge that all services provided by Franchisor to
Franchisee shall not exceed in cost the amount of the Royalty Fees received from
Franchisee.
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4.2.1 Sales Reports. Franchisee shall deliver to Franchisor any and
all reports, statements and/or other information regarding its Gross Sales
and other metrics or data specified by Franchisor at the time(s) and in the
format(s) reasonably requested by Franchisor from time to time (“Sales
Reports”). Upon notice by Franchisor Franchisee must use, and pay the fees
required to use, the Cabinet 1Q proprietary software or other software as
specified by Franchisor, when made available, or other systems or methods
as specified by Franchisor for the purposes of providing Sales Reports in
compliance with this Section. All payments required by this Agreement to
Franchisor, its affiliates, and/or the Brand Fund must be made by the
method or methods that Franchisor specifies from time to time, which may
include, without limitation, payment by deduction as specified in Section
3.8.2, payment via wire transfer or electronic debit to Franchisee’s bank
account. Franchisee must furnish Franchisor and Franchisee’s bank with
all authorizations necessary to effect payment by the methods Franchisor
specifies.

4.3. Overdue Payments or Reports. Any payment, Sales Report or other
required report not actually received by Franchisor on or before the date such
payment or report is due (currently, no later than noon Eastern Time on the 5t
day of each calendar month) shall be deemed overdue. If an attempt to
electronically debit Franchisee’s bank account fails or any other payment method
is declined or returned, the payment shall be deemed not received. Franchisor may
at its option from time to time specify or change the date such reports are due upon
7 days’ Notice to Franchisee. If any payment or required report is overdue,
Franchisor shall collect from Franchisee the greater of the Minimum Royalty
amount, or 1.5 times the Royalty Fees and other fees or amounts due based on the
prior report received (“Presumptive Fees”). The Presumptive Fees shall be
credited towards the actual Royalty Fees due once the Sales Report is received.
Additionally, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor, a late payment/late report charge of
$50 for each day (or portion thereof) that the payment or report is late (collectively
“Late Fee”). Entitlement to such Late Fee shall be in addition to any other
remedies Franchisor may have including without limitation the suspension of
services as defined in §3.4.1 and elsewhere in this Agreement.

4.4. Payments on Behalf of Franchisee. Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor,
within 15 days after any written request by Franchisor which is accompanied by
reasonable substantiating material, any monies (plus a fee equal to 10% of the
amount paid by Franchisor on Franchisee’s behalf) which Franchisor has paid, or
has become obligated to pay, on behalf of Franchisee, by consent or otherwise
under this Agreement.

4.5. Custom Marketing & Services Activation Fee. Franchisee shall pay to
Franchisor, within 10 days after request by Franchisor, a non-refundable Custom

Marketing & Services Activation Fee of $2,000.
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4.6. Showroom Design and Order Preparation Fee. Franchisee shall pay
Franchisor, within 10 days after request by Franchisor, a non-refundable
Showroom Design and Order Preparation Fee of $3,000.

4.7. Software Implementation Assistance Fee. Franchisee shall pay to
Franchisor, within 10 days after request by Franchisor, a non-refundable Software
Implementation Fee of $2,500.

FRANCHISEE’S DUTIES

5.1.1. If the location for the Franchise has been agreed upon prior to the
Effective Date (the “Accepted Location”), it will be set forth on the Summary
Page. If the location is not determined as of the Effective Date or if control of an
Accepted Location cannot be secured by Franchisee after having been accepted in
writing by Franchisor, a new or alternative site must be identified and agreed upon
within 120 days after the Effective Date in accordance with this Section.

5.1.2. To request Franchisor’s acceptance of a site for the Franchise,
Franchisee must submit to Franchisor such information and materials as
Franchisor reasonably requires, together with a letter of intent or other evidence
satisfactory to Franchisor confirming Franchisee’s favorable prospects for
obtaining the site. Franchisor will review the site and provide Franchisee with
Franchisor’s approval or disapproval of the site within 15 business days after the
submission of all requested information. If Franchisor does not provide a response
within such 15-day timeframe, then the site will be deemed disapproved. If
Franchisor determines that an in-person visit to a proposed site is necessary or
appropriate, Franchisee must coordinate and arrange for the visit by Franchisor’s
representative and reimburse Franchisor for its reasonable out-of-pocket expenses
incurred in connection with the site visit. Any site acceptance provided by
Franchisor indicates only that Franchisor considers the site to meet its minimum
site criterion as it exists at the time of the site evaluation

5.1.3. Before Franchisee makes a binding commitment to lease, sublease or
purchase a site for the Accepted Location, Franchisor must approve the site in
writing and approve in writing the proposed lease for the location (the “Lease”)
or purchase agreement or any letter of intent between Franchisee and the third-
party seller or lessor. FRANCHISEE ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT
FRANCHISOR’S APPROVAL OF A PROPOSED SITE IS NOT A WARRANTY OR
REPRESENTATION OF ANY KIND AS TO THE POTENTIAL SUCCESS OR
PROFITABILITY OF THE FRANCHISE. If Franchisee leases the Approved
Location, unless Franchisor waives the requirement in writing, Franchisee must
arrange for the execution of the Lease Rider in the form of Exhibit B by
Franchisee and its landlord in connection with any Lease for the Approved
Location and any other provisions that Franchisor may reasonably require.
Franchisee must deliver to Franchisor the completely executed purchase
agreement or Lease and Lease Rider within 10 days after execution of the Lease or
purchase agreement. Franchisee must comply with the terms and conditions of
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the Lease for the Approved Location. Franchisor is not obligated to execute
Franchisee’s Lease or guarantee a Lease for Franchisee.

5.1.4. Franchisee shall construct the Franchise, including the required
Showroom, in accordance with Franchisor’s requirements. Before commencing
construction of the Franchise, Franchisee, at its expense, shall comply, to
Franchisor’s satisfaction, with all of the following requirements:

5.1.4.1. Franchisee shall comply, at Franchisee’s expense, with all
federal, state and local laws, codes and regulations, including, without limitation,
the applicable provisions of the American with Disabilities Act (as amended, the
“ADA”) regarding the construction and design of the Franchise.

5.1.4.2. If requested by Franchisor, Franchisee shall submit to
Franchisor, for Franchisor’s approval, final plans for construction based upon the
preliminary plans and specifications. Franchisor shall not review, nor shall any
approval be deemed to include, approval or acceptance of Franchisee’s compliance
with federal, state, or local laws and regulations, including the ADA. Once
approved by Franchisor, such final plans shall not thereafter be changed or
modified without the prior written permission of Franchisor.

5.1.4.3. Franchisee shall obtain all permits and certifications
required for the lawful construction of the Franchise. Franchisee shall be
responsible for obtaining all zoning classifications and clearances which may be
required by state or local laws, ordinances, or regulations or which may be
necessary or advisable owing to any restrictive covenants relating to the Franchise.

5.1.4.4. Franchisee shall employ a qualified licensed general
contractor who is acceptable to Franchisor to construct the Franchise and to
complete all improvements. Franchisee shall obtain and maintain in force during
the entire period of construction the insurance required under Article 11 and under
the Manuals. Franchisee shall deliver to Franchisor such proof of such insurance
as Franchisor shall require.

5.1.4.5. During the construction of the Franchise, Franchisee will
permit Franchisor to make such on-site inspections of the Franchise as Franchisor
determines appropriate to evaluate the construction or remodeling of the
Franchise for compliance with Franchisor’s requirements. Prior to opening for
business, Franchisee shall comply with all preopening requirements set forth in
this Agreement, the Manuals, and/or elsewhere in writing by Franchisor.

5.1.4.6. Within 30 days after the opening of the Showroom,
Franchisee shall provide to Franchisor a full breakdown of all costs associated with
the development and construction of the Franchise if so requested by Franchisor.

5.1.5. Franchisee shall use the Franchise solely for the operation of the
Franchise; shall keep the Franchise open and in normal operation for such hours
and days as Franchisor may from time to time specify in the Manuals or as

Franchisor may otherwise approve in writing; and shall refrain from using or
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permitting the use of the Approved Location for any other purpose or activity at
any time. Approved Location shall include the grounds surrounding the Franchise.

5.1.6. Franchisee shall at all times maintain the Approved Location in a
high degree of sanitation, repair, and condition, and in connection therewith shall
make such additions, alterations, repairs, and replacements thereto (but no others
without Franchisor’s prior written consent) as may be required for that purpose,
including, without limitation, such periodic repainting or replacement of obsolete
signs, furnishings, equipment, and decor as Franchisor may reasonably direct. If
at any time in Franchisor's judgment the general state of repair or the appearance
of the Approved Location or its equipment, fixtures, signs or decor does not meet
Franchisor's quality control and standards therefor, Franchisor shall so notify
Franchisee, specifying the action to be taken by Franchisee to correct such
deficiency. If Franchisee fails or refuses to initiate, within 30 days after receipt of
such notice, and thereafter diligently continue a bona fide program to complete
any required maintenance, Franchisor shall have the right, in addition to all other
remedies, to enter upon the Approved Location and effect such repairs, painting,
maintenance or replacements of equipment, fixtures or signs on behalf of
Franchisee, and Franchisee shall pay the entire costs thereof on demand.

5.1.7. In addition to the maintenance obligations set forth in above,
Franchisee shall, at its expense, undertake such periodic and ongoing remodeling
and upgrading of the Approved Location, and the furniture, fixtures, equipment,
décor, signage and trade dress of the Approved Location, as required by Franchisor
to cause the Approved Location building design, exterior facade, trade dress,
signage, fixtures, furnishings, equipment, decor, color schemes, and presentation
of the Marks to be consistent with the then-current standards. Such remodeling
and refurbishment may include structural changes, installation of new equipment
and signs, remodeling, redecoration, and modifications to existing improvements,
and, shall be completed to Franchisor’s satisfaction pursuant to such standards,
specifications, and deadlines as Franchisor may specify.

5.1.8. Franchisee may not relocate its Approved Location unless it receives
Franchisee’s prior written approval. Franchisee’s relocation will be at its expense
and Franchisor has the right to charge Franchisee for all reasonable costs and
expenses it incurs to approve and implement the relocation.

5.2. Cabinet IQ Vehicles.

5.2.1. Franchisor reserves the right to require that Franchisee obtain that
number of Cabinet IQ Vehicles prescribed by Franchisor from time to time, and
ensure that any Cabinet IQ Vehicles are in proper working order.

5.2.2. Each Cabinet IQ Vehicle must be maintained and operated in
accordance with Franchisor’s standards and requirements including conformance
to certain appearance standards which may be updated from time to time.
Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that it shall only purchase Cabinet IQ
Vehicles and equipment from approved vendors and suppliers.
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5.2.3. Franchisee may not purchase or use any Cabinet IQ Vehicle unless
and until it has received Franchisor’s prior approval or ensures that the Cabinet IQ
Vehicle complies with brand appearance standards in Franchisor’s discretion.
Franchisor may establish relationships with truck dealers and if it does so,
Franchisee agrees to purchase solely from these approved dealers.

5.2.4.Franchisee will make arrangements to store any Cabinet IQ Vehicles
used in the operation of the Franchise in compliance with all applicable state and
local laws and other restrictions.

5.2.5. Franchisee shall at all times maintain the Cabinet IQ Vehicles in a
high degree of repair and condition, and in connection therewith shall make such
repairs, replacements and refurbishment thereto (but no others without
Franchisor’s prior written consent) as may be required for that purpose, including,
without limitation, such periodic repainting, replacement of wraps or decals,
replacement of equipment and parts or installation or refurbishment of signage as
Franchisor may reasonably direct and pursuant to such standards, specifications
and deadlines as Franchisor may specify. Franchisor reserves the right to be the
only supplier of any required decals, wraps and graphics which Franchisor directs
to be affixed to each Cabinet IQ Vehicle.

5.3. System Standards. Franchisee understands and acknowledges that every
detail of the Franchise is important to Franchisee, Franchisor, and other
franchisees to develop and maintain high operating standards, to increase the
demand for the Services sold by all franchisees, and to protect Franchisor’s
reputation and goodwill.

5.4. Pre-Opening Obligations. Before commencing operations, Franchisee, at
its expense, shall comply, to Franchisor’s satisfaction, with all of the following
requirements:

5.4.1. Franchisee shall comply, at Franchisee’s expense, with all federal,
state and local laws, codes and regulations.

5.4.2.Franchisee shall obtain all licenses, permits, and certifications
required for the operation of the Franchise within the Territory and the parking
and/or storage of Cabinet IQ Vehicles in the Territory.

5.5. Opening. Franchisee shall open the Franchise within five months after the
Effective Date to offer required services. In addition, the Showroom must be open
to the public and fully functional within nine months after the Effective Date. Prior
to opening for business and prior to opening the Showroom, Franchisee shall
comply with all preopening requirements set forth in this Agreement, the Manuals,
and/or elsewhere in writing by Franchisor. In addition, in connection with the
opening of the Franchise:

5.5.1. Franchisee shall provide at least 14 days’ prior notice to Franchisor
of the date on which Franchisee proposes to first open the Franchise for business.
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5.5.2. The Approved Location must be in the Territory and must comply
with all design and appearance standards as specified from time to time by
Franchisor. Franchisee shall not open the Franchise until Franchisor has
determined that all construction has been substantially completed, and that such
construction conforms to Franchisor’s standards, and Franchisor has given
Franchisee written approval to open, which approval shall not be unreasonably
withheld.

5.5.3. Franchisee shall not open the Franchise until the Operating
Principal, Salesperson and Manager have successfully completed all initial training
required by Franchisor, and Franchisee has hired and trained, to Franchisor’s
standards, a sufficient number of employees and engaged adequate subcontractors
to service the anticipated level of the Franchise’s customers.

5.6. Management and Training. Franchisee must appoint an individual owner
as its “Operating Principal” who has at least a 20% equity interest in
Franchisee, must have authority over all business decisions related to the
Franchise, and must have the power to bind Franchisee in all dealings with
Franchisor. The Operating Principal is specified on the Summary Page.
Franchisee must also appoint a manager to manage the day-to-day business of the
Franchise (the “Manager”). Franchisee must appoint a salesperson to manage
the day-to-day customer service and sales functions in accordance with
Franchisor’s specifications (the “Salesperson”). Franchisee’s Operating
Principal may serve as either its Manager, or Salesperson unless Franchisor
believes that he or she does not have sufficient experience. The Operating
Principal shall not serve as both the Manager and Salesperson. Franchisee must
provide Franchisor with written notice of its Manager and Salesperson at least 14
days prior to initial training. Prior to the opening of the Franchise, the Manager,
Salesperson and the Operating Principal must attend and successfully complete,
to Franchisor’s satisfaction, the initial training program offered by Franchisor,
pursuant to Section 3.2. If Franchisor determines, in its sole discretion, that the
Operating Principal, Salesperson or Manager is unable to satisfactorily complete
any phase of the training program, Franchisor shall have the right to: (i) require
the Salesperson, Operating Principal or Manager, as the case may be, to attend
such additional training as Franchisor may require, at Franchisee's expense; or (ii)
terminate this Agreement, in which event neither Franchisor nor Franchisee shall
have any further rights or obligations hereunder. If Franchisor terminates this
Agreement pursuant to the prior sentence, Franchisor shall refund a portion of the
Initial Franchise Fee as provided in Section 4.1. The daily operations of the
Franchise are at all times required to be supervised under the active full-time
management of the Manager and Salesperson who have each successfully
completed Franchisor’s initial training program.

5.6.1. If the Manager or Salesperson ceases active management of the
Franchise or in the event the Operating Principal is changed or is no longer a 20%
equity owner of the Franchisee, Franchisee must hire a new Manager or
Salesperson or appoint a new Operating Principal (as the case may be), who must
be approved in writing by Franchisor. The new Manager, Salesperson or Operating
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Principal must undergo a certification training program that is prescribed by
Franchisor, which may include training at the Franchise, another Franchise or
such other place as Franchisor shall designate. All expenses incurred by the new
Manager, Salesperson or Operating Principal in attending such program including,
without limitation, travel costs, room and board expenses and salaries and other
benefits, shall be the sole responsibility of Franchisee. In addition, Franchisee
shall: (a) pay Franchisor's then-current certification program fees; and (b)
reimburse Franchisor for its out of pocket expenses, including without limitation,
reasonable travel and room and board expenses. If Franchisor determines, in its
sole discretion, that the new Manager, Salesperson or Operating Principal is
unable to satisfactorily complete the certification program, Franchisor shall have
the right to: (i) require the new Manager, Salesperson or Operating Principal, as
applicable, to attend such additional training, at Franchisee’s expense, so as to
demonstrate his or her ability to operate the Franchise to Franchisor's satisfaction;
or (ii) require Franchisee to promptly hire a replacement New Manager,
Salesperson or appoint a new Operating Principal among its equity owners (who
must have at least 20% equity ownership) who shall be required to undergo the
training and certification programs contemplated by this Section.

5.6.2. Franchisor from time to time may provide and, if it does, may require
that the Operating Principal, Manager, Salesperson and/or other employee attend
and successfully complete refresher training programs or seminars including
without limitation an annual conference (“Annual Conference”), to be conducted
at such location as may be designated by Franchisor. Franchisee shall pay to
Franchisor the then current Annual Conference Fee for each person required to
attend. All expenses incurred by Franchisee and its employees in attending such
program including, without limitation, travel costs, room and board expenses and
salaries and benefits, shall be the sole responsibility of Franchisee.

5.6.3.If Franchisee requests that Franchisor provide on-site training in
addition to the opening assistance described in Section 3.4, and Franchisor
chooses to do so, then Franchisee agrees that it shall pay Franchisor’s then-current
per diem charges and out-of-pocket expenses, which shall be as set forth in the
Manuals or otherwise in writing.

5.7. Personnel. Franchisee agrees to maintain a competent, conscientious and
trained staff in numbers sufficient to promptly provide the Services and to take
such steps as are necessary to ensure that its employees preserve good customer
relations and comply with such dress code as Franchisor may prescribe.

5.8. Equipment Upgrades. Franchisee shall make, from time to time, such
upgrades and other changes to the equipment, Cabinet IQ Vehicles and electronic
equipment utilized in the Franchise, the Technology System and Required
Software as Franchisor may request in writing (collectively, “Equipment
Upgrades”). Franchisor shall have the right to require any Equipment Upgrades
it deems necessary for the Franchise.
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5.9. Standards and Specifications. To insure that the highest degree of quality
and service is maintained, Franchisee shall operate the Franchise in strict
conformity with such methods, standards, and specifications as Franchisor may
from time to time prescribe in the Manuals or otherwise in writing (as used in this
Agreement, Franchisor’s “standards”, “requirements”, “specifications” or
“Operating Standards”). At a minimum, the Operating Standards shall

include:

5.9.1. offering and selling at all times such goods and/or services that
conform to Franchisor’s written standards and specifications, and refraining from
deviating therefrom by the use or offer of any nonconforming services without
Franchisor’s specific prior written consent

5.9.2. maintaining in sufficient supply, using, offering and selling at all
times only such products, equipment, supplies, materials, and goods that conform
to Franchisor’s written standards and specifications, and refraining from deviating
therefrom by the use or offer of any nonconforming products without Franchisor’s
specific prior written consent. To the extent Franchisee uses or intends to use
subcontractors to perform installation or other services, Franchisee shall ensure
that it has adequate numbers of subcontractors and that they are able to comply
with the brand standards, quality and customer service standards necessary to
protect the goodwill and positive reputation of the Marks and System.

5.9.3.offering and selling only such products as have been expressly
approved for sale in writing by Franchisor; offering all products and services as
Franchisor may specify from time to time as required offerings at the Franchise;
offering all products authorized for sale as specified by Franchisor; refraining from
any deviation from Franchisor’s standards, without Franchisor’s prior written
consent; and discontinuing the sale of any products which Franchisor has
disapproved, in writing, at any time. If Franchisee deviates or proposes to deviate
from Franchisor’s standards, whether or not such deviation is approved by
Franchisor, such deviation shall become the property of Franchisor.

5.9.4.operating the Franchise to fully comply with all applicable laws and
regulations.

5.9.5. offering and selling the services and products in accordance with any
minimum, maximum, and/or specific prices that Franchisor may determine from
time to time (except to the extent determination of prices by Franchisor is limited
or prohibited by applicable law).

5.10. Non-Compliance. If Franchisee violates an Operating Standard, and fails to
bring the Franchise into compliance with such Operating Standard within 10 days,
Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor upon demand $100 for each day that Franchisee
is not in compliance with the relevant Operating Standard. Franchisor’s right to
charge these amounts is in addition to any other remedy provided under this
Agreement, including under Section 13. Franchisor’s damages from Franchisee’s
failure to comply with this Section may include loss of good will and other
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damages, and are difficult to measure and quantify; such amount is, therefore, a
reasonable approximation of damages, and not a penalty.

5.11. Suppliers and Sourcing Requirements. Franchisor has the right to require
that services and products offered by Franchisee, and services, products and
equipment used by Franchisee in the establishment and operation of the
Franchise: (a) meet specifications that Franchisor establishes from time to time;
and/or (b) be purchased only from manufacturers, vendors, distributors, and other
suppliers that Franchisor has expressly approved; and/or (c) be purchased only
from a single source (which may include Franchisor or its affiliates or other
suppliers which provide a financial benefit to Franchisor and may not be the least
expensive supplier). To the extent that Franchisor establishes specifications,
requires approval of suppliers, or designates specific suppliers for particular items,
Franchisor will notify Franchisee via the Manuals or otherwise in writing. In
determining whether Franchisor will approve any particular supplier, Franchisor
shall consider various factors, including a supplier who can demonstrate, to
Franchisor’s continuing reasonable satisfaction, the ability to meet Franchisor’s
then current standards and specifications for such items; who possesses adequate
quality controls and capacity to supply Franchisee’s needs promptly and reliably;
who would enable the System, in Franchisor’s sole opinion, to take advantage of
marketplace efficiencies; and who has been approved in writing by Franchisor
prior to any purchases by Franchisee from any such supplier, and have not
thereafter been disapproved. For the purpose of this Agreement, the term
“supplier” shall include, but not be limited to, manufacturers, distributors,
resellers, and other vendors. Franchisee recognizes that Franchisor shall have the
right to appoint only one supplier for any particular item, and that Franchisor may
so designate itself or its affiliate.

5.11.1. If Franchisee wishes to purchase any services, products,
equipment or any items that Franchisor has not approved or to purchase from an
unapproved supplier, Franchisee shall first submit to Franchisor a written request
for such approval. Franchisee shall not purchase any products or services or make
purchases from any supplier until, and unless, such item or supplier has been
approved in writing by Franchisor. Franchisor shall have the right to require that
its representatives be permitted to inspect the supplier’s facilities, and that
samples from the supplier be delivered, either to Franchisor or to an independent
laboratory designated by Franchisor for testing or evaluation. Franchisor may
require that Franchisee or supplier pay a reasonable fee charge for such testing or
evaluation. Franchisor may also require that the supplier comply with such other
requirements as Franchisor may deem appropriate, including payment of
reasonable continuing inspection/evaluation fees and administrative costs.
Franchisor reserves the right, at its option, to reinspect from time to time the
facilities and products or equipment of any such approved supplier and to revoke
its approval of any item or supplier upon the item’s or supplier’s failure to continue
to meet any of Franchisor’s then-current criteria. Franchisee may not own any
portion of any supplier or subcontractor without Franchisor’s written approval.
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5.11.2, Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor shall
have the right to collect and retain all manufacturing allowances, markups,
marketing allowances, rebates, credits, monies, payments or benefits (collectively,
“Allowances”) offered by suppliers to Franchisee or to Franchisor or its affiliates
based upon purchases of products, equipment and other goods and services made
by the Brand Fund or Franchisees. These Allowances are based on System-wide
purchases of products, services, merchandise and other items and shall be
unrestricted income to Franchisor. Franchisee assigns to Franchisor or its
designee all of Franchisee’s right, title and interest in and to any and all such
Allowances and authorizes Franchisor or its designee to collect and retain any or
all such Allowances without restriction (unless otherwise instructed by the
supplier). Franchisor may mark up or receive Allowances from any providers or
vendors doing business with Franchisees, Franchisor or the Brand Fund including
without limitation, equipment, supplies, advertising and marketing vendors.
Franchisor may in its sole discretion retain as income with no further obligations,
or utilize some or all of the Allowances for System-wide marketing, other brand
enhancement activities or specific required or local area marketing, or such
Allowance monies may be deposited into the Brand Fund for future use and
expenditures by the Brand Fund.

5.11.3. Compliance with laws regarding the chemicals, products,
equipment and other supplies that Franchisee uses in its Franchise is Franchisee’s
sole responsibility. Franchisor makes no warranty or representation that
chemicals, products and other supplies that it recommends, approves or requires
comply with applicable laws in Franchisee’s jurisdiction. Franchisee must notify
Franchisor in writing immediately if any recommended, approved or required
chemical, product or supply is subject to regulation or laws in Franchisee’s
jurisdiction. Franchisor will cooperate with Franchisee in identifying substitute
equipment, products or supplies as appropriate.

5.12. Inspections. Franchisee grants Franchisor and its agents the right to enter
upon the Franchise premises and to attend and monitor Franchisee while
performing services for customers at any time for the purpose of conducting
inspections, for among other purposes, preserving the validity of the Marks, and
verifying Franchisee’s compliance with this Agreement and the Operating
Standards and policies and procedures outlined in the Manuals. Franchisee shall
cooperate with Franchisor’s representatives in such inspections by rendering such
assistance as they may reasonably request; and, upon notice from Franchisor or its
agents and without limiting Franchisor’s other rights under this Agreement,
Franchisee shall take such steps as may be necessary to correct immediately any
deficiencies detected during any such inspection. Franchisee shall reimburse
Franchisor for the travel expenses and room and board of Franchisor’s
representatives for all inspections including subsequent inspections to ensure all
deficiencies have been corrected. Should Franchisee, for any reason, fail to correct
such deficiencies within a reasonable time as determined by Franchisor,
Franchisor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to correct any deficiencies
which may be susceptible to correction by Franchisor and to charge Franchisee for
Franchisor’s actual expenses in taking such actions, payable by Franchisee upon
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demand. The foregoing shall be in addition to such other remedies Franchisor may
have.

5.13. Technology System. At Franchisor’s request, Franchisee shall purchase or
lease, and thereafter maintain, the Technology System and Required Software, and
Franchisee shall enter into all licenses or agreements and pay such licensing fees
as necessary for Franchisee to obtain the rights to use the Technology System and
Required Software. Franchisee shall also pay to Franchisor the then-current
amount of the Technology Fee (“Technology Fee”), which is currently $499 per
month per Territory. If Franchisee has more than one Territory, the total
Technology Fee for up to 2 contiguous Territories that share one Showroom shall
be equal to the then-current Technology Fee for one Territory. Franchisor shall
have the right at any time to retrieve and use such data and information from
Franchisee’s Technology System that Franchisor deems necessary or desirable,
including, without limitation, the uses identified in Section 9.5, and Franchisee
agrees to do all things necessary to provide such access. Franchisee expressly
agrees that it shall strictly comply with Franchisor’s standards and specifications
for all item(s) associated with Franchisee’s Technology System, and will otherwise
operate its Technology System in accordance with Franchisor’s standards and
specifications. Franchisee agrees it shall keep its Technology System in good
maintenance and repair, at its expense, and shall promptly install such additions,
changes, modifications, substitutions and/or replacement to the Technology
System and the Required Software as Franchisor directs periodically in writing.
Franchisee shall provide to Franchisor, upon Franchisor’s request, all email lists
and customer lists used or maintained by Franchisee on the Technology System,
the Required Software or elsewhere. Franchisee must execute and pay any fees
associated with any software license agreements or any related software
maintenance agreements that Franchisor or the licensor of the Required Software
require. Franchisee must comply with all laws and payment card provider
standards relating to the security of the Technology System, including, without
limitation, the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards. Franchisee may
not use any other cash registers or computer systems in the Franchise.

5.14. Uniform Attire. To promote a uniform System image, Franchisee shall
require all of its personnel to dress during business hours in the attire specified in
the Manuals.

5.15. Participation in Promotions and Incentive Programs. Franchisee shall
participate in promotional programs developed by Franchisor for the System, in
the manner directed by Franchisor in the Manuals or otherwise in writing.

5.16. Franchisee Advisory Council. Franchisor may establish an advisory council
comprised of Franchisees for the purpose of fostering communication among and
between franchisees and Franchisor, as well as to establish, modify or discuss
various policies applicable to Franchise businesses operating under the System
(the “Franchisee Advisory Council”). If Franchisor establishes the Franchisee
Advisory Council, Franchisee may be required to become a member of the
Franchisee Advisory Council and participate in Franchisee Advisory Council
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meetings and programs as Franchisor shall designate. Franchisor will not assess
fees or dues for participation in or on the Franchisee Advisory Council, but
Franchisee may be required to pay dues (which may be expended in any allocation
in accordance with the vote of the Franchisee Advisory Council subject to the
approval of Franchisor) to the Franchisee Advisory Council if the Franchisee
Advisory Council, which is controlled by franchisees, determines that fees shall be
assessed. Franchisee may be required to pay all costs and expenses incurred in
connection with participation in the Franchisee Advisory Council including,
without limitation, the costs of transportation, lodging, and meals.

5.17. Franchisee Structure.

5.17.1. Except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, if
Franchisee is a corporation, it shall: (i) confine its activities, and its governing
documents shall at all times provide that its activities are confined, exclusively to
operating the Franchise; (ii) furnish Franchisor with a copy of its articles or
certificates of incorporation and bylaws, as well as such other documents as
Franchisor may reasonably request, and any amendment thereto; (iii) maintain
stop transfer instructions on its records against the transfer of any equity securities
and shall only issue securities upon the face of which a legend, in a form
satisfactory to Franchisor, appears which references the transfer restrictions
imposed by this Agreement; (iv) not issue any voting securities or securities
convertible into voting securities; and (v) maintain a current list of all owners of
record and all beneficial owners of any class of voting stock of Franchisee and
furnish the list to Franchisor upon request, which list shall be amended to reflect
changes in ownership, as permitted under this Agreement.

5.17.2. If Franchisee is a partnership or limited liability partnership
it shall: (i) confine its activities, and its governing documents shall at all times
provide that its activities are confined, exclusively to operating the Franchise;
(ii) furnish Franchisor with its partnership agreement as well as such other
documents as Franchisor may reasonably request, and any amendments thereto;
(iii) prepare and furnish to Franchisor, upon request, a current list of all general
and limited partners in Franchisee, which list shall be amended to reflect changes
in ownership, as permitted under this Agreement; and (iv) maintain stop transfer
instructions on its records and in its partnership agreement against the transfer of
partnership interests and equity securities, and shall only issue securities or
partnership interests with documentation which bears a notice or legend, in a form
satisfactory to Franchisor, which references the transfer restrictions imposed by
this Agreement.

5.17.3. If a Franchisee is a limited liability company, Franchisee shall:
(i) confine its activities, and its governing documents shall at all times provide that
its activities are confined, exclusively to operating the Franchise; (ii) furnish
Franchisor with a copy of its articles of organization and operating agreement, as
well as such other documents as Franchisor may reasonably request, and any
amendments thereto; (iii) prepare and furnish to Franchisor, upon request, a
current list of all members and managers in Franchisee, which list shall be
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amended to reflect changes in ownership, as permitted under this Agreement; and
(iv) maintain stop transfer instructions on its records against the transfer of equity
securities and shall only issue securities upon the face of which bear a legend, in a
form satisfactory to Franchisor, which references the transfer restrictions imposed
by this Agreement.

5.18. Guarantee of Performance. Each present and future: (i) shareholder of a
corporate Franchisee; (ii) member of a limited liability company Franchisee;
(iii) partner of a partnership Franchisee; or (iv) partner of a limited liability
partnership Franchisee; shall jointly and severally guarantee Franchisee’s
performance of each and every provision of this Agreement by executing the
Guarantee, Indemnification and Acknowledgment in the form attached to this
Agreement as Exhibit C. In addition, Franchisor may require that the spouse (or
domestic partner or other immediate family member) of an owner of Franchisee
sign the Guarantee, Indemnification and Acknowledgment however such
Guarantee by a spouse shall only be pursued by Franchisor if there is a material
transfer of assets from the spouse having an ownership interest in the Franchisee
to the non-owning spouse.

5.19. System Modifications. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that from time
to time hereafter Franchisor may change or modify the System as Franchisor
deems appropriate, including, without limitation, to reflect the changing market
and/or to meet new and changing consumer demands, and that variations and
additions to the System may be required from time to time to preserve and enhance
the public image of the System and operations of Franchises. Franchisor’s changes
to the System may include, without limitation, the adoption and use of new or
modified products, services, equipment and furnishings and new techniques and
methodologies relating to the sale, promotion and marketing of products and
services, and new trademarks, service marks and copyrighted materials.
Franchisee shall, upon reasonable notice, accept, implement, use and display in
the operation of the Franchise any such changes in the System, as if they were part
of this Agreement at the time of execution hereof, at Franchisee’s sole expense.
Additionally, Franchisor reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to vary the
standards throughout the System, as well as the services and assistance that
Franchisor may provide to some franchisees based upon the peculiarities of a
particular site or circumstance, existing business practices, or other factors that
Franchisor deems to be important to the operation of any Franchise or the System.

5.20. Third-Party Management. The Franchise shall be operated under the
control and supervision of Franchisee (or if an entity, the Operating Principal) or
its Manager. Franchisee shall not, without the prior written approval of
Franchisor, which may be denied for any reason or no reason at all, hire or retain
a management company, manager (other than an employee manager trained and
approved by Franchisor), or third party to undertake any of the management or
operational functions of the Franchise.

PROPRIETARY MARKS
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6.1. Ownership of the Marks. Franchisor represents that it is the owner of all
right, title and interest in and to the Marks or otherwise maintains the right to use,
license and sub-license such Marks.

6.2. Useofthe Marks. With respect to Franchisee’s use of the Marks, Franchisee
agrees that:

6.2.1. Franchisee shall use only the Marks designated by Franchisor, and
shall use them only in the manner authorized and permitted by Franchisor; all
items bearing the Marks shall bear the then-current logo.

6.2.2. Franchisee shall use the Marks only for the operation of the business
franchised hereunder and only at the location authorized hereunder, or in
Franchisor approved advertising for the business conducted at or from that
location.

6.2.3.Unless Franchisor otherwise directs Franchisee, in writing to do so,
Franchisee shall operate and advertise the Franchise only under the name “Cabinet
IQ” or the name listed on the Summary Page to this Agreement.

6.2.4.During the term of this Agreement and any renewal of this
Agreement, Franchisee shall identify itself to the public (in a manner reasonably
acceptable to Franchisor) as an independent contractor operating the Franchise
under a license from Franchisor, and to post a notice to that effect, and as
Franchisor directs, in Franchisee’s advertising, contracts, forms, stationery and
promotional materials.

6.2.5. Franchisee’s right to use the Marks is limited to such uses as are
authorized under this Agreement, and any unauthorized use thereof shall
constitute an infringement of Franchisor’s rights.

6.2.6.Franchisee shall not use the Marks to incur any obligation or
indebtedness on behalf of Franchisor.

6.2.7. Franchisee shall not use the Marks or the word Cabinet IQ or any
variant thereof as part of its corporate or other legal name, or as part of any e-mail
address, domain name, or other identification of Franchisee in any electronic
medium.

6.2.8.Franchisee shall execute any documents deemed necessary by
Franchisor to obtain protection for the Marks or to maintain their continued
validity and enforceability.

6.2.9.With respect to litigation involving the Marks, the parties agree that:

6.2.9.1. Franchisee shall promptly notify Franchisor of any

suspected infringement of the Marks, any known challenge to the validity of the
Marks, or any known challenge to Franchisor’s ownership of, or Franchisee’s right
to use, the Marks licensed hereunder. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor
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shall have the right to direct and control any administrative proceeding or
litigation involving the Marks, including any settlement thereof. Franchisor shall
also have the right, but not the obligation, to take action against uses by others that
may constitute infringement of the Marks.

6.2.9.2, If Franchisor undertakes the defense or prosecution of any
litigation relating to the Marks, Franchisee shall execute any and all documents
and do such acts and things as may, in the opinion of counsel for Franchisor, be
necessary to carry out such defense or prosecution, including, but not limited to,
becoming a nominal party to any legal action.

6.3. Franchisee Acknowledgments. Franchisee expressly understands and
acknowledges that:

6.3.1. The Marks are valid, owned by Franchisor, and serve to identify the
System and those who are authorized to operate under the System.

6.3.2.Neither Franchisee nor any owner of Franchisee shall directly or
indirectly contest the validity of Franchisor’s ownership of the Marks, nor shall
Franchisee, directly or indirectly, seek to register the Marks with any government
agency, except with Franchisor’s express prior written consent.

6.3.3.Franchisee’s use of the Marks does not give Franchisee any
ownership interest or other interest in or to the Marks, beyond the limited non-
exclusive License granted by this Agreement.

6.3.4.Any and all goodwill arising from Franchisee’s use of the Marks shall
inure solely and exclusively to Franchisor’s benefit, and upon expiration or
termination of this Agreement and the License herein granted, no monetary
amount shall be assigned as attributable to any goodwill associated with
Franchisee’s use of the System or the Marks.

6.3.5.The License of the Marks is nonexclusive, and Franchisor thus has
and retains the rights, among others:

6.3.5.1. To use the Marks itself in connection with selling products
and services;

6.3.5.2. To grant other licenses for the Marks, in addition to those
licenses already granted to existing franchisees or other licensees authorized to
operate using the Marks;

6.3.5.3. To develop and establish (or acquire or be acquired by)
other systems using the same or similar Marks, or any other proprietary marks,
and to grant licenses or franchises thereto without providing any rights therein to
Franchisee.

6.3.6.Franchisor reserves the right to substitute different proprietary
marks for use in identifying the System and the businesses operating thereunder if
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the Marks no longer can be used, or if Franchisor, exercising its right to do so,
determines that substitution of different proprietary marks will be beneficial to the
System. In such circumstances, Franchisee shall implement, at Franchisee’s
expense, such substituted proprietary marks in such ways as Franchisor may
direct, and the use of the substituted proprietary marks shall be governed by the
terms of this Agreement.

CONFIDENTIAL OPERATING MANUALS

7.1. Manuals. In order to protect the reputation and goodwill of Franchisor and
to maintain high standards of operation under Franchisor’s Marks, Franchisee
shall conduct its business in accordance with the Manuals, one or more copies of
which, or access to, Franchisee acknowledges having received on loan from
Franchisor for the term of this Agreement. The Manuals may consist of multiple
volumes of printed text, video and/or audio tapes and files, computer disks, and
other electronically stored data, and Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that
Franchisor may provide a portion or all of the Manuals (including updates and
amendments), and other instructional information and materials in, or via,
electronic media, including without limitation, through the Internet.

7.2. Confidentiality of the Manuals. Franchisee shall at all times treat the
Manuals, any other manuals created for or approved for use in the operation of the
Franchise, and the information contained therein, as confidential, and shall use
best efforts to maintain such information as secret and confidential, protect it from
viewing by others, and treat the Manuals with the same degree of care as it would
treat its most highly confidential documents. Franchisee shall not at any time
download, print, copy, duplicate, record, or otherwise reproduce the foregoing
materials, in whole or in part, nor otherwise make the same available to any
unauthorized person.

=7.3. Protection of the Manuals. The Manuals shall at all times remain the sole
property of Franchisor and shall at all times be kept in a secure manner at the
Franchise premises. Franchisee shall ensure that the Manuals are kept current and
up to date; and, in the event of any dispute as to the contents of the Manuals, the
terms of the master copy of the Manuals maintained by Franchisor at Franchisor’s
home office shall be controlling.

7.4. Revisions to the Manuals. Franchisor may from time to time revise the
contents of the Manuals, and Franchisee expressly agrees to make corresponding
revisions to its copy (to the extent Franchisor permits Franchisee to maintain a
written copy) of the Manuals and to comply with each new or changed standard
immediately upon receipt of such revision.

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

8.1. Confidential Information. Franchisee shall not, during the term of this
Agreement or thereafter, communicate, divulge, or use for the benefit of any other
person or entity any confidential information, knowledge, or knowhow concerning
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the methods of operation of the business franchised hereunder which may be
communicated to Franchisee or of which Franchisee may be apprised by virtue of
Franchisee’s operation under the terms of this Agreement. Franchisee shall
divulge such confidential information only to such of its employees as must have
access to it in order to operate the Franchise. Any and all information, knowledge,
knowhow, and techniques which Franchisor designates as confidential shall be
deemed confidential for purposes of this Agreement, except information which
Franchisee can demonstrate came to its attention prior to disclosure thereof by
Franchisor; or which, at or after the time of disclosure by Franchisor to Franchisee,
had become or later becomes a part of the public domain, through publication or
communication by others. Any employee who may have access to any confidential
information regarding the Franchise shall execute a covenant that s/he will
maintain the confidentiality of information they receive in connection with their
association with Franchisee. Such covenants or non-disclosure/non-competition
agreements shall be on a form provided by Franchisor, which form shall, among
other things, designate Franchisor as a third party beneficiary of such covenants
with the independent right to enforce them.

8.2. Irreparable Injury. Franchisee acknowledges that any failure to comply
with the requirements of this Section 8 will cause Franchisor irreparable injury,
and Franchisee agrees to pay all court costs and reasonable attorney’s fees incurred
by Franchisor in obtaining specific performance of, or an injunction against
violation of, the requirements of this Section 8.

8.3. Information Exchange. Franchisee agrees to disclose to Franchisor all
ideas, concepts, methods, techniques, services, and products conceived or
developed by Franchisee, its affiliates, owners, agents, or employees during the
term of this Agreement relating to the development and/or operation of the
Franchise. Franchisee hereby grants to Franchisor and agrees to procure from its
affiliates, owners, agents, or employees a perpetual, nonexclusive, and worldwide
right to use any such ideas, concepts, methods, techniques, services and products.
Franchisor shall have no obligation to make any payments to Franchisee with
respect to any such ideas, concepts, methods, techniques or products. Franchisee
agrees that Franchisee will not use or allow any other person or entity to use any
such concept, method, technique or product without obtaining Franchisor’s prior
written approval.

ACCOUNTING AND RECORDS

9.1. Records. With respect to the operation and financial condition of
Franchisee and the Franchise, Franchisee shall adopt, until otherwise specified by
Franchisor, a fiscal year and fiscal accounting periods which coincide with
Franchisor’s then-current fiscal year, as specified by Franchisor. Franchisee shall
maintain for a period of not less than three years during the term of this
Agreement, and, for not less than three years following the termination, expiration,
or non-renewal of this Agreement, full, complete, and accurate books, records, and
accounts in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and in the
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form and manner prescribed by Franchisor from time to time in the Manuals or
otherwise in writing.

9.2. Periodic Reports. In addition to the record keeping requirements of
Section 9.1:

9.2.1. If requested by Franchisor, Franchisee shall, at its expense, provide
to Franchisor, in a format specified by Franchisor, a complete annual financial
statement (prepared according to generally accepted accounting principles, that
includes a fiscal year-end balance sheet, an income statement of the Franchise for
such fiscal year reflecting all year-end adjustments, and a statement of changes in
cash flow of Franchisee), on a review basis, prepared by an independent certified
public accountant satisfactory to Franchisor, no later than April 15 of each year for
the preceding fiscal year of the Franchise, showing the results of operations of the
Franchise during the most recently completed fiscal year. Franchisee shall also
provide Franchisor with a copy of Franchisee’s federal and state tax returns, not
more than 30 days following Franchisee’s submission of the same to governmental
authorities. If Franchisee files any extension request with any taxation authority,
Franchisee shall within 30 days of filing such extension request provide a copy of
the request and any confirmation or approval received by the taxing authority.

9.2.2. Within 45 days following the end of each calendar quarter during the
term of this Agreement, after the opening of the Franchise, Franchisee shall submit
to Franchisor, in a format acceptable to (or, at Franchisor’s election, specified by)
Franchisor, as amended from time to time: (i) a fiscal quarter and fiscal year to
date profit and loss statement and a quarterly balance sheet (which may be
unaudited) for the Franchise; (ii) reports of those income and expense items of the
Franchise which Franchisor specifies from time to time for use in any revenue,
earnings, and/or cost summary it chooses to furnish to prospective franchisees
and/or developers; and (iii) copies of all state sales tax returns for the Franchise.
If required by Franchisor, Franchisee shall use on-line or other electronic
accounting and reporting systems as Franchisor may specify periodically.

9.3. Reporting Requirements. Franchisee shall also submit to Franchisor in
addition to the Sales Reports required pursuant to Section 4.2, for review or
auditing, such other forms, reports, records, information, and data as and when
Franchisor may reasonably designate, in the form and format, and at the times and
places reasonably required by Franchisor, upon request and as specified from time
to time in the Manuals or otherwise in writing, including, without limitation, via
computer diskette, or otherwise in electronic format, and/or restated in
accordance with Franchisor’s financial reporting periods, consistent with
Franchisor’s then current financial reporting periods and accounting practices and
standards. Franchisee shall, without limitation, provide Franchisor with login, API
and other access information as required from time to time to permit Franchisor
to remotely access Franchisee’s bookkeeping software (i.e. QuickBooks or other
software designated by Franchisor) to pull reports, download data and perform
any other action permitted under this Agreement. Franchisee shall immediately,
without further request from Franchisor, provide updated access information to
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Franchisor when the previously provided information is changed. The reporting
requirements of this Section 9.3 shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, the
electronic reporting that may be required in connection with the use of the
required Technology System under Section 5.13.

9.4. Audit. Franchisor or its designated agents shall have the right at all
reasonable times to examine, copy, and/or personally review or audit, at
Franchisor’s expense, all books, records, and sales and income tax returns of
Franchisee. Franchisor shall also have the right, at any time, to have an
independent audit made of the books of Franchisee and Franchisee agrees that it
shall pay Franchisor the costs of one audit each calendar quarter during the term
of this Agreement, if an audit is necessitated because Franchisee fails to timely
provide Sales Reports or if an audit discloses an understatement in any report by
Franchisee of 5% or more, Franchisee shall, reimburse Franchisor for all costs and
expenses connected with the audit (including, without limitation, travel, room and
board and salaries and other benefits, and reasonable accounting and legal costs).
If an inspection should reveal that any payments have been understated in any
report to Franchisor, then Franchisee shall immediately pay Franchisor the
amount understated upon demand, in addition to interest from the date such
amount was due until paid, at the rate of 1.5% per month, or the maximum rate
permitted by law, whichever is less. The foregoing remedies shall be in addition to
any other remedies Franchisor may have.

9.5. Data. Franchisor may, from time-to-time, specify in the Manuals or
otherwise in writing the information that Franchisee shall collect and maintain on
the Technology System installed at the Franchise, and Franchisee shall provide to
Franchisor such reports as Franchisor may reasonably request from the data so
collected and maintained. All data provided by Franchisee in any form, and
whether required by this Section 9.5 or any other requirement under the System
or in the Manuals, including data uploaded to Franchisor’s computer system from
the Franchisee’s Technology System, and/or downloaded from the Franchisee’s
Technology System to Franchisor’s computer system, is and will be owned
exclusively by Franchisor, including without limitation, customer lists and email
lists, and Franchisor will have the right to use such data in any manner that
Franchisor deems appropriate without compensation to Franchisee. In addition,
all other data created or collected by Franchisee in connection with the System, or
in connection with Franchisee’s operation of the business (including but not
limited to consumer and transaction data), is and will be owned exclusively by
Franchisor during the term of, and following termination or expiration of, this
Agreement. Copies and/or originals of such data must be provided to Franchisor
upon Franchisor’s request. Franchisor hereby licenses use of such data back to
Franchisee, at no additional cost, solely for the term of this Agreement and solely
for Franchisee’s use in connection with the business franchised under this
Agreement. Franchisor may use all such information, data, and reports in any
manner, including, without limitation, providing financial and operating reports
to franchisees and developers operating under the System.
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10.

ADVERTISING; CONTACT CENTER

Recognizing the value of advertising, and the importance of the standardization of
advertising programs to the furtherance of the goodwill and public image of the
System, the parties agree as follows:

10.1. Brand Funds. Franchisor shall have the right to establish, at any time, the
Brand Fund as described in this Section 10.

10.2. Brand Fund Contributions and Local Marketing Expenditures. Franchisee
shall, during each calendar month (beginning 30 days prior to Franchisee’s
attendance at the in-person portion of the initial training program and continuing
through the end of Term), spend on advertising and promotion the greater of 4%
of Franchisee’s Gross Sales or the Minimum Local Marketing Spend to advertise
and to promote the Franchise through methods, media and advertising approved
by Franchisor (together, “Local Marketing”). The “Minimum Monthly Local
Marketing Spend” is $4,500 for each Showroom, plus and an additional $1,000
per Territory above the first Territory”; provided, however, in no event will the
Minimum Local Marketing Spend be less than $4,500 for one Territory, and
$5,500 for two Territories. These are the minimum amounts, and additional
amounts may be beneficial or necessary. Franchisor shall have the right to
designate in writing from time to time how, and in what proportions, Franchisee
is to allocate its Local Marketing. Additionally, Franchisee shall contribute (i) 1%
of Gross Sales to the Brand Fund (“Brand Fund”) as may be established pursuant
to Section 10.3. The Brand Fund contribution may be increased to 2% upon notice
to Franchisee. If a franchisee-led marketing cooperative is formed you may be
required to participate.

10.2.1. Franchisor shall provide Franchisee with not less than 60
days prior written notice of any change in the required Local Marketing (which will
not exceed 5% of Gross Sales). Franchisor shall not increase required Brand Fund
contributions to an amount exceeding 2% of Gross Sales.

10.2.2. Franchisee shall pay required Brand Fund Contributions in
the manner required under Section 4 (or as otherwise provided in this Section
10).

10.2.3. For all company-owned Franchises, Franchisor shall
contribute to the Brand Fund on the same basis as franchisees.

10.3. Brand Fund. Although it is under no obligation to do so, Franchisor may at
any time establish a Brand Fund, as follows:

10.3.1. Franchisor or its designee shall have the right to direct all
advertising programs, as well as all aspects thereof, including without limitation,
the concepts, materials, and media used in such programs and the placement and
allocation thereof. Franchisee agrees and acknowledges that the Brand Fund is
intended to maximize general public recognition, acceptance, perception of, and
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use of the System; and that Franchisor and its designee are not obligated, in
administering the Brand Fund, to make expenditures for Franchisee which are
equivalent or proportionate to Franchisee’s contribution, or to ensure that any
particular franchisee benefits directly or pro rata from expenditures by the Brand
Fund. Franchisor may engage the services of a franchise sales organization for
development of the franchise system, and Franchisee specifically acknowledges
and agrees that such franchise sales organization may be compensated out of the
Brand Fund in exchange for services and products that, while not intended solely
to market the sale of franchises, benefit the franchise system through franchise
development and brand marketing.”

10.3.2. The Brand Fund, all contributions thereto, and any earnings
thereon, shall be used exclusively (except as otherwise provided in this Section
10.3) to meet any and all costs of maintaining, administering, directing,
conducting, creating and/or otherwise preparing advertising, marketing, public
relations and/or promotional programs and materials, research and design
relating to branding and implementation of re-branding programs and strategies,
and any other activities which Franchisor believes will enhance the image of the
System, including, without limitation, the costs of: preparing and/or conducting
media advertising campaigns; marketing surveys and other public relations
activities; employing advertising and/or public relations agencies; purchasing
promotional items; developing new or modified trade dress and marks; point-of-
purchase (POP) materials; design and photographs; purchasing media space or
time (including all associated fees and expenses); administering regional and
multi-regional marketing and advertising programs; market research; developing
and implementing customer loyalty programs; the creative development of, and
actual production associated with, premium items, give-aways, promotions,
contests, public relation events, and charitable or non-profit events; developing,
implementing and maintaining an electronic commerce website and/or related
strategies; maintaining and developing one or more websites devoted to the
System, the Marks and/or the “Cabinet I1Q” brand; providing promotional and
other marketing materials and services to the Franchises operated under the
System; and the salaries of Franchisor’s employees to the extent such employees
provide services in conjunction with System marketing activities. The Brand Fund
may also be used to provide rebates or reimbursements to franchisees for local
expenditures on products, services, or improvements, approved in advance by
Franchisor, which products, services, or improvements Franchisor shall have the
right to determine what will promote general public awareness and favorable
support for the System.

10.3.3. Franchisee shall contribute to the Brand Fund in the manner
specified by Franchisor. All sums paid by Franchisee to the Brand Fund shall be
maintained in an account separate from Franchisor’s other monies. The Brand
Fund will not be used to defray the general operating expenses of Franchisor except
that Franchisor shall have the right to charge the Brand Fund for such reasonable
administrative costs and overhead as Franchisor may incur in activities reasonably
related to the direction and implementation of the Brand Fund and advertising

Cabinet IQ FDD 2025

31



programs for franchisees and the System. The Brand Fund and its earnings shall
not otherwise inure to the benefit of Franchisor.

10.3.4. The Brand Fund is not intended to be, nor will it be deemed
to be a trust, and Franchisor does not assume any fiduciary obligation to
Franchisee for maintaining, directing or administering the Brand Fund or for any
other reason. A statement of the operations of the Brand Fund as shown on the
books of Franchisor shall be prepared annually by Franchisor, and shall be made
available to Franchisee on an annual basis upon Franchisee’s written request.

10.3.5. Although the Brand Fund is intended to be of perpetual
duration, Franchisor maintains the right to terminate the Brand Fund. The Brand
Fund shall not be terminated, however, until all monies in the Brand Fund have
been expended for advertising and/or promotional purposes. If Franchisor
terminates the Brand Fund, Franchisor shall have the right to require Franchisee
to spend an amount equal to previous Brand Fund contribution amount on Local
Marketing and allocate such spending as directed by Franchisor.

10.4. Promotional Materials and Marketing Assistance. Franchisor shall make
available to Franchisee from time to time, at Franchisee’s expense, advertising

plans and promotional materials, including newspaper mats, coupons,
merchandising materials, sales aids, point of purchase materials, special
promotions, direct mail materials, community relations programs, and similar
advertising and promotional materials for use in advertising and promotion.
Franchisor may provide periodic marketing assistance to Franchisee.

10.5. Approvals. For all proposed advertising, marketing, and promotional plans,
Franchisee shall submit samples of such plans and materials to Franchisor (by
means described in Section 20), for Franchisor’s review and prior written
approval (except with respect to prices to be charged by Franchisee). If written
approval is not received by Franchisee from Franchisor within 30 days of the date
of receipt by Franchisor of such samples or materials, Franchisor shall be deemed
to have disapproved them. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that any and all
copyright in and to advertising and promotional materials developed by or on
behalf of Franchisee shall be the sole property of Franchisor, and Franchisee agrees
to execute such documents (and, if necessary, require its independent contractors
to execute such documents) as may be deemed reasonably necessary by Franchisor
to give effect to this provision.

10.6. Minimum Requirements Only. Franchisee understands and acknowledges
that the required Local Marketing and Brand Fund contributions are minimum
requirements only, and that Franchisee may, and is encouraged by Franchisor to
expend additional funds for local advertising and promotion of a local nature
which will focus on disseminating advertising directly related to the Franchise.

10.7. Websites; Internet Use. Franchisee shall not, without Franchisor’s prior
written approval, offer, promote, or sell any products or services, or make any use
of the Marks, through the Internet, including the use of websites, domain names,
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uniform resource locators, keywords, linking, search engines (and search engine
optimization techniques), banner ads, meta-tags, marketing, auction sites, e-
commerce (as defined below) and co-branding arrangements. Any website shall
be deemed “advertising” under this Agreement, and will be subject to (among other
things) Franchisor’s approval under Section 10.6. Franchisor has the right to
control or designate the manner of Franchisee’s use of all URLs, domain names,
website addresses, metatags, links, key words, e-mail addresses and any other
means of electronic identification or origin (“e-names”). Franchisor also has the
right to designate, approve, control or limit all aspects of Franchisee’s use of the
Internet, Intranet, World Wide Web, wireless technology, digital cable, use of e-
names, e-mail, home pages, bulletin boards, chat rooms, social networking sites,
linking, framing, online purchasing cooperatives, marketplaces, barter exchanges,
and related technologies, methods, techniques, registrations, networking, and any
electronic communication, commerce, computations, or any means of interactive
electronic documents contained in a network of computers or similar devices
linked by communications software or hardware (collectively, “e-commerce”).
Franchisee agrees to follow all of Franchisor’s policies and procedures related to
the use and regulation of e-commerce. Franchisee agrees to be bound by any terms
of use, privacy policy and copyright notice and takedown policies and the like that
Franchisor establishes from time to time. Franchisor may require Franchisee, at
Franchisee’s expense, to coordinate its e-commerce activities with Franchisor,
other Franchises, suppliers and/or affiliates. Other than any e-mail or any similar
account provided to Franchisee by Franchisor, if any, Franchisee shall not
establish any e-mail account using the Marks or similar names or marks.
Franchisee agrees to use any e-mail or any similar account provided to Franchisee
by Franchisor solely for business purposes. Franchisee shall be required to follow
Franchisor’s intranet and Internet usage rules, policies and requirements.
Franchisor retains the sole right to approve any linking to, or other use of, the
Cabinet IQ Website. Franchisee may not establish or participate in any Cabinet IQ
related blog or other discussion forum. Franchisee recognizes and agrees that
Franchisor and its affiliates own all rights, title and interest in and to any and all
websites and e-names that Franchisor commissions or utilizes, or requires or
permits Franchisee to utilize, in connection with the System, which bear the Marks
or any derivative of the Marks. Franchisee also recognizes and agrees that
Franchisor and/or its affiliates own all rights, title and interest in and to any and
all data or other information collected via e-commerce related to the System or the
Marks, including any customer data, click-stream data, cookies, user data, hits and
the like. Such data or other information also constitutes Franchisor’s confidential
information subject to Article 8.

10.8. Limitations on Associations with the Marks. Franchisee acknowledges and
agrees that certain associations between Franchisee and/or the Franchise, and/or
the Marks and/or the System, and/or businesses operating under or products sold
under the Marks or the Cabinet IQ brand names on the one hand, and certain
political, religious, cultural or other types of groups, organizations, causes, or
activities, on the other, however well-intentioned and/or legal, may create an
unwelcome, unfair, or unpopular association with, and/or an adverse effect on, the
reputation of Franchisor, the System, the Cabinet IQ brand, or the good will
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11.

associated with the Marks. Accordingly, Franchisee shall not, without the prior
written approval of Franchisor, engage in any activities with, or donate any money,
products, services, goods, or other items to, any charitable, political or religious
organization, group, or activity, if such action is taken, or may be perceived by the
public to be taken, in the name of, in connection with, or in association with
Franchisee, the Marks, the Franchise, the Franchisor, or the System.

10.9 Customer Reviews and Non-Compliance. You must subscribe to and
participate in the customer review tracking and reputation management services
and providers that we designate. If your customer review or customer satisfaction
ratings, as measured across the review platforms that we designate, go below 4
stars out of 5 stars and/or a 80% positive satisfaction rating then you must pay to
us a customer review non-compliance fee of $90 for each and every week of non-
compliance. If, a condition of non-compliance occurs for more than twelve-weeks
then we may increase this non-compliance fee to a weekly fee of not more than
$250 per week.

10.10 Local or Regional Advertising Cooperative. If two or more Cabinet 1Q
franchisees are operating within a geographic area, region, or market designated
by us (a “designated market”), we reserve the right to establish and require your
participation in a local or regional advertising cooperative within the designated
market. If a local or regional advertising cooperative is established within a
designated market that includes your Territory you will be required to participate
in the cooperative and make on-going payments to the cooperative in such
amounts and subject to such caps as established by the cooperative members. We
anticipate that each Cabinet 1Q franchisee will have one vote for each Territory
located within the cooperative market and that cooperative decisions shall be made
based on approval of a simple majority vote with a quorum of not less than 25% of
the designated cooperative members. Contributions to a local or regional
cooperative that we designate will count toward satisfaction of your minimum local
marketing requirements.

INSURANCE

11.1. Insurance Requirements. Prior to the commencement of any activities or
operations pursuant to this Agreement, Franchisee shall procure and maintain in
full force and effect during the term of this Agreement (and for such period
thereafter as is necessary to provide the coverages required hereunder for events
having occurred during the term of this Agreement), at Franchisee’s expense, the
following insurance policy or policies in connection with the Franchise or other
facilities on the premises, or by reason of the construction, operation, or occupancy
of the Franchise or other facilities on premises. Such policy or policies shall be
written by an insurance company or companies acceptable to Franchisor, having a
rating of at least “A-7” or “A-VII” in the most recent Key Rating Guide published
by the A.M. Best Company (or another rating that Franchisor reasonably
designates if A.M. Best Company no longer publishes the Key Rating Guide) and
licensed to do business in the state in which the Franchise is located. Such policy
or policies shall be in accordance with standards and specifications set forth in the
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Manuals or otherwise in writing and shall include, at a minimum (except as
additional coverages and higher policy limits may reasonably be specified for all
franchisees from time to time by Franchisor in the Manuals or otherwise in writing
to reflect inflation, identification of new risks, changes in the law or standards of
liability, higher damage awards and other relevant changes in circumstances), the
following:

11.1.1. Comprehensive general liability insurance with minimums of
$1,000,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 general and products/completed
operations aggregate, $1,000,000 personal/advertising injury, $50,000 rented
premises damage, and $5,000 medical expenses.

11.1.2. Commercial Auto Insurance with a $1,000,000 combined
single limit, covering uninsured/underinsured motorists, owned, hired, and non-
owned autos.

11.1.3. Workers' Compensation Insurance with coverage limits of
$1,000,000 for bodily injury by disease per accident, $1,000,000 policy limit, and
$1,000,000 per employee. The policy must be in place regardless of state laws and
cannot exclude owner-operators. It must also include uninsured independent
contractors, as well as such other disability benefits type insurance as may be
required by statute or rule of the state in which the Franchise is located.

11.1.4. Property insurance with coverage for business personal
property (= $10,000 full replacement cost value), tenant improvements (=
$70,000 full replacement cost value), business interruption (6 Months ALS),
including franchisor royalties.

11.1.5. Employment Practices Liability Insurance with minimum
coverage limits of $250,000 per occurrence and $250,000 aggregate. The policy
should include 3rd party liability and wage & hour coverage of at least $25,000.

11.1.6. Cyber Liability Insurance with minimum coverage limits of
$250,000 per occurrence and $250,000 aggregate.

11.1.7. Crime insurance with a minimum coverage limit of $50,000
each claim, including third-party coverage on a loss discovered form.

11.1.8. Umbrella coverage with limits of at least $1,000,000 per
occurrence and $1,000,000 aggregate, providing excess coverage over General
Liability, Auto Liability, and Employers Liability.

11.1.9. Any other insurance coverage that is required by federal,
state, or municipal law.

11.2. Referenced in Manuals. All policies listed in Section 11.1 (unless
otherwise noted below) shall contain such endorsements as shall, from time to
time, be provided in the Manuals.
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11.3. Policy Cancellation. In the event of cancellation, material change, or
nonrenewal of any policy, 60 days’ advance written notice must be provided to
Franchisor in the manner provided in Article 20. Franchisee shall arrange for a
copy of such notification to be sent to Franchisor by the insurance company.

11.4. Construction and Remodeling Insurance. In connection with all significant
construction, reconstruction, or remodeling of the Franchise during the term of
this Agreement, Franchisee will cause the general contractor, its subcontractors,
and any other contractor, to effect and maintain at general contractor’s and all
other contractor’s own expense, such insurance policies and bonds with such
endorsements as are set forth in the Manuals, all written by insurance or bonding
companies approved by Franchisor, having a rating as set forth in Section 11.1.

11.5. No Waiver of Obligations. Franchisee’s obligation to obtain and maintain
the foregoing policy or policies in the amounts specified shall not be limited in any
way by reason of any insurance which may be maintained by Franchisor, nor shall
Franchisee’s performance of that obligation relieve it of liability under the
indemnity provisions set forth in Section 17.4.

11.6. Franchisor to be Additional Insured. All insurance policies shall list
Franchisor and its affiliates, officers, directors, employees, and agents as
additional insureds; shall include a waiver of subrogation, primary and
noncontributory provisions, and occurrence-based provisions.

11.7. Certificates of Insurance. At least 30 days prior to the time any insurance
is first required to be carried by Franchisee, and thereafter at least 30 days prior to
the expiration of any such policy, Franchisee shall deliver to Franchisor,
certificates of insurance evidencing the proper coverage with limits not less than
those required hereunder. All certificates shall expressly provide that no less than
30 days’ prior written notice shall be given Franchisor in the event of material
alteration to, cancellation, or nonrenewal of the coverages evidenced by such
certificates. Further certificates evidencing the insurance required by
Section 11.1 shall name Franchisor, and each of its affiliates, directors, agents,
and employees as additional insureds, and shall expressly provide that any interest
of same therein shall not be affected by any breach by Franchisee of any policy
provisions for which such certificates evidence coverage. In the event that
Franchisee fails to provide evidence reasonably satisfactory to Franchisor of the
insurance policies required by this Article 11, Franchisor may, but is not required
to, obtain such required policies on Franchisee’s behalf, and Franchisee agrees that
it will promptly reimburse Franchisor for all costs related to obtaining such policies
upon notice from Franchisor.

11.8. Proof of Insurance. In addition to its obligations under Section 11.7, on
the first anniversary of the Effective Date, and on each subsequent anniversary
thereof during the term of this Agreement and any renewal hereof, Franchisee shall
provide Franchisor with proof of insurance evidencing the proper coverage with
limits not less than those required hereunder, in such form as Franchisor may
reasonably require.
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12,

11.9. Policy Changes. Franchisor shall have the right, from time to time, to make
changes to any insurance requirements, including types of insurance, minimum
policy limits, and endorsements, as Franchisor may determine; provided, however,
all changes shall apply, generally, to all franchisees of Franchisor who are similarly
situated.

TRANSFER OF INTEREST

12.1. Franchisor Transfers. Franchisor shall have the right to transfer or assign
this Agreement and all or any part of its rights or obligations under this Agreement,
or any interests in the assets of Franchisor, or any ownership or equity interests in
Franchisor, to any person or entity, and any assignee of Franchisor shall become
solely responsible for all obligations of Franchisor under this Agreement from the
date of assignment.

12.2. Principals. If Franchisee is an entity, each person or entity that is an owner
of, or has an ownership interest in, Franchisee (each, a “Principal”), and the
interest of each Principal in Franchisee, is identified on the Summary Page.
Franchisee represents and warrants that its owners are as set forth on the Summary
Page attached to this Agreement, and covenants that it will not permit the identity of
such owners, or their respective interests in Franchisee, to change without complying
with this Agreement. Franchisor shall have the right to designate any person or
entity which owns a direct or indirect interest in Franchisee as a Principal, and the
Summary Page shall be so amended automatically upon notice thereof to
Franchisee.

12.3. Franchisee Transfers. Franchisee understands and acknowledges that the
rights and duties set forth in this Agreement are personal to Franchisee and its
Principals, and that Franchisor has granted this License in reliance on Franchisee’s
or Franchisee’s Principals’ business skill, financial capacity, and personal
character. Accordingly:

12.3.1. Franchisee shall not, without the prior written consent of
Franchisor, transfer, pledge or otherwise encumber: (a) this Agreement or any of
the rights and obligations of Franchisee under this Agreement; or (b) any material
asset of Franchisee or the Franchise; provided, however, that Franchisee may grant
a security interest in, or otherwise encumber certain assets of the Franchise,
excluding the Franchise Agreement, in connection with Franchisee obtaining
financing for the development and/or operation of the Franchise or equipment
leasing, if such financing satisfies the requirements of Franchisor, which may
include, without limitation, execution of agreements by Franchisor, Franchisee,
and/or such Principal, and any secured creditor of Franchisee, in a form
satisfactory to Franchisor, acknowledging such creditor’s obligations to be bound
by the terms of this Article 12.

12.3.2. If Franchisee is a corporation or limited liability company,
Franchisee shall not, without the prior written consent of Franchisor, issue any
voting securities or securities convertible into voting securities, and the recipient
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of any such securities shall become a Principal under this Agreement, if so
designated by Franchisor.

12.3.3. If Franchisee is a partnership or limited partnership, the
partners of the partnership shall not, without the prior written consent of
Franchisor, admit additional general partners, remove a general partner, or
otherwise materially alter the powers of any general partner. Each general partner
shall automatically be deemed a Principal of Franchisee.

12.3.4. A Principal shall not, without the prior written consent of
Franchisor, transfer, pledge or otherwise encumber any interest of a Principal in
Franchisee.

12.4. Conditions for Approval. Franchisor shall not unreasonably withhold any
consent required by Section 12.3; provided, that if Franchisee proposes to
transfer its obligations hereunder or any interest in any material asset, or if a
Principal proposes to transfer any direct or indirect interest in Franchisee, or if
Franchisee or any Principal proposes to undertake any transfer that is subject to
Section 12.3, Franchisor shall have the right to require any or all of the following
as conditions of its approval (except as provided in Section 12.9):

12.4.1. The transferor shall have executed a general release (which
shall include a release from the transferor, Franchisee, Principals, and guarantors
of Franchisee), in a form satisfactory to Franchisor, of any and all claims against
Franchisor and its affiliates, successors, and assigns, and their respective directors,
officers, owners, members, managers, partners, agents, representatives, servants,
and employees in their corporate and individual capacities including, without
limitation, claims arising under this Agreement, any other agreement between
Franchisee and Franchisor or its affiliates, and federal, state, and local laws and
rules.

12.4.2. The transferee of a Principal shall be designated as a Principal
and each transferee who is designated a Principal shall enter into a written
agreement, in a form satisfactory to Franchisor, agreeing to be bound as a Principal
under the terms of this Agreement as long as such person or entity owns any
interest in Franchisee; and, the Principal shall guarantee the performance of all
such obligations in writing in a form satisfactory to Franchisor.

12.4.3. Prior to, and after the transfer, Franchisee’s new Principals
shall meet Franchisor’s educational, managerial, and business standards; each
shall possess a good moral character, business reputation, and credit rating; have
the aptitude and ability to operate the Franchise, as may be evidenced by prior
related business experience or otherwise; and have adequate financial resources
and capital to operate the Franchise.

12.4.4. If a proposed transfer would result in a change in control of
Franchisee, at Franchisor’s option, Franchisee (or transferee) shall execute, for a
term ending on the expiration date of this Agreement the form of franchise
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agreement then being offered to new System franchisees, and such other ancillary
agreements required by Franchisor for the business franchised hereunder, which
agreements shall supersede this Agreement and its ancillary documents in all
respects, and the terms of which may differ from the terms of this Agreement
including, without limitation, higher royalty and advertising fees.

12.4.5. If a proposed transfer would result in a change in control of
Franchisee, and if so requested by Franchisor, Franchisee, at its expense, shall
upgrade the Franchise to conform to the then current standards and specifications
of new Franchises then being established in the System, and shall complete the
upgrading and other requirements set forth in Sections 5.1.6 and 5.2.5 within
the time period specified by Franchisor.

12.4.6. All monetary obligations of Franchisee hereunder shall be
paid in full on a current basis, and Franchisee must not be otherwise in default of
any of its obligations hereunder including, without limitation, its reporting
obligations.

12.4.7. The transferor shall remain liable for all of the obligations to
Franchisor in connection with the Franchise that arose prior to the effective date
of the transfer, and any covenants that survive the termination or expiration of this
Agreement, and shall execute any and all instruments reasonably requested by
Franchisor to evidence such liability.

12.4.8. At Franchisee’s expense, the transferee’s Manager and other
employees designated by Franchisor shall successfully complete (to Franchisor’s
satisfaction) all training programs required by Franchisor upon such terms and
conditions as Franchisor may reasonably require (and while Franchisor will not
charge a fee for attendance at such training programs, the transferee shall be
responsible for the salary and all expenses of the person who attends training).

12.4.9. If a proposed transfer would result in a change in control of
Franchisee, and to compensate Franchisor for Franchisor’s legal, accounting,
training, and other expenses incurred in connection with the transfer, Franchisee
shall pay Franchisor a non-refundable transfer fee (per Territory) in an amount
equal to the greater of $10,000 or 20% of the then-current franchise fee applicable
to the Territory. One-half of the transfer fee shall be paid at the time Franchisee
submits its request to Franchisor for consideration of the proposed transfer, and
such amount shall be non-refundable. The balance of the transfer fee shall be paid
at the time the transfer is consummated or closes. In addition, in the event a
proposed transfer is not consummated or closed, for any reason except for
disapproval by Franchisor, Franchisee or the proposed transferee shall reimburse
Franchisor for all of its costs and expenses incurred in connection with its
evaluation of the proposed transfer, including, without limitation, attorneys’ and
accountants’ fees, background checks, site evaluation, and training, if applicable,
to the extent the portion of the transfer fee paid when the transfer approval request
was made does not cover those costs and expenses.
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12.4.10. If the proposed transfer will result in a change in control of
Franchisee, the terms of the proposed transfer will not adversely impact the
continued operations of the Franchise, as determined in Franchisor’s sole
discretion.

12.4.11. The transferor must acknowledge and agree that the
transferor shall remain bound by the covenants contained in Sections 15.2 and

15.3.

12.4.12 Franchisee shall be solely responsible for paying any broker
fees and/or commissions involved with the sale or transfer of the Franchise
regardless of whether Franchisee directly engages such broker or if, at Franchisee’s
request, Franchisor engages such broker to assist with the sale or transfer of the
Franchised Business.

12.5. Right of First Refusal.

12.5.1. If Franchisee or any Principal desires to accept any bona fide
offer from a third party to purchase Franchisee, any material assets of Franchisee,
or any direct or indirect interest in Franchisee, Franchisee or such Principal shall
promptly notify Franchisor of such offer and shall provide such information and
documentation relating to the offer as Franchisor may require. Franchisor shall
have the right and option, exercisable within 30 days after receipt of all such
information, to send written notice (the “Exercise Notice”) to the seller that
Franchisor intends to purchase the seller’s interest on the same terms and
conditions offered by the third party. If Franchisor elects to purchase the seller’s
interest, the contract to purchase the Franchise (or interests or assets) shall be
executed within 60 days after the Exercise Notice and the closing shall occur at the
principal offices of Franchisor; provided, however, that in no event shall the closing
occur later than 9o days following the execution of the definitive purchase
agreement.

12.5.2. Any material change in the terms of the bona fide offer prior
to closing shall constitute a new offer subject to the same rights of first refusal by
Franchisor as in the case of the third party’s initial offer. Additionally, if
Franchisor elects not to exercise its purchase right and Franchisee fails to complete
the proposed sale within six months from the date Franchisor notifies Franchisee
that Franchisor will not make the purchase, Franchisor shall again have the right
of first refusal described in this Section 12.5. Failure of Franchisor to exercise
the option afforded by this Section 12.5 shall not constitute a waiver of any other
provision of this Agreement, including all of the requirements of this Section 12,
with respect to a proposed transfer, or a waiver of any subsequent offer.

12.5.3. In the event the consideration, terms, and/or conditions
offered by a third party are such that Franchisor may not reasonably be required
to furnish the same consideration, terms, and/or conditions, then Franchisor may
purchase the interest proposed to be sold for the reasonable equivalent in cash. If
the parties cannot agree within a reasonable time on the reasonable equivalent in
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cash of the consideration, terms, and/or conditions offered by the third party, they
must attempt to appoint a mutually-acceptable independent appraiser to make a
binding determination. If the parties are unable to agree upon one independent
appraiser, then an independent appraiser shall be promptly designated by
Franchisor and another independent appraiser shall be promptly designated by
Franchisee, which two appraisers shall, in turn, promptly designate a third
appraiser; all three appraisers shall promptly confer and reach a single
determination, which determination shall be binding upon Franchisor and
Franchisee. The cost of any such appraisal shall be shared equally by Franchisor
and Franchisee. If Franchisor elects to exercise its right under this Section 12.5,
Franchisor shall have the right to set off all amounts due from Franchisee, and one-
half of the cost of the appraisal, if any, against any payment to the seller.

12.6. Transfer Upon Death. Upon the death of a Principal, the deceased’s
executor, administrator, or other personal representative shall transfer the
deceased’s interest to a third party approved by Franchisor within 12 months after
the death. If the distributee is not approved by Franchisor, then the distributee
shall transfer the deceased’s interest to a third party approved by Franchisor within
12 months after the deceased’s death.

12.7. Transfer Upon Permanent Disability. Upon the permanent disability of any
Principal with a controlling interest in Franchisee, Franchisor shall have the right
to require such interest to be transferred to a third party in accordance with the
conditions described in this Section 12 within six months after notice to
Franchisee, provided that no transfer fee shall be due for a transfer pursuant to
this Section 12.7. “Permanent Disability” shall mean any physical, emotional,
or mental injury, illness, or incapacity that would prevent a person from
performing the obligations set forth in this Agreement for at least six consecutive
months, and from which condition recovery within six consecutive months from
the date of determination of disability is unlikely. Permanent disability shall be
determined by a licensed practicing physician upon examination of such person
or, if such person refuses to be examined, then such person shall automatically be
deemed permanently disabled for the purposes of this Section 12.7 as of the date
of refusal. The licensed practicing physician making such determination shall be
chosen by the mutual agreement of a doctor selected by Franchisor and a doctor
selected by Franchisee. Franchisor shall pay the cost of the required examination.

12.8. Notification Upon Death or Permanent Disability. Upon the death or
permanent disability any Principal of Franchisee, such person or his representative
shall promptly notify Franchisor of such death or claim of permanent disability.
Any transfer upon death or permanent disability shall be subject to the same terms
and conditions as any inter vivos transfer.

12.9. Exceptions for Entity Formed Convenience of Ownership or Transfer to
Family Member. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 12, if
Franchisee is an individual and seeks to transfer this Agreement to an entity
formed for the convenience of ownership or if Franchisee seeks to transfer this
Agreement to a spouse, adult sibling or adult child (subject to compliance with all
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other provisions of the Transfer), the conditions of Sections 12.4.4 (signing a
new franchise agreement), 12.4.5 (upgrading the Franchise), 12.4.8 (initial
training of new Manager), and 12.4.9 (transfer fee) shall not apply; provided
however, that in lieu of a transfer fee, Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor for
its legal, accounting and other professional fees and other costs incurred in
connection with the transfer if any, and Franchisee may undertake such transfer,
provided that Franchisee (or their spouse, sibling or child as applicable above)
owns 100% of the equity interest in the transferee entity, and the Franchisee and
transferee personally guarantees, in a written guaranty satisfactory to Franchisor,
the performance of the obligations of Franchisee under this Agreement.

12.10.No Waiver of Claims. Franchisor’s consent to a transfer which is the subject
of this Section 12 shall not constitute a waiver of any claims it may have against
the transferring party, nor shall it be deemed a waiver of Franchisor’s right to
demand exact compliance with any of the terms of this Agreement by the transferor
or transferee.

12.11. Insolvency. If Franchisee or any person holding any interest (direct or
indirect) in Franchisee becomes a debtor in a proceeding under the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code or any similar law in the U.S. or elsewhere, it is the parties’
understanding and agreement that any transfer of Franchisee, Franchisee’s
obligations and/or rights hereunder, any material assets of Franchisee, or any
indirect or direct interest in Franchisee shall be subject to all of the terms of this
Section 12.

12.12. Securities Offerings. All materials for an offering of stock or partnership
interests in Franchisee or any affiliate of Franchisee which are required by federal
or state law shall be submitted to Franchisor for review as described below before
such materials are filed with any government agency. Any materials to be used in
any exempt offering shall be submitted to Franchisor for such review prior to their
use. No offering by Franchisee or any affiliate of Franchisee shall imply (by use of
the Marks or otherwise) that Franchisor is participating in an underwriting,
issuance, or offering of the securities of Franchisee or Franchisee’s affiliates; and
Franchisor’s review of any offering shall be limited solely to the relationship
between Franchisor and Franchisee and affiliates, if applicable, and shall not
constitute any opinion as to any legal requirement. Franchisor may, at its option,
require the offering materials to contain a written statement prescribed by
Franchisor concerning the limitations stated in the preceding sentence.
Franchisee (and the offeror if not Franchisee), the Principals, and all other
participants in the offering must fully indemnify Franchisor, its affiliates,
successors, and assigns, and their respective directors, officers, shareholders,
partners, agents, representatives, servants, and employees in connection with the
offering and shall execute any and all documents required by Franchisor to endorse
such indemnification. For each proposed offering, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor
an amount as is necessary to reimburse Franchisor for its reasonable costs and
expenses (including legal and accounting fees) for reviewing the proposed offering.
Franchisee shall give Franchisor written notice at least 30 days before the date that
any offering or other transaction described in this Section 12.12 commences. Any
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13.

such offering shall be subject to all of the other provisions of this Article 12; and
further, without limiting the foregoing, it is agreed that any such offering shall be
subject to Franchisor’s approval as to the structure and voting control of the offeror
(and Franchisee, if Franchisee is not the offeror) after the financing is completed.

DEFAULT AND TERMINATION

13.1. Automatic Termination. Franchisee shall be deemed to be in default under
this Agreement, and all rights granted herein shall automatically terminate
without notice to Franchisee, if Franchisee shall become insolvent or makes a
general assignment for the benefit of creditors; or if a petition in bankruptcy is filed
by Franchisee or such a petition is filed against and not opposed by Franchisee; or
if Franchisee is adjudicated as bankrupt or insolvent; or if a bill in equity or other
proceeding for the appointment of a receiver of Franchisee or other custodian for
Franchisee’s business or assets is filed and consented to by Franchisee; or if a
receiver or other custodian (permanent or temporary) of Franchisee’s assets or
property, or any part thereof, is appointed by any court of competent jurisdiction;
or if proceedings for a composition with creditors under any state or federal law
should be instituted by or against Franchisee; or if a final judgment remains
unsatisfied or of record for 30 days or longer (unless unappealed or a supersedeas
bond is filed); or if Franchisee is dissolved; or if execution is levied against
Franchisee’s business or property; or if suit to foreclose any lien or mortgage
against the Franchise premises or equipment is instituted against Franchisee and
not dismissed within 30 days; or if the real or personal property of Franchisee’s
Franchise shall be sold after levy thereupon by any sheriff, marshal, or constable.

13.2. Termination Upon Notice Without Opportunity to Cure. Franchisee shall
be deemed to be in default and Franchisor may, at its option, terminate this

Agreement and all rights granted hereunder, without affording Franchisee any
opportunity to cure the default, effective immediately upon the delivery of written
notice to Franchisee by Franchisor (in the manner set forth under Section 20),
upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

13.2.1. If Franchisee fails to open the Franchise as provided in
Section 5.5;
13.2.2. If Franchisee or other designated employee fails to complete

the initial training program pursuant to Sections 3.2 and 5.6 of this Agreement;

13.2.3. If Franchisee at any time ceases to operate or otherwise
abandons the Franchise for three consecutive business days, or loses the right to
possession of the Approved Location or otherwise forfeits the right to do or
transact business in the jurisdiction where the Franchise is located;

13.2.4. If Franchisee or any Principal is convicted of a felony or
engages in any other activity that Franchisor believes is reasonably likely to have
an adverse effect on the System, the Marks, the goodwill associated therewith, or
Franchisor’s interest therein;
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13.2.5. If a threat or danger to public health or safety results from the
construction, maintenance, or operation of the Franchise;

13.2.6. If Franchisee or any Principal purports to transfer any rights
or obligations under this Agreement or any interest to any third party in a manner
that is contrary to the terms of Section 12;

13.2.7. If Franchisee or any Principal fails to comply with the
covenants in Section 15.2;

13.2.8. If, contrary to the terms of Sections 7 or 8, Franchisee
discloses or divulges confidential information provided to Franchisee by
Franchisor;

13.2.9. If Franchisee knowingly maintains false books or records, or
submits any false reports (including, but not limited to, information provided as
part of Franchisee’s application for this franchise) to Franchisor, underreports
Gross Sales by more than 5% or more for any period;

13.2.10. If Franchisee commits three or more defaults under this
Agreement in any 12-month period, whether or not each such default has been
cured after notice;

13.2.11. If Franchisee or any Principal makes any unauthorized or
improper use of the Marks or contests the validity of Franchisor’s ownership of the
Marks or its right to use and to license others to use the Marks; and/or

13.2.12. If Franchisee or any Principal is in breach or default under any
other agreement (whether existing as of the date of this Agreement or subsequently
made) with Franchisor or any of its subsidiaries or Affiliates, and if such default is
curable, fails to cure the default as required within the time permitted.

13.3. Termination With Opportunity to Cure. Except as otherwise provided in
Sections 13.1 and 13.2, upon any other default by Franchisee of its obligations
hereunder, Franchisor may terminate this Agreement only by giving written notice
of termination (in the manner set forth under Article 20) setting forth the nature
of such default to Franchisee at least 30 days prior to the effective date of
termination (or, with respect to monetary defaults, five days); provided, however,
that Franchisee may avoid termination by immediately initiating a remedy to cure
such default, curing it to Franchisor’s satisfaction, and by promptly providing
proof thereof to Franchisor, all within the 30 day period (or five day period with
respect to monetary defaults). If any such default is not cured within the specified
time, this Agreement may, upon Franchisor’s election, be terminated without
further notice to Franchisee effective immediately upon the expiration of the 30
day period (or five day period with respect to monetary defaults) or such longer
period as applicable law may require.

13.4. Extended Notice of Termination. If any law applicable to this Section 13,

requires a longer notice period prior to termination of this Agreement, or prior to
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a refusal to enter into a successor or renewal franchise, than is required hereunder,
a different standard of “good cause”, or the taking of some other action not
required hereunder, the prior notice, “good cause” standard, and/or other action
required by such law shall be substituted for the comparable provisions hereof.

13.5. Assignment Upon Bankruptey. If, for any reason, this Agreement is not
terminated pursuant to this Article 13, and this Agreement is assumed, or
assignment of the same to any person or entity who has made a bona fide offer to
accept an assignment of this Agreement is contemplated, pursuant to the United
States Bankruptcy Code, then notice of such proposed assignment or assumption,
setting forth: (i) the name and address of the proposed assignee; and (ii) all of the
terms and conditions of the proposed assignment and assumption, shall be given
to Franchisor within 20 days after receipt of such proposed assignee’s offer to
accept assignment of this Agreement, and, in any event, within 10 days prior to the
date application is made to a court of competent jurisdiction for authority and
approval to enter into such assignment and assumption, and Franchisor shall
thereupon have the prior right and option, to be exercised by notice given at any
time prior to the effective date of such proposed assignment and assumption, to
accept an assignment of this Agreement to Franchisor itself upon the same terms
and conditions and for the same consideration, if any, as in the bona fide offer
made by the proposed assignee, less any brokerage commissions which may be
payable by Franchisee out of the consideration to be paid by such assignee for the
assignment of this Agreement. In the event Franchisor does not elect to exercise
the options described in this Section 13.5, any transfer or assignment pursuant
to the United States Bankruptcy Code shall be subject to the same terms and
conditions of any other transfer or assignment set forth in Article 12.

13.6. Damages / Early Termination Fees (Liquidated Damages). In addition to

any other claims Franchisor may have (other than claims for lost future Royalty
Fees and Brand Fund Contributions), if Franchisor terminates this Agreement
based on Franchisee’s default or if Franchisee terminates this Agreement in
violation of its terms (including abandonment or failure to open), Franchisee must
pay Franchisor liquidated damages calculated as follows: the greater of (i) the
average of Franchisee’s monthly Royalty Fees and Brand Fund Contributions due
for the last 12 months (or for such shorter period of time that the Franchise has
been in operation) before termination, or (ii) the average monthly amount which
would be due based on the minimum fees set forth in Section 4.2 for a period 37+
months after the Effective Date, multiplied by the lesser of 24 or the number of
months remaining in the then-current term under Section 2.1, discounted to
present value using the then-current prime rate of interest quoted by Franchisor’s
principal commercial bank; (iii) or $150,000 per Territory. The parties hereto
agree that calculation of damages if Franchisor terminates due to default or if
Franchisee terminates this Agreement in violation of its terms will be difficult to
measure and quantify, and the damages described in this Section 13.6 are a
reasonable approximation of such damages, and are not a penalty. Additional
damages which may be charged include, but are not limited to, 36 months of the
amounts due for the Technology Fee, reduction in Franchisor’s enterprise value
attributable to the loss of the Franchisee, value of future rebates based on average

Cabinet IQ FDD 2025

45



14.

performance of all franchisees plus all other amounts and damages Franchisor
could lawfully claim.

OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION

Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, all rights granted hereunder to

Franchisee shall forthwith terminate, and:

14.1. Cease Operations. Franchisee shall immediately cease to operate the
Franchise, and shall not thereafter, directly or indirectly, represent to the public or
hold itself out as a present or former franchisee of Franchisor.

14.2. Cease Use of Marks. Franchisee shall immediately and permanently cease
to use, in any manner whatsoever, any confidential methods, procedures and
techniques associated with the System, the mark “Cabinet IQ” and all other Marks
and distinctive forms, slogans, signs, symbols, and devices associated with the
System. In particular, Franchisee shall cease to use, without limitation, all Cabinet
IQ Vehicles, signs, advertising materials, displays, stationery, forms, and any other
articles that display the Marks.

14.3. Cancellation of Assumed Names. Franchisee shall take such action as may
be necessary to cancel any assumed name or equivalent registration which
contains the mark “Cabinet IQ” and all other Marks, and/or any other service mark
or trademark of Franchisor, and Franchisee shall furnish Franchisor with evidence
satisfactory to Franchisor of compliance with this obligation within five days after
termination or expiration of this Agreement.

14.4. Assign Lease; Modification of Premises. Franchisor, or any affiliate of
Franchisor, shall have the right and option, but not the obligation, in Franchisor’s
sole discretion, to acquire the Lease, or otherwise acquire the right to occupy the
Approved Location. Franchisor may assign or delegate this right or option to any
affiliate or designee of Franchisor, without notice to, or request for approval from,
the landlord or lessor of the Approved Location. If Franchisor or its assignee or
delegatee does not elect or is unable to exercise any option it may have to acquire
the Lease, or otherwise acquire the right to occupy the Approved Location,
Franchisee shall make such modifications or alterations to the Approved
Location operated hereunder immediately upon termination or expiration of this
Agreement as may be necessary to distinguish the appearance of said premises
from that of other Franchises, and shall make such specific additional changes
thereto as Franchisor may reasonably request for that purpose. If Franchisee fails
or refuses to comply with the requirements of this Section 14.4, Franchisor (or
its designee) shall have the right to enter upon the premises of the Franchise,
without being guilty of trespass or any other tort, for the purpose of making or
causing to be made such changes as may be required, at the expense of Franchisee,
which expense Franchisee agrees to pay upon demand.

14.5. Telephone, Etc. Franchisee shall cease use of, and if Franchisor requests,
shall transfer to Franchisor, all telephone numbers, customer lists, and any
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domain names, websites, email addresses, and any other identifiers, whether or
not authorized by Franchisor, used by Franchisee while operating the Franchise.

14.6. No Confusion. Franchisee agrees, if it continues to operate or subsequently
begins to operate any other business, not to use any reproduction, counterfeit copy,
or colorable imitation of the Marks, either in connection with such other business
or the promotion thereof, which is likely to cause confusion, mistake, or deception,
or which is likely to dilute Franchisor’s rights in and to the Marks, and further
agrees not to utilize any designation of origin, description, trademark, service
mark, or representation which suggests or represents a present or past association
or connection with Franchisor, the System, or the Marks.

14.7. Pay Monies Owed. Franchisee shall promptly pay all sums owing to
Franchisor and its subsidiaries and affiliates (regardless of whether those
obligations arise under this Agreement or otherwise). In the event of termination
for any default of Franchisee, such sums shall include all damages, costs, and
expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by Franchisor as a result
of the default.

14.8. Damages and Costs. Franchisee shall pay Franchisor all damages, costs,
and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by Franchisor
subsequent to the termination or expiration of this Agreement in obtaining
injunctive or other relief for the enforcement of any provisions of this Section 14.

14.9. Return of Manuals. Franchisee shall immediately deliver to Franchisor the
Manuals and all other manuals, records, and instructions containing confidential
information (including without limitation any copies thereof, even if such copies
were made in violation of this Agreement), all of which are acknowledged to be the
property of Franchisor.

14.10.0ption to Purchase Furnishings and Equipment. Franchisor shall have the
option to purchase from Franchisee any or all of the Cabinet IQ Vehicles,

furnishings, equipment, signs, fixtures, supplies, or inventory of Franchisee
related to the operation of the Franchise, at the lesser of the fair market value or
Franchisee’s book value. Franchisor shall have 30 days from the expiration or
termination of this Agreement to notify Franchisee that Franchisor will exercise its
option under this Section 14.10, and another 60 days from such notice to complete
such purchase. The book value of any such item shall be determined based upon a
five-year straight-line depreciation of original costs. (each year or portion of a year
shall decrease value by 20%) For equipment that is five or more years old, the
parties agree that fair market value shall be deemed to be 10% of the equipment’s
original cost. If Franchisor elects to exercise any option to purchase herein
provided, it shall have the right to set off all amounts due from Franchisee as well
as all amounts due to Franchisor’s affiliates from Franchisee. Franchisee shall take
all actions as necessary to ensure that any items purchased by Franchisor shall be
free of all liens or other encumbrances at the time Franchisee sells such items to
Franchisor. Items purchased hereunder shall be delivered, at Franchisee’s
expense, to the location reasonably specified by Franchisor or Franchisor’s
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principal place of business. Book value as defined above shall be decreased by the
amounts necessary to return the equipment or vehicles to a resalable condition (i.e.
cost of replacing graphics, worn, broken or missing parts or goods). Franchisor
shall inspect the items within 3 business days after they are delivered to Franchisor
and shall notify Franchisee of all additional deductions and costs necessary to
comply with the above.

14.11. Right to Enter and Operate. In order to preserve the goodwill of the System
following termination, Franchisor (or its designee) shall have the right to enter the
Approved Location (without liability to Franchisee, Franchisee’s Principals, or
otherwise) or to take possession of the Cabinet IQ Vehicle(s) used by Franchisee
for the purpose of continuing the Franchise’s operation and maintaining the
goodwill of the business.

14.12.Close Vendor Accounts. Franchisee must close all accounts with vendors
which were opened in connection with the opening and operation of the Franchise.
Franchisor has the right to notify Franchisee’s vendors that this Agreement has
expired or been terminated and to require them to close Franchisee’s accounts, if
Franchisee fails to do so.

14.13.Security Interest. For the purpose of securing its obligations under this
Agreement, Franchisee hereby grants Franchisor a security interest in all personal
property related to the operation of the Franchise of any nature now owned or
hereinafter acquired by Franchisee, including, but not limited to, all signs, logos
bearing any of the Marks, inventory, equipment, Cabinet IQ Vehicles(s), trade
fixtures, furnishings and accounts, together with the proceeds therefrom (the
“Security Agreement”). Any event of default by Franchisee under this
Agreement shall be deemed a breach of the Security Agreement. Franchisee
covenants to execute and deliver to Franchisor any and all instruments Franchisor
may reasonably request from time to time in order to perfect the security interest
granted herein, including, without limitation, the appropriate UCC-1 Financing
Statements.

COVENANTS

15.1. Full Time and Best Efforts. Franchisee covenants that during the term of
this Agreement, except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, Franchisee
(or its Operating Principal if Franchisee is an entity) (or a Manager who will
assume primary responsibility for the franchise operations and shall have been
previously approved in writing by Franchisor) and a Salesperson shall devote full
time, energy, and best efforts to the management and operation of the Franchise.

15.2. In-Term Covenants. Franchisee specifically acknowledges that, pursuant to
this Agreement, Franchisee will receive valuable specialized training and
confidential information, including, without limitation, information regarding the
operational, sales, promotional, and marketing methods and techniques of
Franchisor and the System. Franchisee covenants that during the term of this
Agreement, except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, Franchisee
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shall not, either directly or indirectly, for itself, or through, on behalf of, or in
conjunction with any person or entity:

15.2.1. Divert or attempt to divert any business or customer of the
Franchise or of any Franchise using the System to any competitor, by direct or
indirect inducement or otherwise, or do or perform, directly or indirectly, any
other act injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill associated with Franchisor’s
Marks and the System.

15.2.2. Unless released in writing by the employer, (a) employ or seek
to employ any person who (i) is at that time employed by Franchisor, or (ii) who
was, within six months prior to his/her employ by Franchisee, or any person acting
for, on behalf of, or at the directions of Franchisee employed by Franchisor, or (b)
otherwise directly or indirectly induce such person to leave his or her employment.

15.2.3. Except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, own,
maintain, operate, engage in, or have any interest in any “Competitive
Business” in any location, which shall mean a business which offers cabinets
evaluation, installation or removal, energy efficiency evaluations and
improvements, and related services.

15.3. Post-Term Covenants. Franchisee covenants that, except as otherwise
approved in writing by Franchisor, it shall not, for a continuous uninterrupted
period of two years from the date of: (a) a transfer permitted under Section 12;
(b) expiration or termination of this Agreement (regardless of the cause for
termination); or (c) a final order of a court of competent jurisdiction (after all
appeals have been taken) with respect to any of the foregoing or with respect to the
enforcement of this Section 15.3; either directly or indirectly (through, on behalf
of, or in conjunction with any persons or entity), own, maintain, operate, engage
in, or have any interest in any Competitive Business which is, or is intended to be,
located: (a) at the Approved Location; (b) within a 100 mile radius of the Territory;
or (c) within a 100 mile radius of the territory of any other Franchises or company
or affiliate-owned Cabinet IQ business in operation as of the time that the
obligations under this Section 15.3 commence.

15.4. Publicly-Held Corporations. Section 15.3 shall not apply to ownership by
Franchisee of less than 5% beneficial interest in the outstanding equity securities
of any Publicly Held Corporation. As used in this Agreement, the term “Publicly
Held Corporation” shall be deemed to refer to a corporation which has securities
that have been registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

15.5. Individual Covenants. Franchisee shall require and obtain execution of
covenants similar to those set forth in Section 8 and this Article 15 (as modified
to apply to an individual) from any or all of Franchisee’s Principals, the Manager,
any replacement Manager and other highly trained personnel as designated by
Franchisor. The covenants required by this Section 15.5 shall be in the form
provided in Exhibit D to this Agreement.
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15.6. Severability. The parties agree that each of the foregoing covenants shall be
construed as independent of any other covenant or provision of this Agreement. If
all or any portion of the covenants in this Section 15 is held to be unenforceable
or unreasonable by any court, it is the intent of the parties that the court modify
such restriction to extent reasonably necessary to protect the legitimate business
interests of Franchisor.

15.7. Scope of Covenants. Franchisee understands and acknowledges that
Franchisor shall have the right to reduce the scope of any covenant set forth in
Sections 15.2 and 15.3 in this Agreement, or any portion thereof, without
Franchisee’s consent, effective immediately upon receipt by Franchisee of written
notice thereof; and Franchisee agrees that it shall comply forthwith with any
covenant as so modified.

15.8. Enforcement of Claims. Franchisee expressly agrees that the existence of
any claims it may have against Franchisor, whether or not arising from this
Agreement, shall not constitute a defense to the enforcement by Franchisor of the
covenants in this Section 15. Franchisee agrees to pay all costs and expenses
(including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other costs)
incurred by Franchisor in connection with the enforcement of this Section 15.

15.9. Irreparable Injury. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisee’s violation of
the terms of this Section 15 would result in irreparable injury to Franchisor for
which no adequate remedy at law may be available, and Franchisee accordingly
consents to the issuance of an injunction prohibiting any conduct by Franchisee in
violation of the terms of this Section 15.

TAXES, PERMITS, AND INDEBTEDNESS

16.1. Taxes. Franchisee shall promptly pay when due all taxes levied or assessed,
including, without limitation, income, unemployment, and sales taxes, and all
accounts and other indebtedness of every kind incurred by Franchisee in the
conduct of the business franchised under this Agreement. Franchisee shall pay
Franchisor an amount equal to any sales tax, gross receipts tax, or similar tax
(other than income tax) imposed on Franchisor with respect to any payments to
Franchisor required under this Agreement, unless the tax is credited against
income tax otherwise payable by Franchisor.

16.2. Tax Disputes. In the event of any bona fide dispute as to Franchisee’s
liability for taxes assessed or other indebtedness, Franchisee may contest the
validity or the amount of the tax or indebtedness in accordance with procedures of
the taxing authority or applicable law; however, in no event shall Franchisee
permit a tax sale or seizure by levy of execution or similar writ or warrant, or
attachment by a creditor, to occur against the premises of the Franchise, or any
improvements thereon.

16.3. Compliance With Laws. Franchisee shall comply with all federal, state, and
local laws, rules, and regulations, and shall timely obtain any and all permits,
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certificates, or licenses necessary for the full and proper conduct of the business
franchised under this Agreement, including, without limitation, licenses to do
business, fictitious name registrations, sales tax permits, and fire clearances.

16.4. Notification of Claims. Franchisee shall notify Franchisor in writing within
three days of receipt of notice of any health or safety violation, the commencement
of any action, suit, or proceeding, and of the issuance of any order, writ, injunction,
award, or decree of any court, agency, or other governmental instrumentality, or
within three days occurrence of any accident or injury which may adversely affect
the operation of the Franchise or the financial condition of Franchisee, or give rise
to liability or a claim against Franchisee or Franchisor.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AND INDEMNIFICATION

17.1. Independent Contractors. It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto
that this Agreement does not create a fiduciary relationship between them; that
Franchisee shall be an independent contractor; and, that nothing in this
Agreement is intended to constitute either party an agent, legal representative,
subsidiary, joint venturer, partner, employee, or servant of the other for any
purpose whatsoever.

17.2. Identification as Independent Contractor. At all times during the term of
this Agreement and any extensions hereof, Franchisee shall hold itself out to the
public as an independent contractor operating the business pursuant to a franchise
from Franchisor.

17.3. No Agency. It is understood and agreed that nothing in this Agreement
authorizes Franchisee to make any contract, agreement, warranty, or
representation on Franchisor’s behalf, or to incur any debt or other obligation in
Franchisor’s name; and that Franchisor shall in no event assume liability for, or be
deemed liable hereunder as a result of, any such action; nor shall Franchisor be
liable by reason of any act or omission of Franchisee in its conduct of the Franchise
or for any claim or judgment arising therefrom against Franchisee or Franchisor.

17.4. Indemnification and Advancement. Franchisee shall immediately and
unconditionally advance costs and expenses, indemnify and hold Franchisor and
its affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, members, managers,
employees, and agents harmless against any and all claims, obligations, and
damages (as well as the costs, including attorneys’ fees, of defending against them)
arising directly or indirectly from, as a result of, or in connection with Franchisee’s
operation of the Franchise or Franchisee’s breach of this Agreement, including,
without limitation, those alleged to be caused by Franchisor’s negligence or breach
of this Agreement, but not including those claims, obligations, and damages that
are determined to be caused solely by Franchisor’s gross negligence or willful
misconduct according to a final, unappealable ruling issued by a court with
competent jurisdiction. In addition to the above and without regard to the final
ruling on any matter, Franchisee and its respective Principals hereby agree to
immediately and unconditionally advance, or pay directly to designated parties,
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any amounts which are incurred in connection with any claim against Franchisor
or its affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, members, managers,
employees, and agents arising from or relating to, directly or indirectly,
Franchisee’s operation of the Franchise or Franchisee’s breach of this Agreement
without regard to any defenses based on errors, omissions or conduct of Franchisor
or its members, managers, shareholders, directors, affiliates or agents. If
Franchisor incurs any costs or expenses, including, without limitation, legal fees,
travel expenses, and other charges, in connection with any proceeding involving
Franchisee in which Franchisor is not a party, Franchisee shall reimburse
Franchisor for all such costs and expenses promptly upon presentation of invoices.
Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisee’s indemnification and hold
harmless obligations under this Section 17.4 shall survive the termination or
expiration of this Agreement.

FORCE MAJEURE

Neither party shall be responsible to the other for non-performance or delay in

performance occasioned by causes beyond its control, including without limiting the
generality of the foregoing: (a) acts of God; (b) acts of war, terrorism, or insurrection;
(c) strikes, lockouts, labor actions, boycotts, floods, fires, hurricanes, tornadoes, and/or
other casualties; (d) the inability of Franchisor and/or its affiliates or suppliers to
manufacture, purchase, and/or cause delivery of any products used in the operation of
the Franchise; and (e) legislative changes and/or governmental orders affecting the sale
of the products from Franchises. The inability of either party to obtain and/or remit funds
shall be considered within control of such party.

19.

APPROVALS AND WAIVERS

19.1. Approvals. Whenever this Agreement requires the prior approval or
consent of Franchisor, Franchisee shall make a timely written request to
Franchisor therefor, and such approval or consent must be obtained in writing.

19.2. No Warranties. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor
makes no warranties or guarantees upon which Franchisee may rely, and assumes
no liability or obligation to Franchisee, by providing any waiver, approval, consent,
or suggestion to Franchisee in connection with this Agreement, or by reason of any
neglect, delay, or denial of any request therefor.

19.3. Waivers. No delay, waiver, omission, or forbearance on the part of
Franchisor to exercise any right, option, duty, or power arising out of any breach
or default by Franchisee or any other franchisee under any of the terms, provisions,
covenants, or conditions of this Agreement, and no custom or practice by the
parties at variance with the terms of this Agreement, shall constitute a waiver by
Franchisor to enforce any such right, option, duty, or power as against Franchisee,
or as to subsequent breach or default by Franchisee. Subsequent acceptance by
Franchisor of any payments due to it hereunder shall not be deemed to be a waiver
by Franchisor of any preceding or succeeding breach by Franchisee of any terms,
provisions, covenants, or conditions of this Agreement.
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20. NOTICES

All notices and other communications required or permitted under this Agreement
will be in writing and will be given by one of the following methods of delivery: (i)
personally; (ii) by certified or registered mail, postage prepaid; (iii) by overnight delivery
service; or (iv) if to Franchisee, by email if an email address is designated on the Summary
Page. Notices to Franchisee will be sent to the address set forth on the Summary Page.
Notices to Franchisor must be sent to:

CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC
2419 S. Bell Blvd.
Cedar Park, Texas 78613

Either party may change its mailing address by giving notice to the other party.
Notices will be deemed received the same day when delivered personally or upon actual
or attempted delivery when sent by registered or certified mail or overnight delivery
service.

21.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND AMENDMENT

This Agreement and all exhibits to this Agreement, constitute the entire agreement
between the parties. This Agreement supersedes any and all prior negotiations,
understandings representations and agreements. No representations have induced You
to execute this Agreement with Franchisor. Except for those permitted to be made
unilaterally by Franchisor hereunder, no amendment, change, or variance from this
Agreement shall be binding on either party unless mutually agreed to by the parties and
executed by their authorized officers or agents in writing.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Agreement shall disclaim or require
You to waive reliance on any representation that Franchisor made in the most recent
disclosure document (including its exhibits and amendments) (the “FDD”) that
Franchisor delivered to You or Your representative, subject to any agreed-upon changes
to the contract terms and conditions described in that disclosure document and reflected
in this Agreement (including any riders or addenda signed at the same time as this
Agreement).

You acknowledge that you are entering into this Agreement as a result of your own
independent investigation and not as a result of any representations (with the exception
of those representations made in the FDD) made by Franchisor, its members, managers,
officers, directors, employees, agents, representatives or independent contractors that are
contrary to the terms set forth in this Agreement. You acknowledge that the FDD you
received contained a copy of this Franchise Agreement and that you reviewed the FDD
and Franchise Agreement at least fourteen (14) days (or such other time as applicable law
requires) before you signed this Agreement. You further understand acknowledge and
agree that any information you obtain from any Franchisor’s franchisee, including
relating to their sales, profit, cash flows, and/or expenses, does not constitute information
obtained from Franchisor, nor does Franchisor make any representation as to the
accuracy of any such information.
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SEVERABILITY AND CONSTRUCTION

22.1. Severability. If any of the provisions of this Agreement may be construed in
more than one way, one of which would render the provision illegal or otherwise
voidable or unenforceable, such provision shall have the meaning which renders it
valid and enforceable. The language of all provisions of this Agreement shall be
construed according to its fair meaning and not strictly against any party. In the
event any court or other government authority shall determine any provision in
this Agreement is not enforceable as written, the parties agree that the provision
shall be amended so that it is enforceable to the fullest extent permissible under
the laws and public policies of the jurisdiction in which enforcement is sought and
affords the parties the same basic rights and obligations and has the same
economic effect. If any provision in this Agreement is held invalid or otherwise
unenforceable by any court or other government authority or in any arbitration
proceeding, such findings shall not invalidate the remainder of this Agreement
unless in the reasonable opinion of Franchisor the effect of such determination has
the effect of frustrating the purpose of this Agreement, whereupon Franchisor shall
have the right by notice in writing to the other party to immediately terminate this
Agreement.

22.2. No Other Rights. Except as expressly provided to the contrary herein,
nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor shall be deemed, to confer upon any
person or entity other than Franchisee, Franchisor, and such of Franchisee’s and
Franchisor’s respective successors and assigns as may be contemplated (and, as to
Franchisee, permitted by Article 12), any rights or remedies under or by reason
of this Agreement.

22.3. Enforceability of Covenants. Franchisee expressly agrees to be bound by
any promise or covenant imposing the maximum duty permitted by law which is
subsumed within the terms of any provision of this Agreement, as though it were
separately articulated in and made a part of this Agreement, that may result from
striking from any of the provisions hereof any portion or portions which a court
may hold to be unenforceable in a final decision to which Franchisor is a party, or
from reducing the scope of any promise or covenant to the extent required to
comply with such a court order.

22.4. Construction. All captions in this Agreement are intended solely for the
convenience of the parties, and none shall be deemed to affect the meaning or
construction of any provision hereof.

22.5. Importance of Timely Performance. Time is of the essence in this
Agreement.

22.6. Survival of Provisions. All provisions of this Agreement which, by their
terms or intent, are designed to survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement, shall so survive the expiration and/or termination of this Agreement.
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22.7. Additional Terms; Inconsistent Terms. The parties may provide additional
terms by including the terms on the Summary Page. To the extent that any
provisions of the Summary Page are in direct conflict with the provisions of this
Agreement, the provisions of the Summary Page shall control.

APPLICABLE LAW AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

23.1. Governing Law. This Agreement takes effect upon its acceptance and
execution by Franchisor, and shall be interpreted and construed exclusively under
the laws of the State of Texas, which laws shall prevail in the event of any conflict
of law (without regard to, and without giving effect to, the application of Texas
choice-of-law rules). Nothing in this Section 23.1 is intended by the parties to
subject this Agreement to any franchise, business opportunity, consumer
protection, or similar law, rule, or regulation of the State of Texas to which this
Agreement would not otherwise be subject.

23.2. Arbitration.

23.2.1. Disputes Subject to Arbitration. Except as expressly provided
to the contrary in this Agreement, any controversy or claim arising out of or
relating to this Agreement or the relationship of the parties shall be settled by
arbitration administered by the American Arbitration Association (the “AAA”) in
accordance with its Commercial Arbitration Rules. Judgment on the award
rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court having jurisdiction. Any
dispute as to whether this arbitration clause applies or whether any particular
claim is subject to arbitration shall be decided by arbitration in accordance with
this Article 23.

23.2.2. Arbitration Claims. The parties agree to be bound by the
provisions of any limitation on the period of time in which claims must be brought
under applicable law or this Agreement, whichever expires earlier. The parties
further agree that, in any arbitration proceeding, each must submit or file any
claim which would constitute a compulsory counterclaim (as defined by Rule 13 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure) within the same proceeding as the claim to
which it relates. Any claim which is not submitted or filed as required is waived
and forever barred. The arbitrator may not consider any settlement discussions or
offers that might have been made by either party. The parties agree that arbitration
will be conducted on an individual basis, that neither party shall pursue class
claims nor multi-plaintiff actions, and that an arbitration proceeding between
Franchisor and its affiliates, or any of them, on the one hand, and Franchisee and
its affiliates and any of their respective officers, directors, managers, agents,
representatives, employees, successors and assigns, on the other hand, may not be
consolidated with any other arbitration proceeding to which Franchisor and/or its
affiliates are a party. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any court determines that
all or any part of the preceding sentence is unenforceable with respect to a dispute
that otherwise would be subject to arbitration under this Section, then the parties
agree that this arbitration clause shall not apply to that dispute and that such
dispute shall be resolved in a judicial proceeding. For purposes of this Section,
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Franchisor and its affiliates includes their respective shareholders, partners,
members and other owners, officers, directors, managers, agents, representatives,
employees, successors and assigns.

23.2.3. Location. The place of arbitration shall be the AAA office
located nearest to Franchisor’s principal place of business on the date the
arbitration action is filed.

23.2.4. Confidentiality. All documents, information, and results
pertaining to any arbitration will be confidential, except as required by law or as
required for Franchisor to comply with laws and regulations applicable to the sale
of franchises.

23.2.5. Performance During Arbitration. Franchisor and Franchisee
will comply with this Agreement and perform their respective obligations under
this Agreement during the arbitration process.

23.3. Venue. For any matter which is not subject to the arbitration provisions of
Section 23.2, each party hereto consents to personal jurisdiction in the federal or
state courts located in the county in which Franchisor’s principal place of business
is located at the time that the action commences. Franchisee and its Principals
hereby waive all questions of personal jurisdiction or venue for the purpose of
carrying out this provision.

23.4. No Exclusive Remedies. No right or remedy conferred upon or reserved to
Franchisor or Franchisee by this Agreement is intended to be, nor shall be deemed,
exclusive of any other right or remedy herein or by law or equity provided or
permitted, but each shall be cumulative of every other right or remedy.

23.5. Injunctive Relief. Notwithstanding anything contained herein, Franchisor
reserves the right to seek and obtain temporary restraining orders or other
emergency temporary or preliminary equitable injunctive relief and file actions to
collect royalties and other amounts owed by Franchisee to Franchisor (collection
actions) from federal or state courts located in the state in which the Franchise is
located. The parties acknowledge and agree that the rights of Franchisor under
this Agreement with respect to the use of the Marks and the System and the
enforcement of the in-term and post-term noncompetition covenants of
Franchisor are of a specialized and unique nature and that immediate and
irreparable damage will result to Franchisor if Franchisee fails or refuses to
perform obligations under this Agreement, and, notwithstanding any election by
Franchisor to claim damages from Franchisee as a result of such failure or refusal,
Franchisor may, in addition to any other remedies and damages available, seek an
injunction in any court of competent jurisdiction to restrain such failure or refusal.

23.6. Waiver of Jury Trial. Franchisor and Franchisee irrevocably waive trial by
jury in any action, proceeding, or counterclaim, whether at law or in equity,
brought by either of them against the other, whether or not there are other parties
in such action or proceeding.
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24.

23.7. Limitation of Actions. Any and all claims and actions arising out of or
relating to this agreement, the relationship of Franchisee and franchisor, or
Franchisee’s operation of the Franchise (including any defenses or any claims of
set-off or recoupment) must be brought or asserted before the expiration of the
earlier of (a) the time period for bringing an action under any applicable state or
federal statute of limitations; (b) one year after the date upon which a party
discovered, or should have discovered, the facts giving rise to an alleged claim; or
(c) two years after the first act or omission giving rise to an alleged claim; or it is
expressly acknowledged and agreed by all parties that such claims or actions shall
be irrevocably barred. Claims of franchisor attributable to underreporting of sales,
and claims of the parties for failure to pay monies owed and/or indemnification
shall be subject only to the applicable state or federal statute of limitations.

23.8. Limitation on Damages. Franchisor and Franchisee hereby waive to the
fullest extent permitted by law any right to or claim of any punitive or exemplary
damages against the other, and agree that in the event of a dispute between them
each shall be limited to the recovery of any actual damages sustained by it. In any
action arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the relationship of the parties,
in no event shall Franchisor be liable to Franchisee for more than the total Initial
Franchise Fee.

23.9. Costs and Attorneys’ Fees. If either Franchisor or Franchisee seeks to
enforce this Agreement in an arbitration or a judicial or other proceeding, the
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable costs and expenses
(including attorneys’ fees, attorneys’ assistants’ fees, accountants’ fees, expert
witness fees, costs of investigation and proof of facts, court costs, other litigation
expenses, and travel, room and board, salaries and benefits of those employees
participating in such proceeding) incurred in connection with such judicial or
other proceeding.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

24.1. Acknowledgments. Franchisee acknowledges that it has conducted an
independent investigation of the business franchised hereunder, recognizes that
the business venture contemplated by this Agreement involves business risks, and
that its success will be largely dependent upon the ability of Franchisee and, if an
entity, its owners as independent businesspersons. Franchisor expressly disclaims
the making of, and Franchisee acknowledges that it has not received from
Franchisor or any employee, representative or other party purporting to act on
Franchisee’s behalf, any warranty, promise or guarantee, express or implied, as to
the potential sales volume, profits, or success of the business venture contemplated
by this Agreement.

24.2. Receipt of Documents. Franchisee acknowledges that it received a copy of
this Agreement, the exhibit(s) hereto, and agreements relating hereto, if any, with
all of the blank lines therein filled in, prior to the date on which this Agreement
was executed, and with sufficient time within which to review this Agreement, with
advisors of its choosing. Franchisee further acknowledges that it received the
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franchise disclosure document required by the Federal Trade Commission’s
Franchise Rule at least 14 days prior to the date on which this Agreement was
executed.

24.3. Representations and Warranties. Franchisee and its Principals represent
and warrant to Franchisor that: (a) neither Franchisee nor any of its Principals
have made any untrue statement of any material fact nor omitted to state any
material fact in obtaining the rights granted herein; (b) neither Franchisee nor any
of its Principals have any direct or indirect legal or beneficial interest in any
business that may be deemed a Competitive Business, except as otherwise
completely and accurately disclosed in its franchise application materials; and (c)
Franchisee and its Principals have a legal right to own and operate the Franchise.
Franchisee recognizes that Franchisor approved Franchisee in reliance on all of the
statements Franchisee and its Principals have made in connection therewith, and
that Franchisee has a continuing obligation to advise Franchisor of any material
changes in these statements and representations made to Franchisor in this
Agreement or in the franchise application.

24.4. Compliance with Executive Order 13224. Under applicable U.S. law,
including, without limitation, Executive Order 13224, signed on September 23,
2001 (“Order”), Franchisor is prohibited from engaging in any transaction with
any person engaged in, or with a person aiding any person engaged in, acts of
terrorism, as defined in the Order. Accordingly, Franchisee represents and
warrants to us that, as of the date of this Agreement, neither Franchisee nor any
person holding any ownership interest in you, controlled by you, or under common
control with Franchisee is designated under the Order as a person with whom
business may not be transacted by Franchisor, and that Franchisee: (a) does not,
and hereafter will not, engage in any terrorist activity; (b) are not affiliated with
and do not support any individual or entity engaged in, contemplating, or
supporting terrorist activity; and (c¢) are not acquiring the rights granted under this
Agreement with the intent to generate funds to channel to any individual or entity
engaged in, contemplating, or supporting terrorist activity, or to otherwise support
or further any terrorist activity.

24.5. No Other Obligations. Each party represents and warrants to the others
that there are no other agreements, court orders, or any other legal obligations that
would preclude or in any manner restrict such party from: (a) negotiating and
entering into this Agreement; (b) exercising its rights under this Agreement;
and/or (c) fulfilling its responsibilities under this Agreement.

24.6. No Other Representations. Franchisee acknowledges Franchisor has not
(and shall not be deemed to have) given any representation, promise, or guarantee
of Franchisee’s success.

24.7. Business Judgment. Franchisee understands and agrees that Franchisor
may operate and change the System and its business in any manner that is not
expressly and specifically prohibited by this Agreement. Whenever Franchisor has
expressly reserved in this Agreement or is deemed to have a right and/or discretion
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to take or withhold an action, or to grant or decline to grant Franchisee a right to
take or withhold an action, except as otherwise expressly and specifically provided
in this Agreement, Franchisor may make such decision or exercise its right and/or
discretion on the basis of Franchisor’s judgment of what is in Franchisor’s best
interests, including without limitation Franchisor’s judgment of what is in the best
interests of the franchise network, at the time Franchisor’s decision is made or its
right or discretion is exercised, without regard to whether: (a) other reasonable
alternative decisions or actions, or even arguably preferable alternative decisions
or actions, could have been made by Franchisor; (b) Franchisor’s decision or the
action taken promotes Franchisor’s financial or other individual interest; (c)
Franchisor’s decision or the action it takes applies differently to Franchisee and
one or more other franchisees or Franchisor’s company-owned or affiliate-owned
operations; or (d) Franchisor’s decision or the exercise of its right or discretion is
adverse to Franchisee’s interests. In the absence of an applicable statute,
Franchisor will have no liability to Franchisee for any such decision or action.
Franchisor and Franchisee intend that the exercise of Franchisor’s right or
discretion will not be subject to limitation or review. If applicable law implies a
covenant of good faith and fair dealing in this Agreement, Franchisor and
Franchisee agree that such covenant shall not imply any rights or obligations that
are inconsistent with a fair construction of the terms of this Agreement and that
this Agreement grants Franchisor the right to make decisions, take actions and/or
refrain from taking actions not inconsistent with Franchisee’s rights and
obligations hereunder.

24.8. Consultation. Franchisee acknowledges that it has read and understands
this Agreement, the exhibits hereto, and agreements relating thereto, if any, and
that Franchisor has accorded Franchisee ample time and opportunity to consult
with advisors (including attorneys) of Franchisee’s own choosing about the
potential benefits and risks of entering into this Agreement.

24.9. Additional Terms. The parties may provide additional terms by including
the terms on the Summary Page. To the extent that any provisions of the Summary
Page are in direct conflict with the provisions of this Agreement, the provisions of
the Summary Page shall control.
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[Signatures Appear on the Following Page]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly signed and delivered this
Agreement on the day and year first above written.

CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

[FRANCHISEE ENTITY]

By:
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT A TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

TRADEMARKS

Trademark

Registration Date

Registration Number

CABINET IQ (word)

November 15, 2022

6902850
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EXHIBIT B TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

LEASE RIDER TO LEASE AGREEMENT DATED

BY AND BETWEEN

, AS “LANDLORD”

AND

, AS “TENANT” FOR
THE DEMISED PREMISES (“PREMISES”) DESCRIBED THEREIN

This Rider and the provisions hereof are hereby incorporated into the body of the
lease to which this Rider is attached (the “Lease”), and the provisions hereof shall be
cumulative of those set forth in the Lease, but to the extent of any conflict between any
provisions of this Rider and the provisions of the Lease, this Rider shall govern and
control.

1. Consent to Collateral Assignment to Franchisor. If Franchisor takes possession of
the Premises and confirms to Landlord that Franchisor has assumed the Lease as tenant
thereunder, Landlord will recognize Franchisor as tenant under the Lease. Landlord
agrees that in such event Franchisor may further assign the Lease to or enter into a
sublease with a person or entity who agrees to assume the tenant's obligations under the
Lease and is reasonably acceptable to Landlord and that, upon that assignment,
Franchisor will have no further liability or obligation under the Lease as assignee, tenant
or otherwise, other than to certify that the additional assignee or sublessee operates the
Premises as a Franchise.

2, Use of Premises. Without limitation of uses permitted under the Lease, but in
expansion thereof, the Premises may be used for the purpose of operation of a Cabinet 1Q
Franchise offering cabinets installation, removal, evaluation and related services.

3. Compliance of Premises With Applicable Law. Landlord represents and warrants
that as of the date hereof the Premises are in compliance with all applicable law.

4. Notice and Cure Rights to Franchisor. Prior to exercising any remedies under the
Lease (except in the event of imminent danger to the Premises), Landlord shall give
Franchisor written notice of any default thereunder by Tenant, and commencing upon
receipt thereof by Franchisor, Franchisor shall have the same length cure period as is
given to Tenant under the Lease for such default, provided that in no event shall
Franchisor have a cure period of less than (i) 10 days after Franchisor's receipt of such
notice as to monetary defaults or (ii) 30 days after Franchisor's receipt of such notice as
to non-monetary defaults. Landlord agrees to accept cure tendered by Franchisor as if
the same was tendered by Tenant, but Franchisor has no obligation to cure such default.
The initial address for notices to Franchisor is as follows:
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CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC
2419 S. Bell Blvd.

Cedar Park, Texas 78613
Attention: General Counsel

5. Non-disturbance from Mortgage Lenders. It is a condition of the Lease being
subordinated to any mortgage, deed of trust, deed to secure debt or similar encumbrance
on the Premises that the holder of such encumbrance agree not to disturb Tenant's rights
under the Lease or Tenant's possession of the Premises, so long as Tenant is not in default
of its obligations under the Lease beyond any applicable grace or cure period provided
therein.

CHECK THE FOLLOWING PARAGRAPH THAT APPLIES. CHECK ONLY ONE. IF
NONE IS CHECKED, THEN CLAUSE a) BELOW WILL BE APPLICABLE, AND CLAUSE
b) BELOW WILL BE DEEMED DELETED

a) O Landlord represents and warrants that on the date hereof no
mortgage, deed of trust, deed to secure debt or similar encumbrance encumbers the
Premises.

b) O A mortgage, deed of trust or deed to secure debt currently encumbers
the Premises. It is a condition precedent to Tenant's obligations under the Lease that the
holder of such encumbrance enter into a written recordable form subordination and non-
disturbance agreement with Tenant, in a form reasonably acceptable to Tenant, as
described above.

6. Third Party Beneficiary. For so long as Franchisor holds a collateral assignment of
the Lease, Franchisor is a third party beneficiary of the Lease.

7. Franchisor Right to Enter. Upon the expiration or earlier termination of the Lease
or the Franchise Agreement, Franchisor or its designee may enter upon the Premises for
the purpose of removing all signs and other material bearing the Cabinet IQ name or
trademarks, service marks or other commercial symbols of Franchisor.
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AGREED and executed and delivered under seal by the parties hereto as of the day and
year of the Lease.

LANDLORD: TENANT:
By: By
Name:

Name:
Title:
Title:
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EXHIBIT C TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
GUARANTEE, INDEMNIFICATION, AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT

As an inducement to CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC, a Texas limited liability
company (“Franchisor”) to execute the Franchise Agreement between Franchisor and
, a [STATE] [ENTITY TYPE] (“Franchisee”), dated
2022 (the ° Agreement ’), the undersigned, jointly and severally, hereby uncondltlonally
guarantee to Franchisor and Franchisor’s successors and assigns that all of Franchisee’s
monetary and other obligations under the Agreement will be punctually paid and
performed.

Each of the undersigned has had the opportunity to review the Agreement, and
understands his or her obligations hereunder and thereunder.

Upon demand by Franchisor, the undersigned each hereby jointly and severally
agree to immediately make each payment required of Franchisee under the Agreement and
waive any right to require Franchisor to: (a) proceed against Franchisee for any payment
required under the Agreement; (b) proceed against or exhaust any security from
Franchisee; (c) pursue or exhaust any remedy, including any legal or equitable relief,
against Franchisee; or (d) give notice of demand for payment by Franchisee. Without
affecting the obligations of the undersigned under this Guarantee, Franchisor may,
without notice to the undersigned, extend, modify, or release any indebtedness or
obligation of Franchisee, or settle, adjust, or compromise any claims against Franchisee,
and the undersigned each hereby jointly and severally waive notice of same and agree to
remain and be bound by any and all such amendments and changes to the Agreement.
The undersigned each hereby jointly and severally agree to defend, indemnify and hold
Franchisor harmless against any and all losses, damages, liabilities, costs, and expenses
(including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney’s fees, reasonable costs of financial and
other investigation, court costs, and fees and expenses) resulting from, consisting of, or
arising out of or in connection with any failure by Franchisee to perform any obligation of
Franchisee under the Agreement, any amendment thereto, or any other agreement
executed by Franchisee referred to therein.

The undersigned each hereby jointly and severally acknowledge and expressly agree
to be individually bound by all of the covenants contained in Sections 8, 12, 14, 15 and 17.4
of the Agreement, and acknowledge and agree that this Guarantee does not grant the
undersigned any right to use the “Cabinet 1Q” marks or system licensed to Franchisee
under the Agreement. Each of the undersigned represents that he or she has received a
copy of the Franchise Agreement and understands his or her obligations hereunder and
thereunder.

Upon the death of an individual guarantor, the estate of such guarantor shall be
bound by this Guarantee, but only for defaults and obligations hereunder existing at the
time of death; and the obligations of the other guarantors will continue in full force and
effect.
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If Franchisor is required to enforce this Guarantee in a judicial or arbitration
proceeding, and prevails in such proceeding, Franchisor shall be entitled to
reimbursement of its costs and expenses, including, but not limited to, reasonable
accountants’, attorneys’, attorneys’ assistants’, arbitrators’, and expert witness fees, costs
of investigation and proof of facts, court costs, other litigation expenses, travel and room
and board expenses, salaries and benefits of those of Franchisor’s employee’s participating
in such proceeding, whether incurred prior to, in preparation for, or in contemplation of
the filing of any such proceeding. If Franchisor is required to engage legal counsel in
connection with any failure by the undersigned to comply with this Guarantee, the
undersigned shall reimburse Franchisor for any of the above-listed costs and expenses
Franchisor incurs.

Unless specifically stated otherwise, the terms used in this Guarantee shall have the
same meaning as in the Agreement, and shall be interpreted and construed in accordance
with Sections 22 and 23 of the Agreement. This Guarantee shall be interpreted and
construed under the laws of the State of Texas. In the event of any conflict of law, the laws
of the State of Texas shall prevail (without regard to, and without giving effect to, the
application of Texas conflict of law rules). Jurisdiction and venue shall be in the state or
federal courts located nearest Franchisor’s principal place of business at the time that the
action is commenced, and the undersigned hereby waives any objection to such
jurisdiction and venue. The arbitration provisions of Section 23 of the Agreement shall
apply to this Guaranty.

Non-Owner Spousal Guarantee. If this Guarantee is executed by a spouse (or
domestic partner or immediate family member) of the owner of a franchisee entity and
such person has no equity or ownership in the franchisee entity or franchise, then this
Guarantee shall only be enforceable against such non-owner spouse in the event that they
receive a material transfer of assets from the spouse (or domestic partner or immediate
family member) who has the ownership interest in the franchise or franchisee entity. This
section is intended to ensure that one spouse cannot avoid liability under their guarantee
by simply transferring assets to the other spouse.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has signed this Guarantee as of
the date of the Agreement.

GUARANTOR(S)

Signed:
(In his/her individual capacity)

Name:
Address:
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EXHIBIT D TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

NON-DISCLOSURE AND NON-COMPETITION
AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) ismade this day of ,20___, by
and Between (the “Franchisee”), and
, who is a principal, manager,
supervisor, member, partner, or a person in a managerial position with, Franchisee (the
“Member”).

BACKGROUND:

A. Cabinet IQ Franchising, LLC, a Texas limited liability company
(“Franchisor”) owns a format and system (the “System”) relating to the establishment,
development and operation of an cabinets and related services business that operate under
the name “Cabinet IQ” (or other names designated by Franchisor, the “Marks”) and such
additional or alternate services and/or products as Franchisor may designate from time to
time (each a“Franchise”).

B. Franchisor and Franchisee have executed a Franchise Agreement
(“Franchise Agreement”) granting Franchisee the right to operate a Franchise (the
“Franchise”) and to produce and distribute products and services approved by
Franchisor and use the Marks in connection therewith under the terms and conditions of
the Franchise Agreement;

C. The Member, by virtue of his or her position with Franchisee, will gain access
to certain of Franchisor’s Confidential Information, as defined herein, and must therefore
be bound by the same confidentiality and non-competition agreement that Franchisee is
bound by.

IN CONSIDERATION of these premises, the conditions stated herein, and for
othergood and valuable consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of which are hereby
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Confidential Information. Member shall not, during the term of the
Franchise Agreement or thereafter, communicate, divulge, or use for the benefit of any
other person or entity, persons, partnership, entity, association, or corporation any
confidential information, knowledge, or knowhow concerning the methods of operation of
the business franchised thereunder which may be communicated to Member or of which
Member may be apprised by virtue of Franchisee’s operation under the terms of the
Franchise Agreement. Any and all information, knowledge, knowhow, and techniques
which Franchisor designates as confidential shall be deemed confidential for purposes of
this Agreement, except information which Franchisee can demonstrate came to its
attention prior to disclosure thereof by Franchisor; or which, at or after the time of
disclosure by Franchisor to Franchisee, had become or later becomes a part of the public
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domain, through publication or communication by others.

2. Covenants Not to Compete.

(a) Member specifically acknowledges that, pursuant to the Franchise
Agreement, and by virtue of its position with Franchisee, Member will receive valuable
specialized training and confidential information, including, without limitation,
information regarding the operational, sales, promotional, and marketing methods and
techniques of Franchisor and the System.

(b)  Member covenants and agrees that during the term of Member’s employment
with, or ownership interest in, Franchisee, and except as otherwise approved in writing by
Franchisor, Member shall not, either directly or indirectly, for itself, or through, on behalf
of, or in conjunction with any person, persons, partnership, corporation, or entity:

(i) Divert or attempt to divert any business or customer of the Franchise
or of any other System franchisee or unit operated by Franchisor (or an affiliate of
Franchisor) to any competitor, by direct or indirect inducement or otherwise, or do or
perform, directly or indirectly, any other act injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill
associated with the Marks and/or the System;

(ii) Employ or seek to employ any person who is at that time employed
by Franchisor or Franchisee, or otherwise directly or indirectly induce such person to leave
his or her employment; or

(iii) Own, maintain, operate, engage in, be employed by, or have any
interest in any business which offers cabinets evaluation, cabinets removal, cabinets
installation or related services.

(c) Member covenants and agrees that during the Post-Term Period (defined
below), except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, Member shall not, either
directly or indirectly, for itself, or through, on behalf of, or in conjunction with any person,
persons, partnership, corporation, or entity, own, maintain, operate, engage in, or have
any interest in any business which offers cabinets evaluation, cabinets removal, cabinets
installation or related services and which business is, or is intended to be, located: (a) at
the Approved Location or within a 100 mile radius of the Territory of the Franchise, which
Territory includes the areas defined by the Summary Page of the Franchise Agreement and
any amendments thereto; or (b) within a 100 mile radius of the territory any other System
franchisee or Cabinet IQ business owned by Franchisor or its affiliate at the time that the
obligations under this Section 2(c¢) commence;

(d) As used in this Agreement, the term “Post-Term Period” shall mean a
continuous uninterrupted period of two years from the date of: (a) a transfer permitted
under Section 12 of the Franchise Agreement with respect to Member; and/or (b)
termination of Member’s employment with, and/or ownership interest in, Franchisee.

3. Injunctive Relief. Member acknowledges that any failure to comply with the
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requirements of this Agreement will cause Franchisor irreparable injury, and Member
agrees to pay all court costs and reasonable attorney’s fees incurred by Franchisor in
obtaining specific performance of, or an injunction against violation of, the requirements
of this Agreement.

4. Severability. All agreements and covenants contained herein are severable.
If all or any portion of the covenants in this Agreement is held to be unenforceable or
unreasonable by any court, then it is the intent of the parties that the court modify such
restriction to extent reasonably necessary to protect the legitimate business interests of
Franchisor.

5. Delay. No delay or failure by Franchisor or the Franchisee to exercise any
right under this Agreement, and no partial or single exercise of that right, shall constitute
a waiver of that or any other right provided herein, and no waiver of any violation of any
terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be construed as a waiver of any succeeding
violation of the same or any other provision of this Agreement.

6. Third-Party Beneficiary. Member hereby acknowledges and agrees that
Franchisor is an intended third-party beneficiary of this Agreement with the right to
enforce it, independently or jointly with Franchisee.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Franchisee and the Member attest that each has read
and understands the terms of this Agreement, and voluntarily signed this Agreement on
this__dayof_, 20..

FRANCHISEE: MEMBER:

Name:

Signature: Signature:

Name:

Title:
MEMBER:
Name:
Signature:
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EXHIBIT E TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
GENERAL RELEASE

This General Release (“Release”) is executed by the undersigned (“Releasor”) in favor
of Cabinet IQ Franchising, LLC., a Texas Limited Liability Company (“Franchisor”).

Background Statement: Releasor wishes to dispose of all outstanding liabilities
against Released Parties.

Releasor agrees as follows:

1. Release. Releasor (on behalf of itself and its parents, subsidiaries and affiliates
and their respective past and present officers, directors, shareholders, managers, members,
partners, agents, and employees (collectively, the “Releasing Parties”) hereby release
Franchisor, its parent(s), affiliates, and each of their respective directors, officers,
shareholders, members, employees, and agents (collectively, the “Released Parties”) from any
and all claims, causes of action, suits, debts, agreements, promises, demands, liabilities,
contractual rights and/or obligations, of whatever nature, known or unknown, which any
Releasing Party now has or ever had against any Released Party based upon and/or arising out
of events that occurred through the date hereof, including without limitation, anything arising
out of the Franchise Agreement or in connection with the franchise relationship, franchise
sales process, misconduct, misrepresentation or fraud by any Released Party all of which are
acknowledged and expressly included here (collectively, “Claims”).

2. Covenant Not to Sue. Releasor (on behalf of all Releasing Parties) covenant
not to initiate, prosecute, encourage, assist, or (except as required by law) participate in any
civil, criminal, or administrative proceeding or investigation in any court, agency, or other
forum, either affirmatively or by way of cross-claim, defense, or counterclaim, against any
Released Party with respect to any Claim.

3. Representations and Acknowledgments. Releasor represents and
warrants that: (i) Releasor is the sole owners of all Claims, and that no Releasing Party has
assigned or transferred, or purported to assign or transfer, to any person or entity, any Claim;
(ii) Releasor has full power and authority to sign this Release; and (iii) this Release has been
voluntarily and knowingly signed after Releasor has had the opportunity to consult with
counsel of Releasor’s choice. Releasor acknowledges that the release in Section 1is a complete
defense to any Claim. Releasor covenants not to claim in any future proceeding that there was
insufficient consideration for the execution hereof or that it was not received.

4. Miscellaneous. If any of the provisions of this Release are held invalid for any
reason, the remainder of this Release will not be affected and will remain in full force and
effect. In the event of any dispute concerning this Release, the dispute resolution, governing
law, and venue provisions of the Franchise Agreement shall apply. Releasor agrees to take any
actions and sign any documents that Franchisor reasonably requests to effectuate the purposes
of this Release. This Release contains the entire agreement of the parties concerning the
subject matter hereof and has been executed in exchange for separate and sufficient
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consideration paid in hand by Released Parties to Releasor and Releasor acknowledges receipt
by executing below.

Executed by:

Date:

Name:
Personally, and on behalf of any entity through which (s)he has conducted business or otherwise
interreacted with any Released Party

[notary acknowledgement to follow]
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EXHIBIT C
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC
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Eﬁ& KEZOS & DUNLAVY
Certified Public Accountants
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& KEZOS & DUNLAVY

Cerlified Public Accountanls
& Businass Advigors

Independent Auditor s Report

To the MMembers
Cabinet IQ) Franchizing LLC
Anstin, TX TET01

Opinion

Wehave sudited the accompamying financial statements of Cabinet IQ) Franchising, LLC which comprize the balance
shests a5 of December 31, 2024, 2023 and 20272 and the related statements of operations, members” equity (deficit),
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financizl statemeants.

In our opimion, the financial statements referred to sbove present Sxirly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Cabinet I} Franchizing, LLC as of Decamber 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 and the related statements of operations,
members’ equity (deficit) and cash flows for the years then endad in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in sccordance with suditing standards generslly sccepied in the United States of America.
Char responsibilifies under those standards are forther described in the Aunditor’s Responsibilities for the Andit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to mest our other
ethical responsibilities in sccordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating fo our andits. We belisve that
the awdit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our andit opinion.

Responsibifines of Management for the Financial Sratements

DMianagermnent is responsible for the preparation and far presentation of the financizl statements in accordance with
accounfing principles generally accepied in the United States of Amernica, and for the design implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of fmancial statements that are fres
fromn material misstatement, whether due to fravd or emor.

In prepaning the financial statements, management is required o evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered m the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue a3 4 going Concern
within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Anditer’s Responsibilities for the Andiv of the Finaneial Statemenis

Char objectives are to obtzin reasonsble assursnce sbout whether the financial siatements as 4 wheole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to frand or emor, and to issue an awditor’s report that includes oor opinion.
Beasonable assurance 15 3 high level of assurance but is not sbsohite assurance and therefore is not 3 guarantee that
an aundit conducted in accordance with generally accepied suditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from framd is higher than for
one resultng from emor, as fTand may mvelve collusion, forgery, infentonal omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstastements, incloding omissions, are considered material if there is 3 substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the agzregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the financial statements.
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In performing an mdit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standands, we:

=  Exerrise professional judzment and maintain professional skepmcizm throughout the aoudit

=  Identfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to faud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive fo those nsks. Soch procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

= (Obtain an understanding of internal conmal ralevant to the madit in order to design sudit procedures that are
approprizte in the cirommstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinien on the effecivensss of
the Company's infernal control. Accordmgly, no soch opimion is expressed.

»  Ewalnate the appropriztensss of accountng policies nsed and the reasonableness of siznificant accounting
estimates made by manapement, as well as evaluate the oversll presentation of the financial statements.

»  Conclunde whether, in our jodgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substaniial doubt about the Compsany’s ability to confinue as a going concern for 8 reaspnable period of
time.

We are required to comrmumicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the plannad
scope and fiming of the mudit, significant audit indings. and certain nternal-conmrol related matters that we identifiad
during the sudit

Resiricions on Use

The nse of this report is resimcied o mchsion within the Company’s Franchise Disclosure Document (FDIY) and is
not intended to be, and should not be, nzed or relied upon by anyone for any other nse.

I
Kezas S Dinlowa /

5t George, Utah
March 20, 2025
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CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC
BATLANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

1024 023 2022
Aszzais
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 120,580 3 303,531 5 a74
Prepaid expsnses 15438 - -
Accounts receivable 40251 - -
Deferred confract costs - COITent 500,623 82 360 -
Tiotal cwrent assets G804 002 385801 074
Hon-curent assais
Property and equipment net 21,4095 - -
Deferred confract costs - non-Curment 1226 750 - -
Cither assets 21379 - -
Tzl non-OarTent assets 1,260 624 - -
Totmal aszets § 1964528 3 385,891 3 a74
Lisbilities and Membars” Equity (Deficit)
Chrreat lishilities
Member payable ¥ 100,000 5 - 5 530,011
Accrued expenses 14,870 53,183 733
Deferrad revenne - current 664,803 184, 800 -
Total liabilities TI0.673 217,943 530,74
Won-current liabilities
Deeferred revenne - non-cumment 1.556.469 - -
Total non-ourrent lisbilites 1.556.469 - -
Total lisbilites 2336142 217,583 530,74
Mlembers' aquity (deficit) (371,616) 167,908 (529,770
Total liabilties and members” equity {defici) ¥ 1964526 3 385,801 5 Q74

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are integral part of these fnancial statements
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CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

2024 23 2022
Oiperating revenmes
Initial franchise fees § 1286401 i - ] -
Faoyaldes B0 786 - -
Technology faes 42,701 - -
Crther revenns 23163 - -
Total operating revenmes 1.442.051 - -
Orperafing expenses
Comrnizsions 938041 - -
Generzl and adminisrative 430,300 159 882 174,982
Zalames, wages and bensfits 336,015 - -
Professional fees 257975 50,860 60,730
Marketing and advertising 13,577 108 848 156,584
Total operafing expenzes 1975917 328 603 302 203
Loss from operations (533,866) (328,603) {302,208)
I on-operaling expense
Infersst expenss (5,658) - -
Total non-operating sxpense (5,658) - -
Met lozs i (539.524) i (320 5900 ] (392 298)

The accompanying nofes to the finsncial statements are integral part of these Snancial statements
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CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC
STATEMENTS OF MEMEBEES' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

Balance at Jamnary 1, 2022 5 (13747
Het loss (392,208)
Balance at December 31, 2022 [529,770)
et loss (329,590)
Contribations from members 1,027,268
Balance at December 31, 2023 167,908
Het loss (539,524
Balance at December 31, 2024 3 (37L4l6)

The accompanying notes to the financial statermsents are integral part of these financial statements
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CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

024 013 22
Caszh flow Som operating scuvites:
HMet loss ¥ (530.524) ¥ (320 500) (392,208)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss fo net cash
used in operating actvities:
Depreciztion 2428 - -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Cither aszets (21,379 - -
Prepaids (15438) - -
Arconnts receivable (49.251) - -
Deferred contract costs (1,645,013) (B2,360) -
Member payzhla 100,000 (530,011) 326,653
Accued expenses (38,313) 52,450 -
Deferred revemes 2056472 164 200 {243
et cash nsed in operating activities {150,018) (724.711) (65,294)
Cash flows fom investing activities:

Purchaszes of property and equipment (23,923) - -
Met cash nsed ininvesting activities (23.923) - -
Cash flows from Snsncing activites:

AMember contmibutions - 1,027 268 -
et cash provided by financing actvities - 1,027 268 -
et change i cash and cash equivalents (173,947) 302557 (85,394)
Cash and cazh equivalents at beginming of pariod 303,531 974 466,868
Cash and cazh equivalents at end of peried 3 129 520 3 303,531 974
Supplemental disclosures of cash fow

Moncash contributions from members 3 - 3 75458 -

The accompanying notes to the fnancial statements are integral part of these Snancial statements
8
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CABINETIQ FRANCHISING. LLC
WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

(13 Mamre of Business and Summmary of Significant Accounting Policies

@l Nafure af Busimess

Cabinet I} Franchising, LT.C (the “Company') was organized in the State of Texss on Fune 16, 2021 as a limited
Lability company. The Company is the subsidiary of Cabinet IC), LLC, which manufactures and distrilmates kitchen
cabinets and counteriops as well as performs kitchen remodeling services. The Company is the franchise concept of
Cabinet IQ), LLC. The Company commenced franchize operations in 2023, with the Srst fanchise becoming
operational in 2024

The Company uses the accrual baszis of accounting, and their accounfting peried is the 12-month peried snding
December 31 of each year. The membars® Dability is lmited to their equity.

(B Accounting Stamdards Codification

The Finmncial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) has ismed the FASE Accountng 5tandards Codificaton
(“ASC™) that became the single official source of anthoritative US. geperally accepted accounting principles
(CFAAPT), other than guidance issued by the Securities and Exchange Commizssion (“3ECT), superzeding existing
FASE, American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, emerging Issues Task Force and related hersfure. All
other liferatare is not considered muthoritative. The ASC does not change GAAP: it miroduces a new stacture that is
organized in an accessible online research system.

(el Ube gf Extimares

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles accepied in the
United 5State: of America requirss mansgement to maks estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
and disclosures. Actnal resnls could differ fom those estimates.

(d} Cazh and Cash Eguivaleniz

Cash squivalents include all hizhly liquid invesoments with mamritie: of three months or less at the date of purchass.
As of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $129,590, $303,531, and
5074 respectivaly.

fel Accounis Receivablas

Accounts receivable are recorded for amounts due based on the tenms of executed franchize agresments for Sanchize
sales, rovaltes and other sales mansactons. These accounts receivable are carmied st origins] voice amount less an
estimate made for doubiful receivables based on a review of onistanding amounts. When detenmining the allowance
for doubtful recervable, the Company has adopted ASC 3246, Financisl Instruments—Credit Losses. This standard
requires that managsment ntilize the Current Expected Credit Losses (“CECL™) model to recognize the appropriate
allowance for doubifiol receivables. This model reguites entites to estimate and recopnize expecied credit losses over
the life of the financial instoment. For trade recaivables, management has alected to apply a simplified approach
bazed on historical loss experience and adjusiments for cmrent and forecasted economic condidons. Manazement
regularly evaluates individusl customer receivables, considering their Snancial condition, credit history and curment
economic condifons. Accounts receivable are written off when deemed uncollectible Fecoveriss of accounts
receivable previously written off are recorded as income when received As of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022
the Company had no allowance for uncollectible sccounts and their accounts receivable balances were 549,251, 30,
and 50 respectively.
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CABINETIQ FRANCHISING, LLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

i Properyy and Equipmant

In accordance with ASC 350, Property, Plant and Eguipment, the Company accounts for property and equipment at
cost lese acounulated depreciation. Expenditures for major renewals and improvements are capitalized. Minor
replacements, mainfenance, and repairs are expensed as inowred. When property and eguipment are retired or
otherwise disposed of, the cost of the asset and related acounmlsted depreciation are removed from the accounts and
any resulting gain or loss is included in the result of operations for the respective peried. Deprecisfion on propery
and squipmient is calonlatad on the swaighe-line method over the estimated usefial lives of the assats. The estimated
useful lives for famimre and Sxmares is sevan years.

(=l Revenue Recognition

Upon inception, the Company adopted ASC &0, Fevemne from Confracts with Customers. ASC 6§06 provides that
Tevenues are to be recognized when control of promised goods or services is ransfemmed fo 4 customer in &0 amgunt
that reflects the considerstions expected fo be received for those goods or services. In implementng ASC G606, the
Company evalusted all reverme sources nsing the fve-step approach: identfy the confract, identify the performance
obligations, determine the transaction price, allocate the transaction price, and recognize revemme. For each fanchised
location, the Company enters inte 3 formal fTranchise agreement that clearly outlines the varouws components of the
mansacton price snd the Company”s performance obligations.

The Company’s revenues consist of initial franchize fees rovalties and marketing fess based on 2 percentage of gross
TEVEDNIES.

Rayaities and markering fees

Upon evaluation of the five-step process, the Company has determuned that royaltes and marketing fees are to be
recomnized in the :ame period as the underlying sales.

Ininial framchise foes

The Company is required to allocate the Tansaction price associsted with nifal franchise fees befween the Fanchize
license and associsted performance obligations. In identifying the sssociated performance oblizations, the Company
has elected to adopt the practical expedient for private company fanchisors outlined in ASC 952-604, Franchizors—
Revenue from Contracts with Customers. In addition, the practical expedient allows franchisors to account for pre-
OpENINE SeTvices 45 3 single distinct performance obligation, which the Company has elected to adopt.

Thess pre-opening services inchide the following services (which the Company may or may not provide all of):

#  Ascistance in the selection of a site
®  Assistance in obtzining facilifes and preparing the facilities for their intended use, incloding related
finsncing architscrural and engineering services, snd lease nagodation
# Training of the franchizes’s personnel or the franchizes
*  Preparstion and distmibution of mannals and similar material conceming operations, sdminisiraton, and
record Keeping
+ Bookkeeping, information technolory, snd advisory services, including seting up the franchises’s records
and advising the franchises sbout income, real estate, and other taxes sbout local regulations afecting the
franchizee’s busimess
& Inspection testing snd other quality control programs
In determining the allocation of wansaction price (the initial franchise fae) to either the Hcense or to the pre-opening
services, the Company has determined that the fair value of pre-opening services does not excesd the initial fanchize
fee recelved; as such, the Compeany allocates a poriion of the initial franchise fees fo pre-opening services, which is
then recopnized as revemie when those pre-opening services have been completed (which zenerally ooours upoan

10
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CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC
WNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

commencement of the associated franchised location’s operatons) and the remamed is amorized over the life of the
agTesment.

i) Income Taces

The Company is stuctored s a lmited liability compeny under the laws of the state of Texas. Accordingly, the
meome of loss of the Company will be inchided in the income tax remrns of the member. Therefore, there is no
provision for federal snd state income faxes.

The Company follows the guidance under ASC 740, Accounting for Uncertamiy im Income Tawes. ASC 740
prescribes a more-likely-than-not measurement methodology to reflect the financial statement impact of nnceriain
tax posifions taken or expected to be taken m the tax refum If taxing suthorities were to disallow any tax positions
taken by the Company, the addidonal income taxes, if any, would be impozed on the member rather than the
Company. Accordingly, thers would be no effect on the Company’s financial statements.

The Company”s income tax Temmms are subject to examination by taxing suthorides for a period of three years from
the date they are filed As of Deceamber 31, 2024, the 2023, 2022, and 2021 tax years were subject fo examinafion.

{1 Advertising Cost

The Company expenses adveriising costs as monmed. Advertising expenses for the vear ended December 31, 2024,
2023, and 2022, were $13 577, $108 848, and 5156 584, respectively.

(1} Fimancial Isiruments

For certain of the Company's financial insimments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts recetvable, and
accounts payable, the camymg amonnts approximate fair value due to their short matmites.

ikl Concemtraiion of Rizk

The Compsny maintams its cash m bank deposit acconnts that af dmes may exceed federally msured limiats The
Company has not experienced sny losses in such accounts. The Compsny believes it is not exposed to aoy significant
credit risks on cash or cash equivalents.

(2 Deferred Conmact Costs snd Fevenus

The Company s franchise agreements generally provide for the payment of initial fees as well as confimuing royaliies
to the Company based on a percentage of sales. Under the franchize agreement, fanchisees are granted the mght to
operate 3 locaton using the Cabimet IO system for a period of e years. Undsr the Company”s revenne recogniton
policy, 3 pordon of fanchizse fees and any comesponding commissions are recognized when the franchize begins
operations and the remainder is amortized owver the life of the coniract For any franchisees that have not yet begun
operations as of year-end, the Company defers both the revenmes and commissions. All locations that are expectzd
1o begin operations within the following year are categorized as current, while all others are classified a5 non-onrrent.

The Compamy has esamared the following curment and non-current porgens of defemed revenue as of Decamber 31,
2024, 2023, and 2022:

2024 2023 2023
Deferred revenns — current b 654,803 5 164,500 3 -
Deferrad revenns — non-ourrent 1,556 440 - -
5 22212372 5 164,800 3 -
11
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CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

The Company has estimated the following coment snd noo-cwment pordons of deferred coniract assets as of

December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022:

2024 2023 e
Deferred commissions — current 3 500,623 i 82.630 3 -
Deferred commissions — mon-cumment 1,226,750 - -
¥ 1,727,373 ¥ 82,630 ¥ -

(3 Oither Assets

The Company has other assets on its balance chieet which represents security deposits and & due from. Ac of

December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 the total amount of other assets are 521,379, 30 and 30 respectively, and are

claszified as curmrent assets on the balance sheat
() Property and Equipment

Ag of Decemnber 31, 2024, the Company’s property and equipment consisted of the following:

2024
Furnitore and fixtares % 23023
Acoummlated deprecistion {2.428)

21405

S, 21495

Diepreciztion expense for the yesar endsd December 31, 2024, was 32428 Az of December 31, 2024,
depreciation is expected to be as follows:

2025 ¥ 3418
20246 3418
2027 3418
0ze 3418
2020 3418
Thereafter 4,407

5 21,495

(3 Prepard Expenses

funmare

The Company has prepaid expenses on its balance sheet, which represent payment made in advance for goods or
services o be received in the funmre, These prepaid expenses will be recognized as expenses in the pericds in which
the related goods or seTvices are consumed or ntlized. The Company’s prepaid expenses are primarily assoctated
with 2025 conference fee As of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 the total amount of prepaids are §15,438, 50

and 30 respectively, and are classified 35 current assets on the balancs sheet.

(&) Arcrued Expenses

The Compamy’s accrued expense: consist of accrued payroll and credit cards payable. The balances as of
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 are 514,870, §53,183 and 5733, respectvely, and are classified as a ourrent

Liahility on the Company’s balance sheet

24
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CABINET IQ FRANCHISING. LLC
WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

] Commimnents and Confingenciss

The Company may be subject to varions claims, legal actions snd complaint: arising in the ordinary course of
tusiness. In accountng for legal matters and other contingencies, the Company follows the guidance in ASC Topic
450 Contingencies, under which loss confingencies are acconnted for based upon the likelihood of ncumencs of a
Hahility. If & loss contingency ic “probable™ and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated, it is accrued. If 3
lorss contingency is “probable” but the amount of loss cannot be reasonably estimated disclosure is made. If a loss
confingency is “reasonably possible,” disclosure is made, inclwding the potential ranges of loss, if determinable. Loss
confingencies that are “remote” are neither accounted for nor disclosed.

In the opinion of management, all matters are of such kind | or invelving such smounts of unfaverable disposidon, if
any, wonld not have 2 materiz] effect on the financial position of the Company.

(8 Felated Party Transactions

The Company entered a promissory note with one of its members, with a principal balance of $100,000. During the
vear the Company made intersst only payments totaling 35 658, As of Decamber 31, 2024 the full loan smennt of
$100, 000 remains outstanding and will be repaid in 2025.

)] Subsequent Events

Management has reviewed and evaluated subsequent events through March 20, 2023, the date on which the
finamcial statements were issuad

13
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EXHIBIT E

FRANCHISEE DISCLOSURE QUESTIONNAIRE

FRANCHISEE DISCLOSURE QUESTIONNAIRE

(This questionnaire is not to be used for any franchise sale in or to residents of

California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York,
North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, or Wisconsin)

Cabinet I1Q Franchising, LLC (“we”, “us”, or “our”) and you are preparing to enter into a franchise
agreement for the operation of a Cabinet IQ Franchise. The purpose of this Questionnaire is to
determine whether any statements or promises were made to you that we have not authorized or
that may be untrue, inaccurate or misleading and to be certain that you understand the limitations
on legal claims you may make by reason of the purchase and operation of your franchise. Please
review each of the following questions carefully and provide honest responses to each question.

1.

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

No

No

Have you received and personally reviewed the Franchise
Agreement and each attachment or schedule attached to it?

Have you received and personally reviewed the Franchise
Disclosure Document we provided?

Did you sign a receipt for the Franchise Disclosure Document
indicating the date you received it?

Do you understand all the information contained in the
Franchise Disclosure Document and Franchise Agreement?

Have you reviewed the Franchise Disclosure Document and
Franchise Agreement with a lawyer, accountant or other
professional advisor or have you had the opportunity for such
review and chosen not to engage such professionals?

Have you discussed the benefits and risks of developing and
operating a Cabinet IQ Business with an existing Cabinet IQ
franchisee?

Do you understand the risks of developing and operating a
Cabinet IQ Business?

Do you understand the success or failure of your franchise will
depend in large part upon your skills, abilities, and efforts and
those of the persons you employ as well as many factors beyond
your control such as competition, interest rates, the economy,
inflation, labor, and supply costs, and other relevant factors?
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9. Yes No Do you understand all disputes or claims you may have arising
out of or relating to the Franchise Agreement must be litigated,
mediated, and/or arbitrated in Texas, if not resolved informally
or by mediation?

10. Yes No Do you understand that you must satisfactorily complete the
initial training course before we will allow your Business to
open or consent to a transfer?

11.  Yes No Do you agree that no employee or other person speaking on our
behalf made any statement or promise regarding the costs
involved in operating a Cabinet IQ Business, that is not
contained in the Franchise Disclosure Document or that is
contrary to, or different from, the information contained in the
Franchise Disclosure Document?

12. Yes_ No Do you agree that no employee or other person speaking on our
behalf made any statement or promise or agreement, other than
those matters addressed in your Franchise Agreement
concerning advertising, marketing, media support, marketing
penetration, training, support service or assistance that is
contrary to, or different from, the information contained in the
Franchise Disclosure Document?

13. Yes_ No Do you agree that no employee or other person speaking on our
behalf made any statement or promise regarding the actual,
average or projected profits or earnings, the likelihood of
success, the amount of money you may earn, or the total
amount of revenue a Cabinet IQ Business will generate, that is
not contained in the Franchise Disclosure Document or that is
contrary to, or different from, the information contained in the
Franchise Disclosure Document?

14. Yes No Do you understand that the Franchise Agreement and
attachments to the Franchise Agreement contain the entire
agreement between us and you concerning the franchise for the
Cabinet IQ Business, meaning any prior oral or written
statements not set out in the Franchise Agreement or the
attachments to the Franchise Agreement will not be binding?

15. Yes No Do you understand that we are relying on your answers to this
questionnaire to ensure that the franchise sale was made in
compliance of state and federal laws?

YOU UNDERSTAND THAT YOUR ANSWERS ARE IMPORTANT TO US AND THAT WE WILL
RELY ON THEM. BY SIGNING THIS QUESTIONNAIRE, YOU ARE REPRESENTING THAT YOU
HAVE CONSIDERED EACH QUESTION CAREFULLY AND RESPONDED TRUTHFULLY TO
THE ABOVE QUESTIONS.
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EXPLANATION OF ANY NEGATIVE RESPONSE
(REFER TO QUESTION NUMBER)

uestionnaire Explanation of Negative Response
P ¢ P
Number

Do not sign or date this Questionnaire the same day as the Receipt for the
Franchise Disclosure Document. Sign and date this Questionnaire the same day you
sign the Franchise Agreement and pay your franchise fee.

FRANCHISEE:

Signature:
Print Name:
Date:
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EXHIBIT F
GENERAL RELEASE

This General Release (“Release”) is executed by the undersigned (“Releasor”) in favor
of Cabinet IQ Franchising, LLC., a Texas Limited Liability Company (“Franchisor”).

Background Statement: Releasor wishes to dispose of all outstanding liabilities
against Released Parties.

Releasor agrees as follows:

1. Release. Releasor (on behalf of itself and its parents, subsidiaries and affiliates
and their respective past and present officers, directors, shareholders, managers, members,
partners, agents, and employees (collectively, the “Releasing Parties”) hereby release
Franchisor, its parent(s), affiliates, and each of their respective directors, officers,
shareholders, members, employees, and agents (collectively, the “Released Parties”) from any
and all claims, causes of action, suits, debts, agreements, promises, demands, liabilities,
contractual rights and/or obligations, of whatever nature, known or unknown, which any
Releasing Party now has or ever had against any Released Party based upon and/or arising out
of events that occurred through the date hereof, including without limitation, anything arising
out of the Franchise Agreement or in connection with the franchise relationship, franchise
sales process, misconduct, misrepresentation or fraud by any Released Party all of which are
acknowledged and expressly included here (collectively, “Claims”).

2. Covenant Not to Sue. Releasor (on behalf of all Releasing Parties) covenant
not to initiate, prosecute, encourage, assist, or (except as required by law) participate in any
civil, criminal, or administrative proceeding or investigation in any court, agency, or other
forum, either affirmatively or by way of cross-claim, defense, or counterclaim, against any
Released Party with respect to any Claim.

3. Representations and Acknowledgments. Releasor represents and
warrants that: (i) Releasor is the sole owners of all Claims, and that no Releasing Party has
assigned or transferred, or purported to assign or transfer, to any person or entity, any Claim;
(ii) Releasor has full power and authority to sign this Release; and (iii) this Release has been
voluntarily and knowingly signed after Releasor has had the opportunity to consult with
counsel of Releasor’s choice. Releasor acknowledges that the release in Section 1is a complete
defense to any Claim. Releasor covenants not to claim in any future proceeding that there was
insufficient consideration for the execution hereof or that it was not received.

4. Miscellaneous. If any of the provisions of this Release are held invalid for any
reason, the remainder of this Release will not be affected and will remain in full force and
effect. In the event of any dispute concerning this Release, the dispute resolution, governing
law, and venue provisions of the Franchise Agreement shall apply. Releasor agrees to take any
actions and sign any documents that Franchisor reasonably requests to effectuate the purposes
of this Release. This Release contains the entire agreement of the parties concerning the
subject matter hereof and has been executed in exchange for separate and sufficient
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consideration paid in hand by Released Parties to Releasor and Releasor acknowledges receipt
by executing below.

Executed by:

Date:

Name:
Personally, and on behalf of any entity through which (s)he has conducted business or otherwise
interreacted with any Released Party

[notary acknowledgement to follow]
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EXHIBIT G
STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDA AND RIDERS
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MICHIGAN ADDENDUM TO THE
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

(THE FOLLOWING APPLIES TO TRANSACTIONS GOVERNED BY
THE MICHIGAN FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW ONLY)

The state of Michigan prohibits certain unfair provisions that are
sometimes in franchise documents. If any of the following provisions are in
these franchise documents, the provisions are void and cannot be enforced
against you.

Each of the following provisions is void and unenforceable if contained in any
documents relating to a franchise:

(@) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of
franchisees.

(b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation,
waiver, or estoppel which deprives a franchisee of rights and protection provided in this
act. This shall not preclude a franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from
settling any and all claims.

(c) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the
expiration of its term except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the
franchisee to comply with any lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such
failure after being given written notice thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no
event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure.

(d) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without
fairly compensating the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value
at the time of expiration of the franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and
furnishings. Personalized materials which have no value to the franchisor and inventory,
supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of
the franchise business are not subject to compensation. This subsection applies only if: (i)
the term of the franchise is less than 5 years and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the
franchise or other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same business
under another trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or other
commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration of the franchise or the
franchisee does not receive at least 6 months advance notice of franchisor’s intent not to
renew the franchise.

(e) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on

terms generally available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar
circumstances. This section does not require a renewal provision.
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(f) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this
state. This shall not preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time
of arbitration, to conduct arbitration at a location outside this state.

(g) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of
ownership of a franchise, except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a
franchisor from exercising a right of first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause
shall include, but is not limited to:

1) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor’s then-current
reasonable qualifications or standards.

(i)  The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or sub-
franchisor.

(iii) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply
with all lawful obligations.

(iv)  The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing
to the franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing
at the time of the proposed transfer.

(h) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that
are not uniquely identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a
provision that grants to a franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a
franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to
purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the
franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value
of such assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise
agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c).

1) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey,
assign, or otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the
franchisee unless provision has been made for providing the required contractual services.

If the franchisor’s most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net
worth of less than $100,000, the franchisee may request the franchisor to arrange for the
escrow of initial investment and other funds paid by the franchisee until the obligations, if
any, of the franchisor to provide real estate, improvements, equipment, inventory, training
or other items included in the franchise offering are fulfilled. At the option of the
franchisor, a surety bond may be provided in place of escrow.

The fact that there is a notice of this offering on file with the attorney
general does not constitute approval, recommendation, or endorsement by
the attorney general.
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Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to:

State of Michigan Department of Attorney General
G. Mennen Williams Building, 7th Floor
525 W. Ottawa Street
Lansing, Michigan 48909
Telephone Number: (517) 373 7117
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CALIFORNIA ADDENDUM TO THE
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

California Corporations Code, Section 31125 requires the franchisor to give the
franchisee a disclosure document, approved by the Department of Financial Protection
and Innovation, prior to a solicitation of a proposed material modification of an existing
franchise.

THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY
OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE
DELIVERED TOGETHER WITH THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 14 DAYS PRIOR TO
EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT.

OUR WEBSITE HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION. ANY
COMPLAINTS CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE MAY BE DIRECTED
TO THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND BUSINESS
OVERSIGHT AT WWW.DFPI.CA.GOV.

THESE FRANCHISES HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE FRANCHISE
INVESTMENT LAW OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA.

REGISTRATION OF THIS FRANCHISE OFFERING DOES NOT
CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY
THE COMMISSIONER OF THE DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION
AND INNOVATION.

ALL THE OWNERS OF THE FRANCHISE WILL BE REQUIRED TO EXECUTE
PERSONAL GUARANTEES. THIS REQUIREMENT PLACES THE MARITAL ASSETS OF
THE SPOUSES DOMICILED IN COMMUNITY PROPERTY STATES — ARIZONA,
CALIFORNIA, IDAHO, LOUISIANA, NEVADA, NEW MEXICO, TEXAS, WASHINGTON
AND WISCONSIN AT RISK IF YOUR FRANCHISE FAILS.

1. The following paragraph is added to the end of Item 3 of the Disclosure Document:

Neither franchisor nor any person or franchise broker in Item 2 of this disclosure
document is subject to any currently effective order of any national securities
association or national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a et seq., suspending or expelling such persons from
membership in that association or exchange.

2. The following paragraph is added to the end of Item 6 of the Disclosure Document:

With respect to the Late Fee described in Item 6, this Item is amended to disclose
that the maximum rate of interest permitted under California law is 10%.

3. The following paragraphs are added at the end of Item 17 of the Disclosure

Document:
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The Franchise Agreement requires franchisee to sign a general release of claims
upon renewal or transfer of the Franchise Agreement. California Corporations Code
Section 31512 provides that any condition, stipulation or provision purporting to
bind any person acquiring a franchise to waive compliance with any provision of
that law or any rule or order thereunder is void.

California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide
rights to the franchisee concerning termination, transfer, or non-renewal of a
franchise. If the Franchise Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with
the law, the law will control.

The Franchise Agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy. This
provision may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C.A. Sec.
101 et seq.).

The Franchise Agreement contains a covenant not to compete which extends
beyond the termination of the franchise. This provision may not be enforceable
under California law.

The Franchise Agreement contains a liquidated damages clause. Under California
Civil Code Section 1671, certain liquidated damages clauses are unenforceable.

The Franchise Agreement requires binding arbitration. The arbitration will occur
in *City*, *State*, with the costs being borne equally by Franchisor and Franchisee.
Prospective franchisees are encouraged to consult private legal counsel to
determine the applicability of California and federal laws (such as Business and
Professions Code Section 20040.5, Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281, and the
Federal Arbitration Act) to any provisions of a franchise agreement restricting
venue to a forum outside the State of California.

The Franchise Agreement requires application of the laws of *State*. This provision
may not be enforceable under California law.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a
franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall
have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law,
including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement
made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise. See NASAA STATEMENT OF POLICY REGARDING
THE USE OF FRANCHISE QUESTIONNAIRES AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS.
https://www.nasaa.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/11/sop-franchise-
questionnaires.pdf.

California’s Franchise Investment Law (Corporations Code sections 31512 and
31512.1) states that any provision of a franchise agreement or related document
requiring the franchisee to waive specific provisions of the law is contrary to public
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policy and is void and unenforceable. The law also prohibits a franchisor from
disclaiming or denying (i) representations it, its employees, or its agents make to
you, (ii) your ability to rely on any representations it makes to you, or (iii) any
violations of the law.
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CALIFORNIA ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

No disclaimer, questionnaire, clause, or statement signed by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall be construed as waiving any
claim of fraud in the inducement, whether common law or statutory, or as disclaiming
reliance on or the right to rely upon any statement made or information provided by any
franchisor, broker or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor that was a material
inducement to a franchisee’s investment. Any statements or representations signed by a
franchisee purporting to understand any fact or its legal effect shall be deemed made only
based upon the franchisee’s understanding of the law and facts as of the time of the
franchisee’s investment decision. This provision supersedes any other or inconsistent term
of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

[FRANCHISEE ENTITY]

By:
Name:
Title:
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FOR THE STATE OF HAWAII

In the State of Hawaii only, this Disclosure Document is amended as follows:

THESE FRANCHISES WILL BE/HAVE BEEN FILED UNDER THE
FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW OF THE STATE OF HAWAII. FILING DOES
NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT
BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS OR A
FINDING BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS
THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND
NOT MISLEADING.

THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO
OFFER OR SELL ANY FRANCHISE IN THIS STATE WITHOUT FIRST
PROVIDING TO THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHISOR,
AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE EXECUTION BY THE PROSPECTIVE
FRANCHISEE, OF ANY BINDING FRANCHISE OR OTHER AGREEMENT, OR
AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE PAYMENT OF ANY
CONSIDERATION BY THE FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHISOR,
WHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST, A COPY OF THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT,
TOGETHER WITH A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING
TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE.

THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT CONTAINS A SUMMARY ONLY OF
CERTAIN MATERIAL PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. THE
CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT SHOULD BE REFERRED TO FOR A
STATEMENT OF ALL RIGHTS, CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS AND
OBLIGATIONS OF BOTH THE FRANCHISOR AND THE FRANCHISEE.

Registered agent in the state authorized to receive service of process:

Commissioner of Securities
335 Merchant Street
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

Registration of franchises or filings of offering circulars in other states. As of the
date of filing of this Addendum in the State of Hawaii:

1. A franchise registration is effective or an offering circular is on file in the
following states:

2. A proposed registration or filing is or will be shortly on file in the following
states:

3. No states have refused, by order or otherwise to register these franchises.

4. No states have revoked or suspended the right to offer these franchises.
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The proposed registration of these franchises has not been withdrawn in any state.
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ILLINOIS ADDENDUM TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
AND FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

In recognition of the requirements of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, as
amended (the “Act”), this Disclosure Document and Franchise Agreement are amended
as follows:

1. Governing Law. Illinois law governs the Agreement.

2. Waivers Void. In conformance with Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure
Act, notwithstanding any provision of the Agreement to the contrary, any condition,
stipulation, or provision purporting to bind Franchisee to waive compliance with any
provision of the Illinois Act or any other law of the State of Illinois is void. This Section
shall not prevent Franchisee from entering into a settlement agreement or executing a
general release regarding a potential or actual lawsuit filed under any of the provisions of
this Act, nor shall it prevent the arbitration of any claim pursuant to the provisions of Title
9 of the United States Code.

3. Jurisdiction. In conformance with Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure
Act, any provision in a franchise agreement that designates jurisdiction and venue in a
forum outside of the State of Illinois is void. However, a franchise agreement may provide
for arbitration to occur outside of Illinois.

4. Termination/Non-Renewal. Franchisee’s rights upon Termination and Non-
Renewal are set forth in sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

5. Disclaimers. No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or agreed
to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall
have the effect of: (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law,
including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on behalf of the Franchisor.
This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with
the franchise.

CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

[FRANCHISEE ENTITY]

By:
Name:
Title:
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INDIANA ADDENDUM TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT AND
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meanings
given in the Agreement. The “Indiana Acts” means the Indiana Franchise Act and the
Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act.

2, Certain Provisions Modified. Any provision of the Agreement which would
have any of the following effects is hereby modified to the extent required for the
Agreement to be in compliance with the Indiana Acts:

(1)  Requiring goods, supplies, inventories, or services to be purchased exclusively from
the franchisor or sources designated by the franchisor where such goods, supplies,
inventories, or services of comparable quality are available from sources other than those
designated by the franchisor. However, the publication by the franchisor of a list of
approved suppliers of goods, supplies, inventories, or services or the requirement that such
goods, supplies, inventories, or services comply with specifications and standards
prescribed by the franchisor does not constitute designation of a source nor does a
reasonable right of the franchisor to disapprove a supplier constitute a designation. This
subdivision does not apply to the principal goods, supplies, inventories, or services
manufactured or trademarked by the franchisor.

(2) Allowing the franchisor to establish a franchisor-owned outlet engaged in a
substantially identical business to that of the franchisee within the exclusive territory
granted the franchisee by the franchise agreement; or, if no exclusive territory is
designated, permitting the franchisor to compete unfairly with the franchisee within a
reasonable area.

(3) Allowing substantial modification of the franchise agreement by the franchisor
without the consent in writing of the franchisee.

(4)  Allowing the franchisor to obtain money, goods, services, or any other benefit from
any other person with whom the franchisee does business, on account of, or in relation to,
the transaction between the franchisee and the other person, other than for compensation
for services rendered by the franchisor, unless the benefit is promptly accounted for, and
transmitted to the franchisee.

(5)  Requiring the franchisee to prospectively assent to a release, assignment, novation,
waiver, or estoppel which purports to relieve any person from liability to be imposed by
the Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act or requiring any controversy between the
franchisee and the franchisor to be referred to any person, if referral would be binding on
the franchisee. This subsection (5) does not apply to arbitration before an independent
arbitrator.

(6)  Allowing for an increase in prices of goods provided by the franchisor which the
franchisee had ordered for private retail consumers prior to the franchisee's receipt of an
official price increase notification. A sales contract signed by a private retail consumer
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shall constitute evidence of each order. Price changes applicable to new models of a
product at the time of introduction of such new models shall not be considered a price
increase. Price increases caused by conformity to a state or federal law, or the revaluation
of the United States dollar in the case of foreign-made goods, are not subject to this
subsection (6).

(7)  Permitting unilateral termination of the franchise if such termination is without
good cause or in bad faith. Good cause within the meaning of this subsection (7) includes
any material violation of the franchise agreement.

(8)  Permitting the franchisor to fail to renew a franchise without good cause or in bad
faith. This chapter shall not prohibit a franchise agreement from providing that the
agreement is not renewable upon expiration or that the agreement is renewable if the
franchisee meets certain conditions specified in the agreement.

(9)  Requiring a franchisee to covenant not to compete with the franchisor for a period
longer than three years or in an area greater than the exclusive area granted by the
franchise agreement or, in absence of such a provision in the agreement, an area of
reasonable size, upon termination of or failure to renew the franchise.

(10) Limiting litigation brought for breach of the agreement in any manner whatsoever.

(11)  Requiring the franchisee to participate in any (A) advertising campaign or contest;
(B) promotional campaign; (C) promotional materials; or (D) display decorations or
materials; at an expense to the franchisee that is indeterminate, determined by a third
party, or determined by a formula, unless the franchise agreement specifies the maximum
percentage of gross monthly sales or the maximum absolute sum that the franchisee may
be required to pay.

CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

[FRANCHISEE ENTITY]

By:
Name:
Title:
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MARYLAND ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the
meanings given in the Agreement. The “Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure
Law” means the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law, Business
Regulation Article, §14-206, Annotated Code of Maryland.

2, Releases, Estoppels and Waivers of Liability. All representations
requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of liability are
not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred
under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. The general release
required as a condition of renewal shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

3. Disclaimers. No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or
agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise
relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state
franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller or other person acting on behalf of the
Franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise.

4. Statute of Limitations. Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought within three years after the grant of the
franchise.

5. Jurisdiction. Franchisee does not waive its right to file a lawsuit alleging a
cause of action arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law in
any court of competent jurisdiction in the State of Maryland.

CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

[FRANCHISEE ENTITY]

By:
Name:
Title:
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MARYIAND ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

In the State of Maryland only, this Disclosure Document is amended as follows:
The following is added to Item 17:

The general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or
assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law.

Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law
must be brought within 3 years after the grant of the franchise.

You have the right to file a lawsuit alleging a cause of action arising under the
Maryland Franchise Law in any court of competent jurisdiction in the State of
Maryland.

The Franchise Agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy of the
franchisee. This provision may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law.

No statement, questionnaire or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of:
(i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the
inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor,
franchise seller or other person acting on behalf of the Franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.
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MINNESOTA ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Rider herein have the
meanings given in the Agreement. The “Minnesota Act” means Minnesota Statutes,
Sections 80C.01 to 80C.22.

2, Amendments. The Agreement is amended to comply with the following:

Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(J) prohibit the
franchisor from requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver
of a jury trial, or requiring the franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, termination
penalties or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document
or agreement(s) can abrogate or reduce (1) any of the franchisee’s rights as provided for in
Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C or (2) franchisee’s rights to any procedure, forum, or
remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with
Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.14, Subd. 3-5, which require (except in certain specified
cases) (1) that a franchisee be given 9o days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure)
and 180 days’ notice for non-renewal of the franchise agreement and (2) that consent to
the transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably withheld.

The franchisor will protect the franchisee’s rights to use the trademarks, service marks,
trade names, logotypes or other commercial symbols or indemnify the franchisee from any
loss, costs or expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of the
name. Minnesota considers it unfair to not protect the franchisee’s right to use the
trademarks. Refer to Minnesota Statues, Section 80C.12, Subd. 1(g).

Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to
assent to a general release.

The franchisee cannot consent to the franchisor obtaining injunctive relief. The franchisor
may seek injunctive relief. See Minn. Rules 2860.4400J. Also, a court will determine if a
bond is required.

The Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.17,
Subd. 5, and therefore the applicable provision of the Agreement is amended to state “No
action may be commenced pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.17 more than
three years after the cause of action accrues.”
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CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

[FRANCHISEE ENTITY]

By:
Name:
Title:
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MINNESOTA ADDENDUM TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

In the State of Minnesota only, this Disclosure Document is amended as follows:

Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(J) prohibit
the franchisor from requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota,
requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring the franchisee to consent to liquidated
damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in the
Franchise Disclosure Document or agreement(s) can abrogate or reduce (1) any of
the franchisee’s rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C or (2)
franchisee’s rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of
the jurisdiction.

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply
with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.14, Subd. 3-5, which require (except in
certain specified cases) (1) that a franchisee be given 9o days’ notice of termination
(with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice for non-renewal of the franchise
agreement and (2) that consent to the transfer of the franchise will not be
unreasonably withheld.

The franchisor will protect the franchisee’s rights to use the trademarks, service
marks, trade names, logotypes or other commercial symbols or indemnify the
franchisee from any loss, costs or expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand
regarding the use of the name.

Minnesota considers it unfair to not protect the franchisee’s right to use the
trademarks. Refer to Minnesota Statues, Section 80C.12, Subd. 1(g).

Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee
to assent to a general release.

The franchisee cannot consent to the franchisor obtaining injunctive relief. The
franchisor may seek injunctive relief. See Minn. Rules 2860.4400J. Also, a court
will determine if a bond is required.

The Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section
80C.17, Subd. 5, which states “No action may be commenced pursuant to this
Section more than three years after the cause of action accrues.”

THESE FRANCHISES HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE MINNESOTA
FRANCHISE ACT. REGISTRATION DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL,
RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE COMMISSIONER OF
COMMERCE OF MINNESOTA OR A FINDING BY THE COMMISSIONER
THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND
NOT MISLEADING.
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THE MINNESOTA FRANCHISE ACT MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO OFFER OR
SELL ANY FRANCHISE IN THIS STATE WHICH IS SUBJECT TO
REGISTRATION WITHOUT FIRST PROVIDING TO THE PROSPECTIVE
FRANCHISEE, AT LEAST 7 DAYS PRIOR TO THE EXECUTION BY THE
PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE OF ANY BINDING FRANCHISE OR OTHER
AGREEMENT, OR AT LEAST 7 DAYS PRIOR TO THE PAYMENT OF ANY
CONSIDERATION, BY THE FRANCHISEE, WHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST, A
COPY OF THIS PUBLIC OFFERING STATEMENT, TOGETHER WITH A COPY
OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE FRANCHISE. THIS
PUBLIC OFFERING STATEMENT CONTAINS A SUMMARY ONLY OF
CERTAIN MATERIAL PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. THE
CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT SHOULD BE REFERRED TO FOR AN
UNDERSTANDING OF ALL RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF BOTH THE
FRANCHISOR AND THE FRANCHISEE.
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NEW YORK ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meanings
given in the Agreement.

2, Waivers Not Required. Notwithstanding any provision of the Agreement to the
contrary, Franchisee is not required to assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver or
estoppel which would relieve Franchisor or any other person from any duty or liability
imposed by New York General Business Law, Article 33 (the “New York Franchise Law”).

3. Waivers of New York Law Deleted. Any condition, stipulation, or provision in
the Agreement purporting to bind Franchisee to waive compliance by Franchisor with any
provision of the New York Franchise Law, or any rule promulgated thereunder, is hereby
deleted.

4. Governing Law. Notwithstanding any provision of the Agreement to the contrary,
the New York Franchise Law shall govern any claim arising under that law.

5. Effective Date. This Rider is effective as of the Effective Date.

CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

[FRANCHISEE ENTITY]

By:
Name:
Title:
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NEW YORK ADDENDUM TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

In the State of New York only, this Disclosure Document is amended as follows:

1. The following information is added to the cover page of the Franchise Disclosure
Document:

INFORMATION COMPARING FRANCHISORS IS AVAILABLE. CALL
THE STATE ADMINISTRATORS LISTED IN EXHIBIT A OR YOUR
PUBLIC LIBRARY FOR SOURCES OF INFORMATION. REGISTRATION
OF THIS FRANCHISE BY NEW YORK STATE DOES NOT MEAN THAT
NEW YORK STATE RECOMMENDS IT OR HAS VERIFIED THE
INFORMATION IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. IF
YOU LEARN THAT ANYTHING IN THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT IS UNTRUE, CONTACT THE FEDERAL TRADE
COMMISSION AND NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF LAW,
BUREAU OF INVESTOR PROTECTION AND SECURITIES, 28 LIBERTY
ST. 21ST FLOOR, NEW YORK, NY 10005. THE FRANCHISOR MAY, IF
IT CHOOSES, NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT ITEMS COVERED IN
THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. HOWEVER, THE
FRANCHISOR CANNOT USE THE NEGOTIATING PROCESS TO
PREVAIL UPON A PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT TERMS
WHICH ARE LESS FAVORABLE THAN THOSE SET FORTH IN THIS
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

2, The following is added at the end of Item 3:

Except as provided above, with regard to the franchisor, its predecessor, a person
identified in Item 2, or an affiliate offering franchises under the franchisor’s
principal trademark:

A. No such party has an administrative, criminal or civil action pending against that
person alleging: a felony, a violation of a franchise, antitrust, or securities law,
fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent conversion, misappropriation of property, unfair
or deceptive practices, or comparable civil or misdemeanor allegations.

B. No such party has pending actions, other than routine litigation incidental to the
business, which are significant in the context of the number of franchisees and the
size, nature or financial condition of the franchise system or its business operations.

C. No such party has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to a
felony charge or, within the 10 year period immediately preceding the application
for registration, has been convicted of or pleaded nolo contendere to a
misdemeanor charge or has been the subject of a civil action alleging: violation of a
franchise, antifraud, or securities law; fraud; embezzlement; fraudulent conversion
or misappropriation of property; or unfair or deceptive practices or comparable
allegations.
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5.

D. No such party is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order or
decree relating to the franchise, or under a Federal, State, or Canadian franchise,
securities, antitrust, trade regulation or trade practice law, resulting from a
concluded or pending action or proceeding brought by a public agency; or is subject
to any currently effective order of any national securities association or national
securities exchange, as defined in the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934,
suspending or expelling such person from membership in such association or
exchange; or is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order relating
to any other business activity as a result of an action brought by a public agency or
department, including, without limitation, actions affecting a license as a real estate
broker or sales agent.

The following is added to the end of Item 4:

Neither the franchisor, its affiliate, its predecessor, officers, or general partner
during the 10-year period immediately before the date of the offering circular: (a)
filed as debtor (or had filed against it) a petition to start an action under the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code; (b) obtained a discharge of its debts under the bankruptcy code;
or (c) was a principal officer of a company or a general partner in a partnership that
either filed as a debtor (or had filed against it) a petition to start an action under the
U.S. Bankruptcy Code or that obtained a discharge of its debts under the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code during or within 1 year after that officer or general partner of the
franchisor held this position in the company or partnership.

The following is added to the end of Item 5:

The initial franchise fee constitutes part of our general operating funds and will be
used as such in our discretion.

The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(c), titled

“Requirements for franchisee to renew or extend,” and Item 17(m), entitled
“Conditions for franchisor approval of transfer”:

6.

However, to the extent required by applicable law, all rights you enjoy and any
causes of action arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General
Business Law of the State of New York and the regulations issued thereunder shall
remain in force; it being the intent of this proviso that the non-waiver provisions of
General Business Law Sections 687.4 and 687.5 be satisfied.

The following language replaces the “Summary” section of Item 17(d), titled

“Termination by franchisee”:

7.

You may terminate the agreement on any grounds available by law.

The following is added to the end of the “Summary” section of Item 17(j), titled

“Assignment of contract by franchisor”:
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However, no assignment will be made except to an assignee who in good faith and
judgment of the franchisor, is willing and financially able to assume the franchisor’s
obligations under the Franchise Agreement.

8. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(v), titled
“Choice of forum”, and Item 17(w), titled “Choice of law”: The foregoing choice of law
should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon the franchisor or upon the
franchisee by Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York.
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NORTH DAKOTA ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND
THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

1. The North Dakota Securities Commission requires that certain provisions
contained in the Agreement be amended to be consistent with North Dakota Law,
including the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, North Dakota Century Code
Addendum, Chapter 51-19, Sections 51-19-01 et seq. Such provisions in the Agreement are
hereby amended as follows:

O Under Sections 2.2, 12, and 13, the execution of a general release upon renewal,
transfer, shall be inapplicable to Franchises operating under the North Dakota Franchise
Investment Law to the extent that such a release excludes claims arising under the North
Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

O Section 23.9 is amended to add that the prevailing party in any enforcement action
is entitled to recover all costs and expenses including attorneys’ fees.

[l Sections 23.1 and 23.2 are amended to state:

If Franchisor or Franchisee is required to enforce this Agreement via judicial or arbitration
proceedings, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reimbursement of its costs, including
reasonable accounting and legal fees in connection with such proceeding.

Ol Section 15.3 is amended to add that covenants not to compete upon termination or
expiration of the Franchise Agreement are generally unenforceable in the State of North
Dakota except in limited instances as provided by law.

[l Section 23.1 is amended to state that in the event of a conflict of laws, North Dakota
Law shall prevail.

O Section 23.2 is amended to add that any action may be brought in the appropriate
state or federal court in North Dakota with respect to claims under North Dakota Law.

[l Section 23.7 is amended to state that the statute of limitations under North Dakota
Law shall apply.

l Sections 23.6 and 23.8 are deleted in their entireties.

L Section 23.2 is amended to state that arbitration involving a Franchise purchased
in North Dakota must be held either in a location mutually agreed upon prior to the
arbitration, or if the parties cannot agree on a location, the arbitrator will determine the
location.

2. The Franchise Disclosure Document is further amended as follows:

[l In Item 17(c), the term “release us” is hereby deleted.
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Ol With respect to Item 17(r) of the FDD, covenants not to compete such as those
mentioned in Item 17(r), and Section 15.3 of the Franchise Agreement. are generally
considered unenforceable in the State of North Dakota."

O Item 17(u) and Item 17(v) is amended to add that any action may be brought in the
appropriate state or federal court in North Dakota with respect to claims under North
Dakota Law.

O In Item 17(w) is amended to delete the word “Texas” and replace it with the words
“North Dakota.”

3. Each provision of this Addendum shall be effective only to the extent that the
jurisdictional requirements of the North Dakota Law applicable to the provisions are met
independently of this Addendum. To the extent this Addendum shall be deemed to be
inconsistent with any terms or conditions of said Franchise Agreement or exhibits or
attachments thereto, the terms of this Addendum shall govern

CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

[FRANCHISEE ENTITY]

By:
Name:
Title:
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RHODE ISLAND ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

1. In recognition of the requirements of The Rhode Island Franchise
Investment Act §19-28.1-14, the Franchise Agreement is amended as follows:

Ol Sections 2.2, 12, and 13 require Franchisee to sign a general release as a condition
of renewal, transfer; such release shall exclude claims arising under The Rhode Island
Franchise Investment Act.

O Sections 23 is amended to state that restricting jurisdiction or venue to a forum
outside the State of Rhode Island or requiring the application of the laws of another state
is void with respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under The Rhode Island Franchise
Investment Act.

2. Each provision of this Addendum shall be effective only to the extent that the
jurisdictional requirements of the Rhode Island Law applicable to the provisions are met
independently of this Addendum. To the extent this Addendum shall be deemed to be
inconsistent with any terms or conditions of said Franchise Agreement or exhibits or
attachments thereto, the terms of this Addendum shall govern.

CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

[FRANCHISEE ENTITY]

By:
Name:
Title:
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VIRGINIA ADDENDUM TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

In the Commonwealth of Virginia only, this Disclosure Document is amended as follows:
The following statements are added to Item 17(h):

Under Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful
for a franchisor to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any
grounds for default or termination stated in the Franchise Agreement do not
constitute “reasonable cause,” as that term may be defined in the Virginia
Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not be
enforceable.

Under Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful
for a franchisor to use undue influence to induce a franchisee to surrender
any right given to him under the franchise. If any provision of the Franchise
Agreement involves the use of undue influence by the franchisor to induce a
franchisee to surrender any rights given to the franchisee under the
franchise, that provision may not be enforceable.

Item 17(t) is amended to read as follows:

Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement and other related written
agreements are binding (subject to applicable state law). Any
representations or promises outside of the Disclosure Document and
Franchise Agreement may not be enforceable.
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WASHINGTON ADDENDUM TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT AND
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise
Investment Protection Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with
the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may
also be court decisions which may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship
with the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the
arbitration or mediation site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place
mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration or mediation, or as determined by the
arbitrator or mediator at the time of arbitration or mediation. In addition, if litigation is
not precluded by the franchise agreement, a franchisee may bring an action or proceeding
arising out of or in connection with the sale of franchises, or a violation of the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under
the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder
except when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect
and where the parties are represented by independent counsel. Provisions such as those
which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for claims under the
Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial, may not be
enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s
reasonable estimated or actual costs in effecting a transfer.

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable
against an employee, including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s
earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year
(an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). In addition, a noncompetition
covenant is void and unenforceable against an independent contractor of a franchisee
under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent contractor’s earnings from the party
seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per year (an amount that will be
adjusted annually for inflation). As a result, any provisions contained in the franchise
agreement or elsewhere that conflict with these limitations are void and unenforceable in
Washington.

RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting
a franchisee from (i) soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same
franchisor or (ii) soliciting or hiring any employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such
provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere are void and unenforceable
in Washington.
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CABINET IQ FRANCHISING, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

[FRANCHISEE ENTITY]

By:
Name:
Title:
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Current Franchisees

EXHIBIT H

Names of all current franchisees (as of the end of our last fiscal year) and the address and
telephone number of each of their outlets:

ClQ of Huntsville

Colin Dorman

1000 Meridian St N,
Huntsville, AL 35801

(917) 886-9845

ClQ of Scottsdale

Nick and Kelly Bowden

15030 N Tatum Blvd Suite 150
Phoenix AZ 85032

(480) 424-4866

CIQ of Ft Myers

Kevin Kirchner

7830 Drew Cir #4,
Fort Myers, FL 33967

(239) 990-6583

ClQ of Alpharetta

Sean Estes

7260 Sheffield Place,
Cumming, GA 30040

470-380-7677

ClQ of Kennesaw

Benjamin Moore

2700 Town Center Dr Suite 100
Kennesaw, GA 30144

(404) 531-7588

ClQ of Overland

9296 Metcalf Ave. Suite B

Park Nik Johnsson Overland Park, KS 66212 (913) 794-3890
12619 S. 74th St.,
ClQ of Omaha Greg and Kali Allen Papillion, NE 68046 (531) 228-4747
171 Tradition Trail, Ste 207
CIQ of Cary Dalton Kane Akkerman Cary, NC 27540 (919) 909-6237

ClQ of Charlotte

Stephen and Marshall
Casselman

11014 Monroe Rd. Ste C
Matthews, NC 28105

(704) 247-1400

ClQ of Raleigh

Graham and Tricia Wales

8817 Westgate Park Dr, Ste 104
Raleigh, North Carolina, 27617

(919) 899-7171

ClQ of Hilton Head

Ryan Colburn and
Timothy Cirbo

22 Plantation Park Drive
Suite 106
Bluffton, SC 29910

(843) 396-2525

ClQ of Lubbock

Stephanie and Ryan
Herring

13413 Frankford Ave, Ste. 3
Lubbock, Texas, 79424

(806) 451-3022

CIQ of McKinney

Nicholas Berger

3180 Eldorado Pkwy Suite 100,
McKinney TX 75072

(469) 202-6005

CIQ of Salt Lake City

Brian Ranck

348 East 12300
South Draper, UT 84020

(385) 308-5400

ClQ of Milwaukee

Dan Gueldner

20711 Watertown Rd., Suite T1
Waukesha, WI 53186

(262) 684-1234
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Franchisees who had signed franchise agreements but were not yet open as of the end of

our last fiscal year:

ClQ of Peoria

Zachary Heilman &
Jessica Heilman

13252 West Chaparosa Way,
Peoria, AZ 85383

(623) 343-3475

ClQ of West Denver

Joseph Smith

10206 Taliesin Dr. #110
Engelwood, CO 80112

(303) 524-2763

ClQ of Denver

Wayne and Alan Jeffs

9068 Forsstrom Drive Suite C10
Lone Tree, CO 80124

(720) 674-9132

ClQ of Boca Raton

Ramani Sri Ramya
Tadimeti

8628 Breezy Oak Way, Boynton
Beach, FL 33473

(561) 571-8711

ClQ of Orlando

Shelly Smith

4502 SW 35th St., Suite 100
Orlando, FL 32811

(689) 407-5830

ClQ of Palm Beach

Fabian Bresan

13820 Emerson Street, Apt. 210
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33418

(561) 567-9478

CIQ of Louisville

Jennifer Tinsley &
Christopher Tinsley

1312 Bentwood Way
Louisville, KY 40223

(502) 665-3500

CIQ of Bridgewater

Michael Bruno

215 US-22 Store 8A
Green Brook Township, NJ 08812

(908) 838-1567

ClQ of Montclair

John-Paul Wahnon

105 River Road, Unit A4
Nutley, NJ 07110

(551) 304 7977

CIQ of Charleston

Zachary Pfauth

7308 Horned Grebe Court
Hanahan, SC 29410

843 256 8382

ClQ of Nashville

Rich and Holli Walker

914 Woodburn Drive
Brentwood, TN 37027

615 747 9900

517 Mary Street

ClQ of Tyler Jason Jenkins Gilmer, TX 75644 903-500-9009
James Miller & Cody 23614 Greenwood Springs Pl

ClQ of Katy Wiley Katy, TX 77493 281 668 0655

ClQ of The . 34010 Mill Creek Way

Woodlands Daniel and Mallory Baker Pinehurst, TX 77362 (346) 703-6733

Former Franchisees

Name, city and state, and current business telephone number, or if unknown, the last
known home telephone number of every franchisee who had an outlet terminated,
canceled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business
under the franchise agreement during the most recently completed fiscal year or who have
not communicated with us within 10 weeks of the disclosure document issuance date:

Houston Morris; Panama City Beach, FL; (850) 832-6548*

*Mutually terminated earlier during 2025 prior to opening business. Had purchased territory in

Nashville, TN.
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EXHIBIT I
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SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION ADDENDUM

SOP 5010 5(I) Appendix 9
WV BUs,
o ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE' AGREEMENT
NS
THIS ADDENDUM (“Addendum™) is made and entered into on 20 by and
between {“Franchisor™), located
at , and

(“Franchisee™), located

at

Franchisor and Franchisee entered into a Franchise Agreement on , 20, (such
Agreement, together with any amendments, the “Franchise Agreement™). Franchisee is applying for
financing(s) from a lender in which funding is provided with the assistance of the U. 8. Small Business
Administration (“SBA”). SBA requires the execution of this Addendum as a condition for obtaining SBA-
assisted financing.

In consideration of the mutual promises below and for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which the parties acknowledge, the parties agree that notwithstanding any other terms in the
Franchise Agreement or any other document Franchisor requires Franchisee to sign:

CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP

o If Franchisee is proposing to transfer a partial interest in Franchisee and Franchisor has an
option to purchase or a right of first refusal with respect to that partial interest, Franchisor
may exercise such option or right only if the proposed transferee is not a current owner or
family member of a current owner of Franchisee. If the Franchisor’s consent is required for
any transfer (full or partial), Franchisor will not unreasonably withhold such consent. Inthe
event of an approved transfer of the franchise interest or any portion thereof, the transferor
will not be liable for the actions of the transferee franchisee.

FORCED SALE OF ASSETS

e If Franchisor has the option to purchase the business personal assets upon default or
termination of the Franchise Agreement and the parties are unable to agree on the value of
the assets, the value will be determined by an appraiser chosen by both parties. If the
Franchisee owns the real estate where the franchise location is operating, Franchisee will not
be required to sell the real estate upon default or termination, but Franchisee may be
required to lease the real estate for the remainder of the franchise term (excluding additional

! While relationships established under license, jobber, dealer and similar agreements are not generally described as
““franchise™ relationships, if such relationships meet the Federal Trade Commission’s (FTC’s) definition of a franchise (see
16 CFR § 436), they are treated by SBA as franchise relationships for franchise affiliation determinations per 13 CFR §
121.301(0)(5).

Effective Date: Jamuary 1, 2018 395
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SOP 50 10 5(T) Appendix 9

renewals) for fair market value.
COVENANTS

o If the Franchisee owns the real estate where the franchise location is operating, Franchisor
has not and will not during the term of the Franchise Agreement record against the real
estate any restrictions on the use of the property, including any restrictive covenants,
branding covenants or environmental use restrictions. If any such restrictions are currently
recorded against the Franchisee’s real estate, they must be removed in order for the
Franchisee to obtain SBA-assisted financing.

EMPLOYMENT
o Franchisor will not directly control (hire, fire or schedule) Franchisee’s employees. For
temporary personnel franchises, the temporary employees will be employed by the

Franchisee not the Franchisor.

As to the referenced Franchise Agreement, this Addendum automatically terminates when SBA no longer
has any interest in any SBA-assisted financing provided to the Franchisee.

Except as amended by this Addendum, the Franchise Agreement remains in full force and effect according
to its terms.

Franchisor and Franchisee acknowledge that submission of false information to SBA, or the withholding of
material information from SBA, ean result in criminal prosecution under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and other
provisions, including liability for treble damages under the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729 -3733.
Authorized Representative of FRANCHISOR:

By:

Print Name:

Title:

Authorized Representative of FRANCHISEE:

By:

Print Name:

Title:

Note to Parties: This Addendum only addresses “affiliation” between the Franchisor and Franchisee.
Additionally, the applicant Franchisee and the franchise system must meet all SBA eligibility requirements

Effective Date: January 1, 2018 396
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STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure
Document be registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from registration: California,
Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota,
Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the
document is filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated
below:

State Effective Date
California
Hawaii
Illinois
Indiana
Maryland
Michigan April 7, 2025
Minnesota
New York
North Dakota
Rhode Island
South Dakota
Virginia
Washington
Wisconsin April 3, 2025

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under
other laws, such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-
assisted marketing plans.
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Receipt

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement and
other information in plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements
carefully. If Cabinet IQ Franchising, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this
Disclosure Document to you 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with,
or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed
franchise sale. New York requires that you be given this Disclosure Document at the earlier
of the first personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of any binding
franchise or other agreement, or payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise
relationship.

If Cabinet IQ Franchising, LLC does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if it
contains a false or misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law
and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission,
Washington, D.C. 20580 and any applicable state agency (which are listed in Exhibit A).

The franchise sellers for this offering are:

Name Principal Place of Business Telephone

Michael Hartel | 2419 S. Bell Blvd., Cedar Park, Texas 78613 512-729-3982
Amie Hawk 16034 Frances Street, #105 Omaha, NE 68130 | 531-333-3278
Ben Rickord 16934 Frances Street, #105 Omaha, NE 68130 | 531-333-3278

Cabinet IQ Franchising, LLC authorizes the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit
A to receive service of process for it in that particular state. Issuance Date: April 1, 2025.

I received a Disclosure Document dated April 1, 2025, that included the following Exhibits:

A: List of State Franchise Administrators and Agents for Service of Process
B: Franchise Agreement and Exhibits

C: Financial Statements of Cabinet IQ Franchising, LL.C

D: Table of Contents of the Operations Manual

E: Franchisee Disclosure Questionnaire

F: Form of General Release

G: State Specific Addenda and Riders

H: List of Franchisee Operators

I: Small Business Administration Addendum

Signature:
Print Name:
Date Received:

Keep this copy for your records
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Receipt

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and
other information in plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements
carefully. If Cabinet IQ Franchising, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this
Disclosure Document to you 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with,
or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed
franchise sale. New York requires that you be given this Disclosure Document at the earlier
of the first personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of any binding
franchise or other agreement, or payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise
relationship.

If Cabinet IQ Franchising, LLC does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if it
contains a false or misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law
and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission,
Washington, D.C. 20580 and any applicable state agency (which are listed in Exhibit A).

The franchise sellers for this offering are:

Name Principal Place of Business Telephone

Michael Hartel | 2419 S. Bell Blvd., Cedar Park, Texas 78613 512-729-3982
Amie Hawk 16034 Frances Street, #105 Omaha, NE 68130 | 531-333-3278
Ben Rickord 16934 Frances Street, #105 Omaha, NE 68130 | 531-333-3278

Cabinet IQ Franchising, LLC authorizes the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit
A to receive service of process for it in that particular state. Issuance Date: April 1, 2025.

I received a Disclosure Document dated April 1, 2025, that included the following Exhibits:

A: List of State Franchise Administrators and Agents for Service of Process
B: Franchise Agreement and Exhibits

C: Financial Statements of Cabinet IQ Franchising, LL.C

D: Table of Contents of the Operations Manual

E: Franchisee Disclosure Questionnaire

F: Form of General Release

G: State Specific Addenda and Riders

H: List of Franchisee Operators

I: Small Business Administration Addendum

Signature:
Print Name:
Date Received:

Return this copy to us at by email to fddreceipts@cabinetiq.com
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	Issuance Date: April 1, 2025
	HOW TO USE THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
	Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to find more information:
	What You Need to Know About Franchising Generally
	Some States Require Registration
	Site Selection and Location
	Your site must meet our then-current site criteria.  You may not enter into a lease or binding purchase agreement for the premises for your Business until we have approved the location of the premises in writing.  If you lease the site for your Busine...
	Cabinetry and Countertops
	You must purchase the cabinetry and countertops from specified manufacturers and distributors.
	Bookkeeping Services
	You must use our designated vendor for all bookkeeping services.

	1. GRANT
	1.1. Grant of Rights; Protected Territory.  Upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Franchisor hereby grants to Franchisee a non-exclusive license (the “License”) to operate a Franchise that specializes in cabinets evaluation, remov...
	1.2. Protected Territory.  The  Territory, as listed on the Summary Page, shall be designated as “Protected” from the Effective Date of this agreement and shall remain Protected for the duration of the entire initial term plus any extensions thereof p...
	1.3. Reservation of Rights.  Franchisor and its affiliates have the right to conduct any business activities, under any name, in any geographic area, and at any location, without any liability to Franchisee regardless of the proximity to or effect on ...
	1.3.1. to operate and permit franchisees or others to establish and operate Franchises at any location within or outside the Territory (except as limited by the Protections defined in section 1.2.1 above) notwithstanding their actual or threatened imp...
	1.3.2. to operate or permit franchisees or others to establish and operate businesses at any location under other systems or other marks, including businesses that may offer or sell products or services that are the same or similar to the products or ...
	1.3.3. to sell and distribute, directly or indirectly, or license others to sell and distribute, directly or indirectly, within or outside of the Territory, products and services bearing the Marks or similar marks through other channels of distributio...
	1.3.4. to acquire, be acquired by, or merge with other businesses and to convert them to the Marks or any other name at any location and such acquiring or acquired businesses shall not be bound by any Protections applicable to the Territory.
	1.3.5. If the Territory is not Protected, the geographic area of the Territory may be revised by Franchisor from time to time, after the expiration of the initial term, to include only the Population listed as the actual population in the initial geog...

	1.4. Advertising and Promotional Materials.  Franchisor and Franchisee acknowledge that advertising and promotional materials created, placed, and/or distributed by Franchisor, other franchisees operating under the System, or other entities authorized...
	1.5. Sale of Products and Services.  Unless otherwise permitted by Franchisor, Franchisee shall offer and sell only then-current products and services previously authorized by Franchisor, only within the Territory, only in accordance with the requirem...
	1.5.1. Franchisee may perform Services for customers that are located outside of the Territory provided (a) Franchisee has submitted to Franchisor a written request to provide Services for such customer giving the name of the customer and its location...

	2. TERM AND RENEWAL
	2.1. Term.  Except as otherwise provided herein and unless sooner terminated in accordance with the provisions hereof, the initial term of the License commences on the Effective Date and continues until that date which is 10 years after the Effective ...
	2.2. Renewal.  Franchisee may, at its option, request to renew Franchisee’s right to operate the Franchise for two additional terms of five years each.  Franchisee’s option of renewal is subject to the following conditions, each of which must be met p...
	2.2.1. Franchisee shall give Franchisor written notice of Franchisee’s election to renew no fewer than six months, nor more than 12 months, prior to the end of the initial term;
	2.2.2. Franchisee shall update, refurbish, or replace any aspect of the Franchise and any Cabinet IQ Vehicle to comply, as determined solely by Franchisor, with Franchisor’s then-current standards;
	2.2.3. From the time of Franchisee’s election to renew through the expiration of the original term, Franchisee and its affiliates shall not have been in default of any provision of this Agreement, any amendment to this Agreement, any successor to this...
	2.2.4. Franchisee shall have satisfied all monetary, reporting and other obligations owed by Franchisee to Franchisor and its affiliates, and shall have timely met those obligations throughout the term of this Agreement;
	2.2.5. Franchisee shall execute Franchisor’s then current form of franchise agreement; which agreement shall supersede this Agreement in all respects (except the renewal franchise agreement shall not require payment of an initial franchise fee or incl...
	2.2.6. Franchisee shall pay, in lieu of an initial franchise fee, a renewal fee equal to 25% of the Initial Franchise Fee or $5,000, whichever is greater;
	2.2.7. Franchisee shall execute a general release, in a form prescribed by Franchisor, of any and all claims against Franchisor and its affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, agents, and employees; and
	2.2.8. Franchisee and its personnel shall comply with Franchisor’s then current qualification and training requirements, prior to commencement of operations under the renewal form of franchise agreement.


	3. FRANCHISOR’S DUTIES
	3.1. Initial and On-Going Training. Franchisor shall provide for Franchisee’s Operating Principal (as defined in Section 5.6) Salesperson, and Manager (as defined in Section 5.6), such initial training programs as Franchisor may designate, to be condu...
	3.2. Opening Assistance and Training.  In addition to the initial training described in Section 3.1, should Franchisee request additional assistance from Franchisor to facilitate the opening of the Franchise and should Franchisor, in its discretion, d...
	3.3. Manuals.  Franchisor shall provide Franchisee access to the confidential operations manuals (which may include technical bulletins, and other written, video or audio materials (collectively the “Manuals”), as more fully described in Section 7.
	3.4. Advertising and Promotion.  Franchisor shall review, and shall have the right to approve or disapprove, all advertising and promotional materials that Franchisee proposes to use pursuant to Section 10.6.  In addition, during the term of this Agre...
	3.5. Brand Fund.  Franchisor may establish and administer a System-wide advertising, marketing, promotional, and creative fund, which is referred to as the “Brand Fund”, or such other name as Franchisor may designate, in the manner set forth in Sectio...
	3.6. Technology System.  Franchisor shall specify or require that certain brands, types, makes, and/or models of communications, computer systems, software and hardware be used by, between, or among the Franchises, including without limitation:  (a) b...
	3.7. On-Going Assistance.  Franchisor shall provide periodic assistance to Franchisee in the marketing, management, and operation of the Franchise as Franchisor determines at the time(s) and in the manner determined by Franchisor.
	3.8. Site and Development Assistance. Franchisor shall review Franchisee’s proposed site for the Approved Location and the Lease for your proposed site (as those terms are defined below), and Franchisor shall provide Franchisee with Franchisor’s crite...
	3.9. Additional Services.  Franchisor, at its option, may provide Additional Services including a call center, recruiting assistance and other services at the then-current fees.  Franchisor shall have no ongoing obligation to offer these services and ...

	4. FEES; SALES REPORTING
	4.1. Initial Franchise Fee.  Franchisee shall pay Franchisor an initial franchise fee that is specified on the Summary Page (the “Initial Franchise Fee”), which must be paid in full prior to or upon execution of this Agreement.  The Initial Franchise ...
	4.2. Royalty Fees.  Franchisee shall pay Franchisor continuing monthly royalty fees (“Royalty Fees”) at such time, for such periods, and in such manner as specified herein, or as otherwise specified in writing by Franchisor.  The term “Gross Sales” me...
	Franchisee expressly acknowledges and agrees that Franchisee’s obligations for the full and timely payment of Royalty Fees, Brand Fund Contributions (as defined in Section 10.2), if any, and all other amounts provided for in this Agreement, shall be a...

	4.2.1 Sales Reports.  Franchisee shall deliver to Franchisor any and all reports, statements and/or other information regarding its Gross Sales and other metrics or data specified by Franchisor at the time(s) and in the format(s) reasonably requested ...
	4.3. Overdue Payments or Reports.  Any payment, Sales Report or other required report not actually received by Franchisor on or before the date such payment or report is due (currently, no later than noon Eastern Time on the 5th day of each calendar m...
	4.4. Payments on Behalf of Franchisee.  Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor, within 15 days after any written request by Franchisor which is accompanied by reasonable substantiating material, any monies (plus a fee equal to 10% of the amount paid by Fr...
	4.5. Custom Marketing & Services Activation Fee. Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor, within 10 days after request by Franchisor, a non-refundable Custom Marketing & Services Activation Fee of $2,000.
	4.6. Showroom Design and Order Preparation Fee. Franchisee shall pay Franchisor, within 10 days after request by Franchisor, a non-refundable Showroom Design and Order Preparation Fee of $3,000.
	4.7. Software Implementation Assistance Fee. Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor, within 10 days after request by Franchisor, a non-refundable Software Implementation Fee of $2,500.

	5. FRANCHISEE’S DUTIES
	5.1.1. If the location for the Franchise has been agreed upon prior to the Effective Date (the “Accepted Location”), it will be set forth on the Summary Page.  If the location is not determined as of the Effective Date or if control of an Accepted Loc...
	5.1.2. To request Franchisor’s acceptance of a site for the Franchise, Franchisee must submit to Franchisor such information and materials as Franchisor reasonably requires, together with a letter of intent or other evidence satisfactory to Franchisor...
	5.1.3. Before Franchisee makes a binding commitment to lease, sublease or purchase a site for the Accepted Location, Franchisor must approve the site in writing and approve in writing the proposed lease for the location (the “Lease”) or purchase agree...
	5.1.4. Franchisee shall construct the Franchise, including the required Showroom, in accordance with Franchisor’s requirements. Before commencing construction of the Franchise, Franchisee, at its expense, shall comply, to Franchisor’s satisfaction, wi...
	5.1.4.1.   Franchisee shall comply, at Franchisee’s expense, with all federal, state and local laws, codes and regulations, including, without limitation, the applicable provisions of the American with Disabilities Act (as amended, the “ADA”) regardin...
	5.1.4.2.   If requested by Franchisor, Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor, for Franchisor’s approval, final plans for construction based upon the preliminary plans and specifications.  Franchisor shall not review, nor shall any approval be deemed t...
	5.1.4.3.   Franchisee shall obtain all permits and certifications required for the lawful construction of the Franchise. Franchisee shall be responsible for obtaining all zoning classifications and clearances which may be required by state or local la...
	5.1.4.4.   Franchisee shall employ a qualified licensed general contractor who is acceptable to Franchisor to construct the Franchise and to complete all improvements.  Franchisee shall obtain and maintain in force during the entire period of construc...
	5.1.4.5.   During the construction of the Franchise, Franchisee will permit Franchisor to make such on-site inspections of the Franchise as Franchisor determines appropriate to evaluate the construction or remodeling of the Franchise for compliance wi...
	5.1.4.6.   Within 30 days after the opening of the Showroom, Franchisee shall provide to Franchisor a full breakdown of all costs associated with the development and construction of the Franchise if so requested by Franchisor.

	5.1.5. Franchisee shall use the Franchise solely for the operation of the Franchise; shall keep the Franchise open and in normal operation for such hours and days as Franchisor may from time to time specify in the Manuals or as Franchisor may otherwis...
	5.1.6. Franchisee shall at all times maintain the Approved Location in a high degree of sanitation, repair, and condition, and in connection therewith shall make such additions, alterations, repairs, and replacements thereto (but no others without Fra...
	5.1.7. In addition to the maintenance obligations set forth in above, Franchisee shall, at its expense, undertake such periodic and ongoing remodeling and upgrading of the Approved Location, and the furniture, fixtures, equipment, décor, signage and t...
	5.1.8. Franchisee may not relocate its Approved Location unless it receives Franchisee’s prior written approval.  Franchisee’s relocation will be at its expense and Franchisor has the right to charge Franchisee for all reasonable costs and expenses it...
	5.2. Cabinet IQ Vehicles.
	5.2.1. Franchisor reserves the right to require that Franchisee obtain that number of Cabinet IQ Vehicles prescribed by Franchisor from time to time, and ensure that any Cabinet IQ Vehicles are in proper working order.
	5.2.2.  Each Cabinet IQ Vehicle must be maintained and operated in accordance with Franchisor’s standards and requirements including conformance to certain appearance standards which may be updated from time to time.  Franchisee acknowledges and agree...
	5.2.3. Franchisee may not purchase or use any Cabinet IQ Vehicle unless and until it has received Franchisor’s prior approval or ensures that the Cabinet IQ Vehicle complies with brand appearance standards in Franchisor’s discretion.  Franchisor may e...
	5.2.4. Franchisee will make arrangements to store any Cabinet IQ Vehicles used in the operation of the Franchise in compliance with all applicable state and local laws and other restrictions.
	5.2.5. Franchisee shall at all times maintain the Cabinet IQ Vehicles in a high degree of repair and condition, and in connection therewith shall make such repairs, replacements and refurbishment thereto (but no others without Franchisor’s prior writt...

	5.3. System Standards.  Franchisee understands and acknowledges that every detail of the Franchise is important to Franchisee, Franchisor, and other franchisees to develop and maintain high operating standards, to increase the demand for the Services ...
	5.4. Pre-Opening Obligations.  Before commencing operations, Franchisee, at its expense, shall comply, to Franchisor’s satisfaction, with all of the following requirements:
	5.4.1. Franchisee shall comply, at Franchisee’s expense, with all federal, state and local laws, codes and regulations.
	5.4.2. Franchisee shall obtain all licenses, permits, and certifications required for the operation of the Franchise within the Territory and the parking and/or storage of Cabinet IQ Vehicles in the Territory.

	5.5. Opening.  Franchisee shall open the Franchise within five months after the Effective Date to offer required services.  In addition, the Showroom must be open to the public and fully functional within nine months after the Effective Date. Prior to...
	5.5.1. Franchisee shall provide at least 14 days’ prior notice to Franchisor of the date on which Franchisee proposes to first open the Franchise for business.
	5.5.2. The Approved Location must be in the Territory and must comply with all design and appearance standards as specified from time to time by Franchisor.  Franchisee shall not open the Franchise until Franchisor has determined that all construction...
	5.5.3. Franchisee shall not open the Franchise until the Operating Principal, Salesperson and Manager have successfully completed all initial training required by Franchisor, and Franchisee has hired and trained, to Franchisor’s standards, a sufficien...

	5.6. Management and Training.  Franchisee must appoint an individual owner as its “Operating Principal” who has at least a 20% equity interest in Franchisee, must have authority over all business decisions related to the Franchise, and must have the p...
	5.6.1. If the Manager or Salesperson ceases active management of the Franchise or in the event the Operating Principal is changed or is no longer a 20% equity owner of the Franchisee, Franchisee must hire a new Manager or Salesperson or appoint a new ...
	5.6.2. Franchisor from time to time may provide and, if it does, may require that the Operating Principal, Manager, Salesperson and/or other employee attend and successfully complete refresher training programs or seminars including without limitation...
	5.6.3. If Franchisee requests that Franchisor provide on-site training in addition to the opening assistance described in Section 3.4, and Franchisor chooses to do so, then Franchisee agrees that it shall pay Franchisor’s then-current per diem charges...

	5.7. Personnel.  Franchisee agrees to maintain a competent, conscientious and trained staff in numbers sufficient to promptly provide the Services and to take such steps as are necessary to ensure that its employees preserve good customer relations an...
	5.8. Equipment Upgrades. Franchisee shall make, from time to time, such upgrades and other changes to the equipment, Cabinet IQ Vehicles and electronic equipment utilized in the Franchise, the Technology System and Required Software as Franchisor may ...
	5.9. Standards and Specifications.  To insure that the highest degree of quality and service is maintained, Franchisee shall operate the Franchise in strict conformity with such methods, standards, and specifications as Franchisor may from time to tim...
	5.9.1. offering and selling at all times such goods and/or services that conform to Franchisor’s written standards and specifications, and refraining from deviating therefrom by the use or offer of any nonconforming services without Franchisor’s speci...
	5.9.2. maintaining in sufficient supply, using, offering and selling at all times only such products, equipment, supplies, materials, and goods that conform to Franchisor’s written standards and specifications, and refraining from deviating therefrom ...
	5.9.3. offering and selling only such products as have been expressly approved for sale in writing by Franchisor; offering all products and services as Franchisor may specify from time to time as required offerings at the Franchise; offering all produ...
	5.9.4. operating the Franchise to fully comply with all applicable laws and regulations.
	5.9.5. offering and selling the services and products in accordance with any minimum, maximum, and/or specific prices that Franchisor may determine from time to time (except to the extent determination of prices by Franchisor is limited or prohibited ...

	5.10. Non-Compliance.  If Franchisee violates an Operating Standard, and fails to bring the Franchise into compliance with such Operating Standard within 10 days, Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor upon demand $100 for each day that Franchisee is not ...
	5.11. Suppliers and Sourcing Requirements.  Franchisor has the right to require that services and products offered by Franchisee, and services, products and equipment used by Franchisee in the establishment and operation of the Franchise:  (a) meet sp...
	5.11.1. If Franchisee wishes to purchase any services, products, equipment or any items that Franchisor has not approved or to purchase from an unapproved supplier, Franchisee shall first submit to Franchisor a written request for such approval.  Fran...
	5.11.2. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor shall have the right to collect and retain all manufacturing allowances, markups, marketing allowances, rebates, credits, monies, payments or benefits (collectively, “Allowances”) offered by s...
	5.11.3. Compliance with laws regarding the chemicals, products, equipment and other supplies that Franchisee uses in its Franchise is Franchisee’s sole responsibility.  Franchisor makes no warranty or representation that chemicals, products and other ...

	5.12. Inspections.  Franchisee grants Franchisor and its agents the right to enter upon the Franchise premises and to attend and monitor Franchisee while performing services for customers at any time for the purpose of conducting inspections, for amon...
	5.13. Technology System.  At Franchisor’s request, Franchisee shall purchase or lease, and thereafter maintain, the Technology System and Required Software, and Franchisee shall enter into all licenses or agreements and pay such licensing fees as nece...
	5.14. Uniform Attire.  To promote a uniform System image, Franchisee shall require all of its personnel to dress during business hours in the attire specified in the Manuals.
	5.15. Participation in Promotions and Incentive Programs.  Franchisee shall participate in promotional programs developed by Franchisor for the System, in the manner directed by Franchisor in the Manuals or otherwise in writing.
	5.16. Franchisee Advisory Council.  Franchisor may establish an advisory council comprised of Franchisees for the purpose of fostering communication among and between franchisees and Franchisor, as well as to establish, modify or discuss various polic...
	5.17. Franchisee Structure.
	5.17.1. Except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, if Franchisee is a corporation, it shall:  (i) confine its activities, and its governing documents shall at all times provide that its activities are confined, exclusively to operating the...
	5.17.2. If Franchisee is a partnership or limited liability partnership it shall:  (i)  confine its activities, and its governing documents shall at all times provide that its activities are confined, exclusively to operating the Franchise; (ii) furni...
	5.17.3. If a Franchisee is a limited liability company, Franchisee shall:  (i)  confine its activities, and its governing documents shall at all times provide that its activities are confined, exclusively to operating the Franchise; (ii) furnish Franc...

	5.18. Guarantee of Performance.  Each present and future:  (i) shareholder of a corporate Franchisee; (ii) member of a limited liability company Franchisee; (iii) partner of a partnership Franchisee; or (iv) partner of a limited liability partnership ...
	5.19. System Modifications.  Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that from time to time hereafter Franchisor may change or modify the System as Franchisor deems appropriate, including, without limitation, to reflect the changing market and/or to meet n...
	5.20. Third-Party Management.  The Franchise shall be operated under the control and supervision of Franchisee (or if an entity, the Operating Principal) or its Manager. Franchisee shall not, without the prior written approval of Franchisor, which may...

	6. PROPRIETARY MARKS
	6.1. Ownership of the Marks.  Franchisor represents that it is the owner of all right, title and interest in and to the Marks or otherwise maintains the right to use, license and sub-license such Marks.
	6.2. Use of the Marks.  With respect to Franchisee’s use of the Marks, Franchisee agrees that:
	6.2.1. Franchisee shall use only the Marks designated by Franchisor, and shall use them only in the manner authorized and permitted by Franchisor; all items bearing the Marks shall bear the then-current logo.
	6.2.2. Franchisee shall use the Marks only for the operation of the business franchised hereunder and only at the location authorized hereunder, or in Franchisor approved advertising for the business conducted at or from that location.
	6.2.3. Unless Franchisor otherwise directs Franchisee, in writing to do so, Franchisee shall operate and advertise the Franchise only under the name “Cabinet IQ” or the name listed on the Summary Page to this Agreement.
	6.2.4. During the term of this Agreement and any renewal of this Agreement, Franchisee shall identify itself to the public (in a manner reasonably acceptable to Franchisor) as an independent contractor operating the Franchise under a license from Fran...
	6.2.5. Franchisee’s right to use the Marks is limited to such uses as are authorized under this Agreement, and any unauthorized use thereof shall constitute an infringement of Franchisor’s rights.
	6.2.6. Franchisee shall not use the Marks to incur any obligation or indebtedness on behalf of Franchisor.
	6.2.7. Franchisee shall not use the Marks or the word Cabinet IQ or any variant thereof as part of its corporate or other legal name, or as part of any e-mail address, domain name, or other identification of Franchisee in any electronic medium.
	6.2.8. Franchisee shall execute any documents deemed necessary by Franchisor to obtain protection for the Marks or to maintain their continued validity and enforceability.
	6.2.9. With respect to litigation involving the Marks, the parties agree that:
	6.2.9.1.  Franchisee shall promptly notify Franchisor of any suspected infringement of the Marks, any known challenge to the validity of the Marks, or any known challenge to Franchisor’s ownership of, or Franchisee’s right to use, the Marks licensed h...
	6.2.9.2.  If Franchisor undertakes the defense or prosecution of any litigation relating to the Marks, Franchisee shall execute any and all documents and do such acts and things as may, in the opinion of counsel for Franchisor, be necessary to carry o...


	6.3. Franchisee Acknowledgments. Franchisee expressly understands and acknowledges that:
	6.3.1. The Marks are valid, owned by Franchisor, and serve to identify the System and those who are authorized to operate under the System.
	6.3.2. Neither Franchisee nor any owner of Franchisee shall directly or indirectly contest the validity of Franchisor’s ownership of the Marks, nor shall Franchisee, directly or indirectly, seek to register the Marks with any government agency, except...
	6.3.3. Franchisee’s use of the Marks does not give Franchisee any ownership interest or other interest in or to the Marks, beyond the limited non-exclusive License granted by this Agreement.
	6.3.4. Any and all goodwill arising from Franchisee’s use of the Marks shall inure solely and exclusively to Franchisor’s benefit, and upon expiration or termination of this Agreement and the License herein granted, no monetary amount shall be assigne...
	6.3.5. The License of the Marks is nonexclusive, and Franchisor thus has and retains the rights, among others:
	6.3.5.1.  To use the Marks itself in connection with selling products and services;
	6.3.5.2.  To grant other licenses for the Marks, in addition to those licenses already granted to existing franchisees or other licensees authorized to operate using the Marks;
	6.3.5.3.  To develop and establish (or acquire or be acquired by) other systems using the same or similar Marks, or any other proprietary marks, and to grant licenses or franchises thereto without providing any rights therein to Franchisee.

	6.3.6. Franchisor reserves the right to substitute different proprietary marks for use in identifying the System and the businesses operating thereunder if the Marks no longer can be used, or if Franchisor, exercising its right to do so, determines th...


	7. CONFIDENTIAL OPERATING MANUALS
	7.1. Manuals.  In order to protect the reputation and goodwill of Franchisor and to maintain high standards of operation under Franchisor’s Marks, Franchisee shall conduct its business in accordance with the Manuals, one or more copies of which, or ac...
	7.2. Confidentiality of the Manuals.  Franchisee shall at all times treat the Manuals, any other manuals created for or approved for use in the operation of the Franchise, and the information contained therein, as confidential, and shall use best effo...
	7.3. Protection of the Manuals.  The Manuals shall at all times remain the sole property of Franchisor and shall at all times be kept in a secure manner at the Franchise premises.  Franchisee shall ensure that the Manuals are kept current and up to da...
	7.4. Revisions to the Manuals.  Franchisor may from time to time revise the contents of the Manuals, and Franchisee expressly agrees to make corresponding revisions to its copy (to the extent Franchisor permits Franchisee to maintain a written copy) o...

	8. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
	8.1. Confidential Information.  Franchisee shall not, during the term of this Agreement or thereafter, communicate, divulge, or use for the benefit of any other person or entity any confidential information, knowledge, or knowhow concerning the method...
	8.2. Irreparable Injury.  Franchisee acknowledges that any failure to comply with the requirements of this Section 8 will cause Franchisor irreparable injury, and Franchisee agrees to pay all court costs and reasonable attorney’s fees incurred by Fran...
	8.3. Information Exchange.  Franchisee agrees to disclose to Franchisor all ideas, concepts, methods, techniques, services, and products conceived or developed by Franchisee, its affiliates, owners, agents, or employees during the term of this Agreeme...

	9. ACCOUNTING AND RECORDS
	9.1. Records.  With respect to the operation and financial condition of Franchisee and the Franchise, Franchisee shall adopt, until otherwise specified by Franchisor, a fiscal year and fiscal accounting periods which coincide with Franchisor’s then-cu...
	9.2. Periodic Reports.  In addition to the record keeping requirements of Section 9.1:
	9.2.1. If requested by Franchisor, Franchisee shall, at its expense, provide to Franchisor, in a format specified by Franchisor, a complete annual financial statement (prepared according to generally accepted accounting principles, that includes a fis...
	9.2.2. Within 45 days following the end of each calendar quarter during the term of this Agreement, after the opening of the Franchise, Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor, in a format acceptable to (or, at Franchisor’s election, specified by) Franc...

	9.3. Reporting Requirements.  Franchisee shall also submit to Franchisor in addition to the Sales Reports required pursuant to Section 4.2, for review or auditing, such other forms, reports, records, information, and data as and when Franchisor may re...
	9.4. Audit.  Franchisor or its designated agents shall have the right at all reasonable times to examine, copy, and/or personally review or audit, at Franchisor’s expense, all books, records, and sales and income tax returns of Franchisee.  Franchisor...
	9.5. Data.  Franchisor may, from time-to-time, specify in the Manuals or otherwise in writing the information that Franchisee shall collect and maintain on the Technology System installed at the Franchise, and Franchisee shall provide to Franchisor su...

	10. ADVERTISING; CONTACT CENTER
	10.1. Brand Funds.  Franchisor shall have the right to establish, at any time, the Brand Fund as described in this Section 10.
	10.2. Brand Fund Contributions and Local Marketing Expenditures.  Franchisee shall, during each calendar month (beginning 30 days prior to Franchisee’s attendance at the in-person portion of the initial training program and continuing through the end ...
	10.2.1. Franchisor shall provide Franchisee with not less than 60 days prior written notice of any change in the required Local Marketing (which will not exceed 5% of Gross Sales).  Franchisor shall not increase required Brand Fund contributions to an...
	10.2.2. Franchisee shall pay required Brand Fund Contributions in the manner required under Section 4 (or as otherwise provided in this Section 10).
	10.2.3. For all company-owned Franchises, Franchisor shall contribute to the Brand Fund on the same basis as franchisees.

	10.3. Brand Fund.  Although it is under no obligation to do so, Franchisor may at any time establish a Brand Fund, as follows:
	10.3.1. Franchisor or its designee shall have the right to direct all advertising programs, as well as all aspects thereof, including without limitation, the concepts, materials, and media used in such programs and the placement and allocation thereof...
	10.3.2. The Brand Fund, all contributions thereto, and any earnings thereon, shall be used exclusively (except as otherwise provided in this Section 10.3) to meet any and all costs of maintaining, administering, directing, conducting, creating and/or ...
	10.3.3. Franchisee shall contribute to the Brand Fund in the manner specified by Franchisor.  All sums paid by Franchisee to the Brand Fund shall be maintained in an account separate from Franchisor’s other monies.  The Brand Fund will not be used to ...
	10.3.4. The Brand Fund is not intended to be, nor will it be deemed to be a trust, and Franchisor does not assume any fiduciary obligation to Franchisee for maintaining, directing or administering the Brand Fund or for any other reason.  A statement o...
	10.3.5. Although the Brand Fund is intended to be of perpetual duration, Franchisor maintains the right to terminate the Brand Fund.  The Brand Fund shall not be terminated, however, until all monies in the Brand Fund have been expended for advertisin...

	10.4. Promotional Materials and Marketing Assistance.  Franchisor shall make available to Franchisee from time to time, at Franchisee’s expense, advertising plans and promotional materials, including newspaper mats, coupons, merchandising materials, s...
	10.5. Approvals.  For all proposed advertising, marketing, and promotional plans, Franchisee shall submit samples of such plans and materials to Franchisor (by means described in Section 20), for Franchisor’s review and prior written approval (except ...
	10.6. Minimum Requirements Only.  Franchisee understands and acknowledges that the required Local Marketing and Brand Fund contributions are minimum requirements only, and that Franchisee may, and is encouraged by Franchisor to expend additional funds...
	10.7. Websites; Internet Use.  Franchisee shall not, without Franchisor’s prior written approval, offer, promote, or sell any products or services, or make any use of the Marks, through the Internet, including the use of websites, domain names, unifor...
	10.8. Limitations on Associations with the Marks. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that certain associations between Franchisee and/or the Franchise, and/or the Marks and/or the System, and/or businesses operating under or products sold under the Ma...

	11. INSURANCE
	11.1. Insurance Requirements.  Prior to the commencement of any activities or operations pursuant to this Agreement, Franchisee shall procure and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement (and for such period thereafter as is...
	11.1.1.             Comprehensive general liability insurance with minimums of $1,000,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 general and products/completed operations aggregate, $1,000,000 personal/advertising injury, $50,000 rented premises damage, and $5,00...
	11.1.2. Commercial Auto Insurance with a $1,000,000 combined single limit, covering uninsured/underinsured motorists, owned, hired, and non-owned autos.
	11.1.3. Workers' Compensation Insurance with coverage limits of $1,000,000 for bodily injury by disease per accident, $1,000,000 policy limit, and $1,000,000 per employee. The policy must be in place regardless of state laws and cannot exclude owner-o...
	11.1.4. Property insurance with coverage for business personal property (≥ $10,000 full replacement cost value), tenant improvements (≥ $70,000 full replacement cost value), business interruption (6 Months ALS), including franchisor royalties.
	11.1.5. Employment Practices Liability Insurance with minimum coverage limits of $250,000 per occurrence and $250,000 aggregate. The policy should include 3rd party liability and wage & hour coverage of at least $25,000.
	11.1.9. Any other insurance coverage that is required by federal, state, or municipal law.

	11.2. Referenced in Manuals.  All policies listed in Section 11.1 (unless otherwise noted below) shall contain such endorsements as shall, from time to time, be provided in the Manuals.
	11.3. Policy Cancellation.  In the event of cancellation, material change, or nonrenewal of any policy, 60 days’ advance written notice must be provided to Franchisor in the manner provided in Article 20.  Franchisee shall arrange for a copy of such n...
	11.4. Construction and Remodeling Insurance.  In connection with all significant construction, reconstruction, or remodeling of the Franchise during the term of this Agreement, Franchisee will cause the general contractor, its subcontractors, and any ...
	11.5. No Waiver of Obligations.  Franchisee’s obligation to obtain and maintain the foregoing policy or policies in the amounts specified shall not be limited in any way by reason of any insurance which may be maintained by Franchisor, nor shall Franc...
	11.6. Franchisor to be Additional Insured.  All insurance policies shall list Franchisor and its affiliates, officers, directors, employees, and agents as additional insureds; shall include a waiver of subrogation, primary and noncontributory provisio...
	11.7. Certificates of Insurance.  At least 30 days prior to the time any insurance is first required to be carried by Franchisee, and thereafter at least 30 days prior to the expiration of any such policy, Franchisee shall deliver to Franchisor, certi...
	11.8. Proof of Insurance.  In addition to its obligations under Section 11.7, on the first anniversary of the Effective Date, and on each subsequent anniversary thereof during the term of this Agreement and any renewal hereof, Franchisee shall provide...
	11.9. Policy Changes.  Franchisor shall have the right, from time to time, to make changes to any insurance requirements, including types of insurance, minimum policy limits, and endorsements, as Franchisor may determine; provided, however, all change...

	12. TRANSFER OF INTEREST
	12.1. Franchisor Transfers.  Franchisor shall have the right to transfer or assign this Agreement and all or any part of its rights or obligations under this Agreement, or any interests in the assets of Franchisor, or any ownership or equity interests...
	12.2. Principals.  If Franchisee is an entity, each person or entity that is an owner of, or has an ownership interest in, Franchisee (each, a “Principal”), and the interest of each Principal in Franchisee, is identified on the Summary Page.  Franchis...
	12.3. Franchisee Transfers.  Franchisee understands and acknowledges that the rights and duties set forth in this Agreement are personal to Franchisee and its Principals, and that Franchisor has granted this License in reliance on Franchisee’s or Fran...
	12.3.1. Franchisee shall not, without the prior written consent of Franchisor, transfer, pledge or otherwise encumber:  (a) this Agreement or any of the rights and obligations of Franchisee under this Agreement; or (b) any material asset of Franchisee...
	12.3.2. If Franchisee is a corporation or limited liability company, Franchisee shall not, without the prior written consent of Franchisor, issue any voting securities or securities convertible into voting securities, and the recipient of any such sec...
	12.3.3. If Franchisee is a partnership or limited partnership, the partners of the partnership shall not, without the prior written consent of Franchisor, admit additional general partners, remove a general partner, or otherwise materially alter the p...
	12.3.4. A Principal shall not, without the prior written consent of Franchisor, transfer, pledge or otherwise encumber any interest of a Principal in Franchisee.

	12.4. Conditions for Approval.  Franchisor shall not unreasonably withhold any consent required by Section 12.3; provided, that if Franchisee proposes to transfer its obligations hereunder or any interest in any material asset, or if a Principal propo...
	12.4.1. The transferor shall have executed a general release (which shall include a release from the transferor, Franchisee, Principals, and guarantors of Franchisee), in a form satisfactory to Franchisor, of any and all claims against Franchisor and ...
	12.4.2. The transferee of a Principal shall be designated as a Principal and each transferee who is designated a Principal shall enter into a written agreement, in a form satisfactory to Franchisor, agreeing to be bound as a Principal under the terms ...
	12.4.3. Prior to, and after the transfer, Franchisee’s new Principals shall meet Franchisor’s educational, managerial, and business standards; each shall possess a good moral character, business reputation, and credit rating; have the aptitude and abi...
	12.4.4. If a proposed transfer would result in a change in control of Franchisee, at Franchisor’s option, Franchisee (or transferee) shall execute, for a term ending on the expiration date of this Agreement the form of franchise agreement then being o...
	12.4.5. If a proposed transfer would result in a change in control of Franchisee, and if so requested by Franchisor, Franchisee, at its expense, shall upgrade the Franchise to conform to the then current standards and specifications of new Franchises ...
	12.4.6. All monetary obligations of Franchisee hereunder shall be paid in full on a current basis, and Franchisee must not be otherwise in default of any of its obligations hereunder including, without limitation, its reporting obligations.
	12.4.7. The transferor shall remain liable for all of the obligations to Franchisor in connection with the Franchise that arose prior to the effective date of the transfer, and any covenants that survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement...
	12.4.8. At Franchisee’s expense, the transferee’s Manager and other employees designated by Franchisor shall successfully complete (to Franchisor’s satisfaction) all training programs required by Franchisor upon such terms and conditions as Franchisor...
	12.4.9. If a proposed transfer would result in a change in control of Franchisee, and to compensate Franchisor for Franchisor’s legal, accounting, training, and other expenses incurred in connection with the transfer, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor a...
	12.4.10. If the proposed transfer will result in a change in control of Franchisee, the terms of the proposed transfer will not adversely impact the continued operations of the Franchise, as determined in Franchisor’s sole discretion.
	12.4.11. The transferor must acknowledge and agree that the transferor shall remain bound by the covenants contained in Sections 15.2 and 15.3.

	12.5. Right of First Refusal.
	12.5.1. If Franchisee or any Principal desires to accept any bona fide offer from a third party to purchase Franchisee, any material assets of Franchisee, or any direct or indirect interest in Franchisee, Franchisee or such Principal shall promptly no...
	12.5.2. Any material change in the terms of the bona fide offer prior to closing shall constitute a new offer subject to the same rights of first refusal by Franchisor as in the case of the third party’s initial offer.  Additionally, if Franchisor ele...
	12.5.3. In the event the consideration, terms, and/or conditions offered by a third party are such that Franchisor may not reasonably be required to furnish the same consideration, terms, and/or conditions, then Franchisor may purchase the interest pr...

	12.6. Transfer Upon Death.  Upon the death of a Principal, the deceased’s executor, administrator, or other personal representative shall transfer the deceased’s interest to a third party approved by Franchisor within 12 months after the death.  If th...
	12.7. Transfer Upon Permanent Disability.  Upon the permanent disability of any Principal with a controlling interest in Franchisee, Franchisor shall have the right to require such interest to be transferred to a third party in accordance with the con...
	12.8. Notification Upon Death or Permanent Disability.  Upon the death or permanent disability any Principal of Franchisee, such person or his representative shall promptly notify Franchisor of such death or claim of permanent disability.  Any transfe...
	12.9. Exceptions for Entity Formed Convenience of Ownership or Transfer to Family Member.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 12, if Franchisee is an individual and seeks to transfer this Agreement to an entity formed for the con...
	12.10. No Waiver of Claims.  Franchisor’s consent to a transfer which is the subject of this Section 12 shall not constitute a waiver of any claims it may have against the transferring party, nor shall it be deemed a waiver of Franchisor’s right to de...
	12.11. Insolvency.  If Franchisee or any person holding any interest (direct or indirect) in Franchisee becomes a debtor in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or any similar law in the U.S. or elsewhere, it is the parties’ understanding and a...
	12.12. Securities Offerings.  All materials for an offering of stock or partnership interests in Franchisee or any affiliate of Franchisee which are required by federal or state law shall be submitted to Franchisor for review as described below before...

	13. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION
	13.1. Automatic Termination.  Franchisee shall be deemed to be in default under this Agreement, and all rights granted herein shall automatically terminate without notice to Franchisee, if Franchisee shall become insolvent or makes a general assignmen...
	13.2. Termination Upon Notice Without Opportunity to Cure.  Franchisee shall be deemed to be in default and Franchisor may, at its option, terminate this Agreement and all rights granted hereunder, without affording Franchisee any opportunity to cure ...
	13.2.1. If Franchisee fails to open the Franchise as provided in Section 5.5;
	13.2.2. If Franchisee or other designated employee fails to complete the initial training program pursuant to Sections 3.2 and 5.6 of this Agreement;
	13.2.3. If Franchisee at any time ceases to operate or otherwise abandons the Franchise for three consecutive business days, or loses the right to possession of the Approved Location or otherwise forfeits the right to do or transact business in the ju...
	13.2.4. If Franchisee or any Principal is convicted of a felony or engages in any other activity that Franchisor believes is reasonably likely to have an adverse effect on the System, the Marks, the goodwill associated therewith, or Franchisor’s inter...
	13.2.5. If a threat or danger to public health or safety results from the construction, maintenance, or operation of the Franchise;
	13.2.6. If Franchisee or any Principal purports to transfer any rights or obligations under this Agreement or any interest to any third party in a manner that is contrary to the terms of Section 12;
	13.2.7. If Franchisee or any Principal fails to comply with the covenants in Section 15.2;
	13.2.8. If, contrary to the terms of Sections 7 or 8, Franchisee discloses or divulges confidential information provided to Franchisee by Franchisor;
	13.2.9. If Franchisee knowingly maintains false books or records, or submits any false reports (including, but not limited to, information provided as part of Franchisee’s application for this franchise) to Franchisor, underreports Gross Sales by more...
	13.2.10. If Franchisee commits three or more defaults under this Agreement in any 12-month period, whether or not each such default has been cured after notice;
	13.2.11. If Franchisee or any Principal makes any unauthorized or improper use of the Marks or contests the validity of Franchisor’s ownership of the Marks or its right to use and to license others to use the Marks; and/or

	13.3. Termination With Opportunity to Cure.  Except as otherwise provided in Sections 13.1 and 13.2, upon any other default by Franchisee of its obligations hereunder, Franchisor may terminate this Agreement only by giving written notice of terminatio...
	13.4. Extended Notice of Termination.  If any law applicable to this Section 13, requires a longer notice period prior to termination of this Agreement, or prior to a refusal to enter into a successor or renewal franchise, than is required hereunder, ...
	13.5. Assignment Upon Bankruptcy.  If, for any reason, this Agreement is not terminated pursuant to this Article 13, and this Agreement is assumed, or assignment of the same to any person or entity who has made a bona fide offer to accept an assignmen...
	13.6. Damages / Early Termination Fees (Liquidated Damages).  In addition to any other claims Franchisor may have (other than claims for lost future Royalty Fees and Brand Fund Contributions), if Franchisor terminates this Agreement based on Franchise...

	14. OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION
	14.1. Cease Operations.  Franchisee shall immediately cease to operate the Franchise, and shall not thereafter, directly or indirectly, represent to the public or hold itself out as a present or former franchisee of Franchisor.
	14.2. Cease Use of Marks.  Franchisee shall immediately and permanently cease to use, in any manner whatsoever, any confidential methods, procedures and techniques associated with the System, the mark “Cabinet IQ” and all other Marks and distinctive f...
	14.3. Cancellation of Assumed Names.  Franchisee shall take such action as may be necessary to cancel any assumed name or equivalent registration which contains the mark “Cabinet IQ” and all other Marks, and/or any other service mark or trademark of F...
	14.4. Assign Lease; Modification of Premises.  Franchisor, or any affiliate of Franchisor, shall have the right and option, but not the obligation, in Franchisor’s sole discretion, to acquire the Lease, or otherwise acquire the right to occupy the App...
	14.5. Telephone, Etc.  Franchisee shall cease use of, and if Franchisor requests, shall transfer to Franchisor, all telephone numbers, customer lists, and any domain names, websites, email addresses, and any other identifiers, whether or not authorize...
	14.6. No Confusion.  Franchisee agrees, if it continues to operate or subsequently begins to operate any other business, not to use any reproduction, counterfeit copy, or colorable imitation of the Marks, either in connection with such other business ...
	14.7. Pay Monies Owed.  Franchisee shall promptly pay all sums owing to Franchisor and its subsidiaries and affiliates (regardless of whether those obligations arise under this Agreement or otherwise).  In the event of termination for any default of F...
	14.8. Damages and Costs.  Franchisee shall pay Franchisor all damages, costs, and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by Franchisor subsequent to the termination or expiration of this Agreement in obtaining injunctive or other rel...
	14.9. Return of Manuals.  Franchisee shall immediately deliver to Franchisor the Manuals and all other manuals, records, and instructions containing confidential information (including without limitation any copies thereof, even if such copies were ma...
	14.10. Option to Purchase Furnishings and Equipment.  Franchisor shall have the option to purchase from Franchisee any or all of the Cabinet IQ Vehicles, furnishings, equipment, signs, fixtures, supplies, or inventory of Franchisee related to the oper...
	14.11. Right to Enter and Operate.  In order to preserve the goodwill of the System following termination, Franchisor (or its designee) shall have the right to enter the Approved Location (without liability to Franchisee, Franchisee’s Principals, or o...
	14.12. Close Vendor Accounts.  Franchisee must close all accounts with vendors which were opened in connection with the opening and operation of the Franchise.  Franchisor has the right to notify Franchisee’s vendors that this Agreement has expired or...
	14.13. Security Interest.  For the purpose of securing its obligations under this Agreement, Franchisee hereby grants Franchisor a security interest in all personal property related to the operation of the Franchise of any nature now owned or hereinaf...

	15. COVENANTS
	15.1. Full Time and Best Efforts.  Franchisee covenants that during the term of this Agreement, except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, Franchisee (or its Operating Principal if Franchisee is an entity) (or a Manager who will assume pri...
	15.2. In-Term Covenants.  Franchisee specifically acknowledges that, pursuant to this Agreement, Franchisee will receive valuable specialized training and confidential information, including, without limitation, information regarding the operational, ...
	15.2.1. Divert or attempt to divert any business or customer of the Franchise or of any Franchise using the System to any competitor, by direct or indirect inducement or otherwise, or do or perform, directly or indirectly, any other act injurious or p...
	15.2.2. Unless released in writing by the employer, (a) employ or seek to employ any person who (i) is at that time employed by Franchisor, or (ii) who was, within six months prior to his/her employ by Franchisee, or any person acting for, on behalf o...
	15.2.3. Except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, own, maintain, operate, engage in, or have any interest in any “Competitive Business” in any location, which shall mean a business which offers cabinets evaluation, installation or removal...

	15.3. Post-Term Covenants.  Franchisee covenants that, except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, it shall not, for a continuous uninterrupted period of two years from the date of:  (a) a transfer permitted under Section 12; (b) expiration...
	15.4. Publicly-Held Corporations.  Section 15.3 shall not apply to ownership by Franchisee of less than 5% beneficial interest in the outstanding equity securities of any Publicly Held Corporation.  As used in this Agreement, the term “Publicly Held C...
	15.5. Individual Covenants.  Franchisee shall require and obtain execution of covenants similar to those set forth in Section 8 and this Article 15 (as modified to apply to an individual) from any or all of Franchisee’s Principals, the Manager, any re...
	15.6. Severability.  The parties agree that each of the foregoing covenants shall be construed as independent of any other covenant or provision of this Agreement.  If all or any portion of the covenants in this Section 15 is held to be unenforceable ...
	15.7. Scope of Covenants.  Franchisee understands and acknowledges that Franchisor shall have the right to reduce the scope of any covenant set forth in Sections 15.2 and 15.3 in this Agreement, or any portion thereof, without Franchisee’s consent, ef...
	15.8. Enforcement of Claims.  Franchisee expressly agrees that the existence of any claims it may have against Franchisor, whether or not arising from this Agreement, shall not constitute a defense to the enforcement by Franchisor of the covenants in ...
	15.9. Irreparable Injury.  Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisee’s violation of the terms of this Section 15 would result in irreparable injury to Franchisor for which no adequate remedy at law may be available, and Franchisee accordingly consents t...

	16. TAXES, PERMITS, AND INDEBTEDNESS
	16.1. Taxes.  Franchisee shall promptly pay when due all taxes levied or assessed, including, without limitation, income, unemployment, and sales taxes, and all accounts and other indebtedness of every kind incurred by Franchisee in the conduct of the...
	16.2. Tax Disputes.  In the event of any bona fide dispute as to Franchisee’s liability for taxes assessed or other indebtedness, Franchisee may contest the validity or the amount of the tax or indebtedness in accordance with procedures of the taxing ...
	16.3. Compliance With Laws.  Franchisee shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations, and shall timely obtain any and all permits, certificates, or licenses necessary for the full and proper conduct of the business fran...
	16.4. Notification of Claims.  Franchisee shall notify Franchisor in writing within three days of receipt of notice of any health or safety violation, the commencement of any action, suit, or proceeding, and of the issuance of any order, writ, injunct...

	17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AND INDEMNIFICATION
	17.1. Independent Contractors.  It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement does not create a fiduciary relationship between them; that Franchisee shall be an independent contractor; and, that nothing in this Agreement is int...
	17.2. Identification as Independent Contractor.  At all times during the term of this Agreement and any extensions hereof, Franchisee shall hold itself out to the public as an independent contractor operating the business pursuant to a franchise from ...
	17.3. No Agency.  It is understood and agreed that nothing in this Agreement authorizes Franchisee to make any contract, agreement, warranty, or representation on Franchisor’s behalf, or to incur any debt or other obligation in Franchisor’s name; and ...
	17.4. Indemnification and Advancement.  Franchisee shall immediately and unconditionally advance costs and expenses, indemnify and hold Franchisor and its affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, members, managers, employees, and agents h...

	18. FORCE MAJEURE
	Neither party shall be responsible to the other for non-performance or delay in performance occasioned by causes beyond its control, including without limiting the generality of the foregoing:  (a) acts of God; (b) acts of war, terrorism, or insurrect...

	19. APPROVALS AND WAIVERS
	19.1. Approvals.  Whenever this Agreement requires the prior approval or consent of Franchisor, Franchisee shall make a timely written request to Franchisor therefor, and such approval or consent must be obtained in writing.
	19.2. No Warranties.  Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor makes no warranties or guarantees upon which Franchisee may rely, and assumes no liability or obligation to Franchisee, by providing any waiver, approval, consent, or suggestion ...
	19.3. Waivers.  No delay, waiver, omission, or forbearance on the part of Franchisor to exercise any right, option, duty, or power arising out of any breach or default by Franchisee or any other franchisee under any of the terms, provisions, covenants...

	20. NOTICES
	21. ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND AMENDMENT
	22. SEVERABILITY AND CONSTRUCTION
	22.1. Severability.  If any of the provisions of this Agreement may be construed in more than one way, one of which would render the provision illegal or otherwise voidable or unenforceable, such provision shall have the meaning which renders it valid...
	22.2. No Other Rights.  Except as expressly provided to the contrary herein, nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor shall be deemed, to confer upon any person or entity other than Franchisee, Franchisor, and such of Franchisee’s and Franchisor’s r...
	22.3. Enforceability of Covenants.  Franchisee expressly agrees to be bound by any promise or covenant imposing the maximum duty permitted by law which is subsumed within the terms of any provision of this Agreement, as though it were separately artic...
	22.4. Construction.  All captions in this Agreement are intended solely for the convenience of the parties, and none shall be deemed to affect the meaning or construction of any provision hereof.
	22.5. Importance of Timely Performance.  Time is of the essence in this Agreement.
	22.6. Survival of Provisions.  All provisions of this Agreement which, by their terms or intent, are designed to survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement, shall so survive the expiration and/or termination of this Agreement.
	22.7. Additional Terms; Inconsistent Terms.  The parties may provide additional terms by including the terms on the Summary Page.  To the extent that any provisions of the Summary Page are in direct conflict with the provisions of this Agreement, the ...

	23. APPLICABLE LAW AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION
	23.1. Governing Law.  This Agreement takes effect upon its acceptance and execution by Franchisor, and shall be interpreted and construed exclusively under the laws of the State of Texas, which laws shall prevail in the event of any conflict of law (w...
	23.2. Arbitration.
	23.2.1. Disputes Subject to Arbitration. Except as expressly provided to the contrary in this Agreement, any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the relationship of the parties shall be settled by arbitration administe...
	23.2.2. Arbitration Claims.  The parties agree to be bound by the provisions of any limitation on the period of time in which claims must be brought under applicable law or this Agreement, whichever expires earlier. The parties further agree that, in ...
	23.2.3. Location. The place of arbitration shall be the AAA office located nearest to Franchisor’s principal place of business on the date the arbitration action is filed.
	23.2.4. Confidentiality. All documents, information, and results pertaining to any arbitration will be confidential, except as required by law or as required for Franchisor to comply with laws and regulations applicable to the sale of franchises.
	23.2.5. Performance During Arbitration. Franchisor and Franchisee will comply with this Agreement and perform their respective obligations under this Agreement during the arbitration process.

	23.3. Venue.  For any matter which is not subject to the arbitration provisions of Section 23.2, each party hereto consents to personal jurisdiction in the federal or state courts located in the county in which Franchisor’s principal place of business...
	23.4. No Exclusive Remedies.  No right or remedy conferred upon or reserved to Franchisor or Franchisee by this Agreement is intended to be, nor shall be deemed, exclusive of any other right or remedy herein or by law or equity provided or permitted, ...
	23.5. Injunctive Relief.  Notwithstanding anything contained herein, Franchisor reserves the right to seek and obtain temporary restraining orders or other emergency temporary or preliminary equitable injunctive relief and file actions to collect roya...
	23.6. Waiver of Jury Trial.  Franchisor and Franchisee irrevocably waive trial by jury in any action, proceeding, or counterclaim, whether at law or in equity, brought by either of them against the other, whether or not there are other parties in such...
	23.7. Limitation of Actions.  Any and all claims and actions arising out of or relating to this agreement, the relationship of Franchisee and franchisor, or Franchisee’s operation of the Franchise (including any defenses or any claims of set-off or re...
	23.8. Limitation on Damages.  Franchisor and Franchisee hereby waive to the fullest extent permitted by law any right to or claim of any punitive or exemplary damages against the other, and agree that in the event of a dispute between them each shall ...
	23.9. Costs and Attorneys’ Fees.  If either Franchisor or Franchisee seeks to enforce this Agreement in an arbitration or a judicial or other proceeding, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable costs and expenses (including at...

	24. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
	24.1. Acknowledgments.  Franchisee acknowledges that it has conducted an independent investigation of the business franchised hereunder, recognizes that the business venture contemplated by this Agreement involves business risks, and that its success ...
	24.2. Receipt of Documents.  Franchisee acknowledges that it received a copy of this Agreement, the exhibit(s) hereto, and agreements relating hereto, if any, with all of the blank lines therein filled in, prior to the date on which this Agreement was...
	24.3. Representations and Warranties. Franchisee and its Principals represent and warrant to Franchisor that:  (a) neither Franchisee nor any of its Principals have made any untrue statement of any material fact nor omitted to state any material fact ...
	24.4. Compliance with Executive Order 13224.  Under applicable U.S. law, including, without limitation, Executive Order 13224, signed on September 23, 2001 (“Order”), Franchisor is prohibited from engaging in any transaction with any person engaged in...
	24.5. No Other Obligations.  Each party represents and warrants to the others that there are no other agreements, court orders, or any other legal obligations that would preclude or in any manner restrict such party from: (a) negotiating and entering ...
	24.6. No Other Representations.  Franchisee acknowledges Franchisor has not (and shall not be deemed to have) given any representation, promise, or guarantee of Franchisee’s success.
	24.7. Business Judgment.  Franchisee understands and agrees that Franchisor may operate and change the System and its business in any manner that is not expressly and specifically prohibited by this Agreement.  Whenever Franchisor has expressly reserv...
	24.8. Consultation.  Franchisee acknowledges that it has read and understands this Agreement, the exhibits hereto, and agreements relating thereto, if any, and that Franchisor has accorded Franchisee ample time and opportunity to consult with advisors...
	24.9. Additional Terms. The parties may provide additional terms by including the terms on the Summary Page.  To the extent that any provisions of the Summary Page are in direct conflict with the provisions of this Agreement, the provisions of the Sum...
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